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STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

VISION
To be the backbone of
public transport

MISSION
To provide safe, reliable,
affordable and clean passenger rail 
and bus services.

OUR VALUES

Fairness and Integrity
Treating our customers and
our colleagues the same as we
would like to be treated.

Safety
Ensuring our customers and
colleagues enjoy their journey and
arrive safely and refreshed.

Service Excellence
Provide the kind of services that
meet and exceed customers 
expectations.

Communication
Sharing information with our 
customers and colleagues in an open
and honest way. 

Performance Driven
Developing the ability to venture
into new areas of opportunity
whilst offering quality products to
our customers. 

Teamwork
Working together with our customers 
to achieve a common goal and
recognising each other’s strengths
and contribution. 



PRASA 2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 7

STATEMENT BY THE CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD OF 
CONTROL: LOOKING AHEAD

Mr. Leonard Ramatlakane
Chairperson of The Board of Control

Mr. Leonard Ramatlakane
Chairperson of The Board of Control

The Minister of Transport, Mr. Fikile 
Mbalula, has characterised the 
Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa 
(PRASA) as a “broken business”. 
This characterisation was informed 
largely by the systematic erosion of 
value and collapse in governance that 
the business has experienced over a 
number of years. 

As the Board, 
management and 
employees, we have 
no choice but to 
mend this important 
organisation and 
bring order to it.
A significant amount of work remains 
to be done to stabilise PRASA and 
to turn it around so that it meets its 
mandate “to  provide safe, accessible  
reliable, affordable and clean 
passenger rail and bus services”. 

PRASA is too significant to fail. As the 
Board, management and employees, 
we have no choice but to mend this 
important organisation and bring order 
to it. Failure would be detrimental to 
our people, customers, employees 
and the economy; it is therefore not an 
option. 

COVID-19 and the related lockdown 
have added significantly to the 
difficulty of turning around PRASA’s 
operations in 2020/2021; this will 
continue to test the resilience of 
the organisation. There is, however, 
determination that this turnaround 
will take place. The year ahead will 
see clarity, determination and a review 
of rail policy aimed at strengthening 
rail transport as the back bone of an 
efficient public transport system. 

As the basis for the organisation 
achieving its mandate, it will be 
critical that PRASA protects and 
increases its revenues going forward. 
Service delivery and recovery will 
remain core to the business. PRASA 
has experienced unprecedented 
levels of theft and vandalism to its 
rail and infrastructure network. In 
addressing this, we must waste no 
time. Investment will be directed at 
high-demand corridors where we 
can maximise our returns through 
increased patronage. For quick 
turnaround on maintenance and 
repairs, the regions will need to 
be strengthened with capabilities 
devolved to appropriate, functional and 
resourced authorities

Focus Areas for the Coming Year 

In the coming year and the outer 
years, in turning the business around 
PRASA will focus on the following key 
areas: 

(1) Achieving stability in key 
management and skilled positions. 

(2) Strengthening good governance. 
(3) Ensuring the safety and security of 

operations and passengers. 
(4) Ensuring reliability and availability 

of rail transport. 
(5) Putting in place strong regional 

operations as centres of 
excellence.

(6) Consequence management.

If we can achieve these, we will 
know that PRASA is back on a path 
to sustainable operations and to 
attracting lost patronage. Securing 
our permit for the year from the Rail 
Safety Regulator (RSR) and achieving a 
three-year permit regime would signal 
stability in our operations. 
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The reporting period under review 
has not been an easy one for PRASA. 
Our organisational resilience has 
been tested to the core; our resolve 
to deliver on our mandate has been 
significantly disrupted; and we have 
seen the lowest business performance 
in a five-year period. However, 
PRASA remains resilient and focused 
on delivering on its mandate. The 
appointment of the Board of Control 
and filling of key positions in executive 
management stands us in good stead 
to stabilise and turn around the 
organisation. 

As we report the company’s 
performance for the 2019/20 period, 
I am proud to note that as a team 
we made significant strides, albeit 
under difficult conditions, to achieve 
organisational focus on providing 
safe, reliable, affordable and clean 
passenger rail and bus services. 
Despite this progress, public 
perception of PRASA continues to 
be poor for a number of reasons 
including:

• Disclaimer audit outcome by the 
Auditor-General of South Africa.

• High turnover at senior manager 
level since 2015.

• Imprudent business decisions 
by senior leadership leading to 
disastrous consequences.

• Little or no consequence for 
management and compliance 
failures throughout the 
organisation.

STATEMENT BY THE PRASA ACTING GROUP CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

• Inadequate record keeping and, in 
some instances, no records at all.

• Operating systems not fully 
deployed and, in some cases, non-
existent.

• Outdated, and in certain instances 
non-existent, policies and 
operating procedures.

• Inadequate Supply Chain 
Management (SCM) processes 
hampering procurement of 
necessary goods and services.

• Poor implementation of projects 
and programmes including the 
critical Capital Programme.

• Numerous instances of irregular 
expenditure and an increase in 
repeat findings which are not 
addressed.

• Burdening of the organisation by 
exorbitant and long-outstanding 
liabilities.

The management team has its work 
cut out to address these issues. The 
successes recorded in this report 
have to be credited to the entire team 
(management and staff) because when 
they were called to support the vision 
for the renewal of PRASA, they rolled 
up their sleeves and got back into the 
trenches to reclaim PRASA’s prestige. 

The road ahead to fix PRASA will 
not be an easy one. However, with 
the Board and management team 
in place there is certainly no other 
option but to stabilise and turn PRASA 
around. PRASA is a critical part of the 
economic eco-system and may not be 
allowed to fail.

Strategic Highlights

Strategically, our performance is and 
will continue to be guided by the Apex 
Priorities of the 6th Administration 
spanning the 2019-2024 period. We 
are convinced that these priorities, 
when diligently implemented, will put 
the country on a positive trajectory 
towards achieving the 2030 NDP 
vision. These priorities have been 
translated into the strategy of 
the company and form part of the 
performance plans of the various 
business units within PRASA.

Thandeka Mabija
Acting Group CEO

When the generals 
are weak and 
without authority; 
when their orders 
are not clear and 
distinct; when there 
are no fixed duties 
assigned to officers 
and men, and the 
ranks are formed in 
a slovenly manner, 
the result is utter 
disorganization.

Sun Tzu, The Art of War 
(adaptation)
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MTSF Priority % Progress/Achievements

Priority 1: Economic Transformation and Job Creation During the year under review, PRASA created a total of 397 jobs. 
The following is the breakdown:
(1) Autopax   5
(2) Metrorail   310
(3) PRASA Corporate  18
(4) PRASA CRES                  19
(5) PRASA Technical  2
(6) hosholoza Meyl  43

Priority 2:  Education, Skills and Health PRASA trained 4 314 employees during the year under review.

Priority 4: Spatial integration, human settlements and 
local government.

PRASA has started processes of engaging with municipalities 
on their development plans and how we best integrate our 
operations so as to respond to spatial challenges. Our stakeholder 
engagement team has been established and continues to work with 
communities around our stations.

Priority 6: A capable, ethical and developmental state. As stated in our Strategic Outcomes, revenue enhancement 
initiatives were undertaken to strengthen PRASA’s financial 
position. PRASA CRES has shown a slight increase in revenue 
whilst Metrorail and Autopax showed declines.

Through the task team established to deal with the findings of 
the Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA) and to build a good 
corporate governance culture at PRASA, a number of initiatives 
were undertaken.  These were:
• Consequence Management
• Investigations by the Special Investigating Unit (SIU)
• Dealing with the AGSA’s findings and clearing 75% of the 

Category A findings. 

Ministerial Priority Mandate Progress/Achievements

1.  Review of PRASA’s organizational design and business model An Operating Model Team was set up to look at the 
redesign of PRASA’s organisational model and its ability to 
respond to the challenges that face the organisation.

2.   Addressing all matters raised in the AGSA’s report and 
ensuring no repeat findings

PRASA had one hundred and eighty-five (185) category A 
and one hundred and thirty-six (136) category B findings. 
Category A are serious findings which have materialised; 
Category B are those which may become serious if not 
addressed. PRASA established a Task Team to address 
these findings. To date, 75% of Category A findings have 
been addressed; 19% are in progress.
 
PRASA and the SIU concluded a secondment agreement 
in terms of which the SIU has seconded four investigators 
to PRASA to investigate seventeen material irregularities 
identified by the AGSA.

3. Engagement with other state-owned enterprises (SOEs) to 
unlock blockages that negatively affect operations.

PRASA has established formal engagement forums with 
Eskom and Transnet. Structured committees meet on a 
regular basis to address matters of common interest and 
concern. The committees address the following issues: 
Operational; Commercial; Technical; Property and Assets; 
and Manufacturing.

Operating Highlights

In December 2019, the Minister of Transport dissolved the Board of Control and appointed an Administrator. The Administrator 
and management team committed to a 9 point-plan to address the Ministerial Mandate aimed at turning PRASA’s fortunes 
around.  

The following are highlights of our operational successes in line with the Mandates in no order of priority

Table 1: Successes on MTSF

Table 2: Achievements on the Ministerial Mandate
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Ministerial Priority Mandate Progress/Achievements

4.  Effecting consequence management and supporting 
investigations by law enforcement authorities.

Consequence management has been intensified and the 
following officials have been dismissed:
• Mr. Kabelo Mantsane, General Manager: Business 

Continuity
• Mr. Chris Moloi, Acting Head: Protection Services, 

PRASA Rail
• Mr. Stephen Nkhuna, Senior Manager: Strategy and 

Systems
• Mr. Ronnie Mzwandile Khumalo, Senior Manager: 

Protection Services 
The disciplinary process relating to six (6) other officials 
is at an advanced stage. Lawyers are finalising the draft 
charges for these six officials.

5. Accelerating interventions to improve operational 
performance.

PRASA has established a Service Recovery Committee 
and Capital Programme and Modernisation Acceleration 
Committee. These have identified and started work on key 
corridors and have begun to set targets for operational 
performance by business unit. The process of monitoring 
and evaluating performance is ongoing.

6. Building capacity to support interventions aimed at 
recovering the system by establishing requisite supplier 
panels through competitive bidding or other means 
permissible.

The Service Recovery and Capital Programme Committees 
have put in place mechanisms to provide the necessary 
support.

7. Bolstering security interventions across all corridors. A security strategy has been developed and is being rolled 
out in support of service resumption plans. Insourcing of 
security is in progress to protect PRASA’s infrastructure 
and assets 

8. Expediting implementation of the Modernisation Programme, 
with priority focus on fencing, signaling, perway and station 
upgrades.

The Capital Programme and Modernisation Acceleration 
committee has been established to focus on these key 
issues.

9. Urgently develop capacity to manage PRASA’s Capital 
Programme, working with other state entities in the short 
term.

Engagements with the Coega Development Corporation 
(CDC) are ongoing to assist us with the necessary 
capacity. We are looking at concluding a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) with the CDC to this effect.

Operational Challenges

Challenges related to safety and the security of company 
assets and infrastructure could potentially end our 
operations and the vision for the renewal of PRASA. 
These challenges have prompted the company to focus on 
safeguarding infrastructure and curtailing criminality. The 
multi-pronged approach that PRASA is taking to combating 
infrastructure sabotage and theft will be enabled through the 
following interventions.

• Intention to insource security personnel before the end of 
2020.

• Collaboration with multiple stakeholders including the 
South African Police Service (SAPS), local communities 
and other security structures to strengthen our 
intelligence systems.

The theft and vandalism of railway infrastructure, including 
perway, were highlighted in the Safety Operating Permit 
issued by the RSR. Pleasing - or rather bitter-sweet - to us is 
that, compared with previous years, the Permit had only this 
one special condition this year. Our biggest challenge has 
been to keep our operations and infrastructure safe and to 
reduce vandalism and theft of our assets.

The performance of PRASA in terms of operational safety 
shows an improving trend as indicated in the graphs below: 
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Salient Financial Information

Revenue

Especially with the continuing decline in revenue generation 
in the Rail and Autopax divisions, PRASA’s revenue remains 
materially reliant on the subsidy from the Department of 
Transport (DoT). Fare revenue for the year under review 
dropped to R1,049 billion; this was 47% lower than the 
budget of R1,9 billion and R0.5 billion lower than the 
previous year. Rental income for the year contributed 
R726m to total revenue; this was in line with the budget 
target for the year but 6% below the previous year’s 
amount. As the figures below show, PRASA continues to 
generate significant interest income as part of its revenue 
mix.

Expenditure

PRASA’s total cost base was 12.5% lower than the budget for 
the year, with savings mainly in employee-related and other 
cost drivers. PRASA’s expenditure is mainly fixed employee-
related costs which comprise 52% of the total cash outflow 
of the business. During the reporting year, employee-
related costs were 11% lower than budgeted for. General 
expenditure includes significant fixed and variable cost 
drivers including security, municipal costs, materials, leases 
(including locomotives), insurance, health and risk (cleaning 
and Safety, Health, Environment and Quality (SHEQ)) and 
information and communications technology (ICT) costs, 
including data and communication.

The expenditure mix is shown below.

Graph 1
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Captial Expenditure

Implementation of projects across all PRASA’s capital 
programmes continued at lower levels than anticipated, 
resulting in a capital spend of R2.4 billion against a capital 
budget of R10,2 billion (revised to R8,1 billion). Reduced 
execution of the capital programme has a direct correlation 
with reduced service levels and fare revenue. This requires 
PRASA to focus on recovering train services across all our 

Performance at a glance

PRASA performance for the year against predetermined objectives is not pleasing at all.  The table hereunder is an assessment 
of our performance for the year.  In the year under review we only achieved 20 of our 114 indicators as a business which 
translates into achieving about 17,5% of our targets.

Table 3: Performance 

Pre-determined Objective Achieved Not Achieved # of indicators

Objective 1 : Strengthening Governance and Stabilizing Organization 1 4 5

Objective 2: Improving the Financial Position 5 7 12

Objective 3: Improving Commuter and Passenger Travel Experience 7 20 27

Objective 4: Ensuring Reliability and Availability of the Service & 
Infrastructure

2 9 11

Objective 5: Managing & Improving the Property condition: Railway 
Stations & workplace Facilities

0 3 3

Objective 6: Improving Passenger Rail Travel Experience through 
Modernisation

0 5 5

Objective 7: Protecting People, Assets & infrastructure 0 4 4

Objective 8: Asset management & maintenance 0 3 3

Objective 9: Exploiting the Assets through Property Development and 
Commercialization

0 5 5

Objective 10: Procuring for the business 2 14 16

Objective 11: Effective Management Capital Programme 0 4 4

Objective 12: Built to Last: Redefining the Organization 1 6 7

Objective 13: Building Customer and Stakeholder Confidence 2 7 9

Objective 14: Planning for Growth and Network Expansions 0 3 3

PRASA PERFORMANCE 20 94 114

17.54% 82.46%

corridors in the coming financial year and accelerating 
its capital programme. PRASA will continue to monitor 
the capital acceleration and modernisation programme, 
including the significant impact of COVID-19, in the 2020/21 
financial year.

Cost Drivers

The Revenue Enhancement and Cost Containment (RECC) 
committee has adopted a cost containment strategy 
focussing on key  cost drivers within the various divisions; 
managing them optimally; and regular monitoring against 
targets set. 

Additionally, budget revisions and cost driver analysis have 
been embedded in the 2020/21 financial year, creating a 
critical path towards self-sufficiency over a 5-year period. 

Performance at a glance

As the table below shows, PRASA’s performance against 
predetermined objectives for the year under review is not 
pleasing at all. As a business, we achieved only 20 of our 114 
indicators, or about 17,5% of our targets.

Graph 3: Expenditure: Before Depreciation, Amortisation
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In dealing with our performance going forward from 2020/21, we have rationalised the large number of indicators (114) of the 
2019/20 financial year. The graphs below indicate the major contributors to our non-performance during the reporting year. At 
the heart of the non-performance were train delays caused by theft and vandalism of our infrastructure, especially signalling 
and Overhead Traction Equipment (OHTE).

Delays and, in some instances, forced cancellation of trains, have impacted negatively on our service provision and our ability 
to provide a predictable service. The graph below shows the percentage distribution of the contributors to cancellations of our 
scheduled trains.

Graph 4: Train Delays

Graph 5: Train Cancellations
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Thandeka Mabija
Acting Group CEO

As a result of train delays and cancellations, we have lost patronage. The graph below shows Metrorail’s decline in patronage 
between 2009/10 and 2019/20. Our focus for the coming year must be to get our trains back on the rails and protect our 
infrastructure investments so that we can provide a reliable and predictable service to the commuting public.

Graph 6: Trains and Patronage



PRASA 2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 15

Provide rail and bus transport that is safe, affordable and 
reliable by Metrorail, Main Line Passenger Services (MLPS) 
and Autopax through maintaining and modernising the 
Rolling Stock, Bus Fleet, Infrastructure, Facilities, Stations 
and Security.

This goal addresses PRASA’s main mandate of providing 
commuter rail and long-haul rail and bus services in the 
public interest.

The strategic objectives under this goal are:

• Service recovery: Ensure predictable and reliable train 
and bus services through operational planning and 
recovery of the fleet (Metrorail, MLPS and Autopax) and 
infrastructure, facilities and stations for Rail. 

• Safety and Security Management: Improve safety 
management in line with RSR requirements and 
implement integrated security technology and physical 
security.  

• Capital Programme and Modernisation Acceleration: 
Develop a capital implementation process and 
implement it so as to accelerate service recovery and 
delivery through the modernisation of the rail system.

The aim of “Rail and Bus transport that works” is to 
restore service performance for all passenger services 
provided by PRASA (Metrorail, Autopax and MLPS) during 
the 2020/21 year and to further stabilise recovery over 
the remaining two years of the Medium Term Expenditure 
Framework (MTEF) period 2021/22 to 2022/23. Thereafter, 
implementation of further growth strategies will become 
possible. The concerns of the RSR will be addressed 
through embedding a culture of safety and rolling out 
security technology to address security challenges. The 
Capital Programme and the modernisation acceleration 
projects and programmes are mostly multi-year in nature. 
Implementing them impacts directly on the services 
provided as well as addressing security challenges such 
as, in the short term, fencing or walling corridors in “hot 
spots”, with other critical areas earmarked for fencing over 
the rest of the MTEF period.

GOAL 1: Rail and Bus transport that works

An organisation that does business ethically and efficiently, 
that places commuters and passengers at the top of the 
agenda and that is financially sound. 

This goal incorporates the second mandate to use PRASA’s 
assets to generate revenue and to deal with governance 
matters as indicated in the reports generated by the 
investigations of the AGSA, the Public Protector South 
Africa (PPSA) and the National Treasury. It also includes 
reviewing the organisational design and business model 
across all functional and operational areas and employees.

The strategic objectives under this goal are: 
• Revenue enhancement and cost containment: Review 

the organisational design and business model; address 
revenue protection and generation for commuter and 
passenger transport as well as properties and assets 
to ensure a sustainable organisation that is financially 
sound. 

• Governance: Address all AGSA findings; ensure 
effective consequence management; and establish 
and implement robust policies, systems and processes 
across the organisation.

Over the MTEF period, PRASA will continue to embed 
the work begun in 2020/21. Actions related to revenue 
enhancement and cost containment are on track. These 
include acquisition of integrated ticketing systems to 
modernise ticketing and access control; addressing staff 
levels in alignment with the requirements of modernisation; 
increased rental revenue; revenue from non-core 
assets and commercial spaces for additional revenue; 
implementing ICT enablers that address shortcomings in 
operational or governance areas; and ensuring that costs 
are managed and contained. 

STRATEGIC OUTCOMES

GOAL 2: A capable organization
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PRASA is the implementation arm of the National Department 
of Transport (the sole shareholder) and is primarily mandated in 
terms of the Legal Succession Act (Act 9 of 1989) and the South 
African Transport Services Act (Act 9 of 1989, as amended).

The main objective and business of PRASA is to, “Ensure 
that, at the request of the National Department of Transport, 
rail commuter services are provided within, to and from the 
Republic in the public interest and provide, in consultation with 
the National Department of Transport, long haul passenger 
rail and bus services within, to and from the Republic in terms 
of the principles set out in section 4 of the National Land 
Transport Act (2000) (Act No. 22 of 2000, as amended).

The second objective and secondary business of PRASA is that it 
shall generate income from the exploitation of assets acquired 
by it.” 

A further requirement is that, in carrying out its objectives and 
business, PRASA shall have due regard for key Government 
social, economic and transport policy objectives 

Applicable policies and legislation 

Policies 

• National Transport Policy
• National Development Plan
• Public Transport Strategy

Legislation specific to Transport

• Constitution of the Republic of South Africa
• The National Land Transport Act (Act 5 of 2009)
• The National Rail Safety Regulator Act (Act 16 of 2002)

LEGISLATIVE MANDATE
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PRASA has continued to lose 
patronage for a number of reasons 
and this has led to the declining 
fortunes of the business. The main 
challenges are:

• the lack and/or absence of 
investment in infrastructure

• delayed delivery of new rolling 
stock

• vandalism and theft  of the PRASA 
network, undermining the work of 
restoring the business.

The immediate focus for PRASA is 
to turn the business around in line 
with the Ministerial Mandate. In 
the medium to long term, PRASA’s 
business strategy must begin to drive 
business imperatives which must:

• Stabilise the business.
• Stabilise revenue and stop 

leakages while containing costs.
• Set up requirements for service 

recovery in all key corridors.
• Invest in security to secure the 

network and operations.

In stabilising the business, PRASA 
must arrest the decline in service 
levels and patronage by providing a 
safe, predictable and reliable service 
that commuters and passengers can 
plan around. Once this is achieved, the 
business can then develop a timetable 
that drives service provision based on 
a charter that commits PRASA to a 
particular level of service excellence.

Once the business has been stabilised, 
it becomes important to stop revenue 
and cost leakages as these will 
undermine revenue enhancement 
initiatives to improve PRASA’s cash 
position. With fare revenue declining 
because of falling patronage numbers, 
protecting our revenue base is critical 
so that the business stops its reliance 
on the subsidy. This creates inertia 
and stops ingenuity in finding other 
mechanisms to fund the business.

Other than cost containment and 
revenue stabilisation, PRASA needs to 
invest heavily in protecting its assets 
and particularly its infrastructure 
(OHTE, sub-stations, station 

infrastructure, signalling and perway) 
and rolling stock as these are what 
will enable us to provide a reliable, 
predictable and safe service.

For PRASA to continue on an upward 
trajectory with certain tenets (or what 
we term key success factors) that will 
drive the business must be shared 
across the organisation. These factors, 
which have been referred to above, 
are:

• Safety
• Reliability
• Affordability.

The culture of safety must be 
embedded in the organisation so 
that everyone understands that at 
the core of our work is to provide 
our patrons with a safe service and 
our employees with a safe working 
environment. Going forward, safety 
will define who we are and what we do; 
it is our responsibility not only to meet 
the RSR’s safety requirements but to 
exceed them.

A culture of safety not only provides a 
safe, predictable and reliable service 
to our commuters but protects our 
network and assets. Our service 
charter, which will be finalised in the 
2020/21 financial year will serve as a 
contract between ourselves and the 
commuting public, will be premised on 
our having the resources to deliver an 
excellent service. 

Safety and reliability are precursors 
to an affordable service because 
they lead to increased patronage 
and increased fare revenue. Finding 
other means to augment PRASA’s 
revenue through a balanced funding 
model will preoccupy us in the years 
ahead as this is crucial to finding the 
optimum balance between subsidy, 
fare revenue and investment revenue 
from exploitation of our asset portfolio. 
Generating this investment revenue 
will involve building partnerships and 
co-developments and increasing retail 
opportunities in our existing space

STRATEGY  EXECUTION

A culture of safety 
not only provides a 
safe, predictable and 
reliable service to 
our commuters but 
protects our network 
and assets. 
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PRASA RAIL

PRASA Rail, as the organisation’s passenger rail operating 
division, is the custodian of the mandate to deliver commuter 
rail services in the country’s metropolitan areas and 
long-distance (inter-city) rail services within, to and from 
the borders of the Republic of South Africa. As a mass 
public transport carrier, PRASA Rail is entrusted with the 
responsibility of ensuring that the organisation: 

• Operates a safe, predictable, reliable rail commuter and 
passenger services.

• Provides quality rail network and services.
• Positions passenger rail services as the backbone of 

public transport and a travel mode of choice.
• Gears itself for deployment of the train system of the 

future.

Unfortunately, PRASA Rail performance has declined 
drastically in recent years, with commuter services at 
their lowest ever performance levels. During the reporting 
year, on-time train performance was at 62.34% and 9% for 
Metrorail and MLPS respectively. 21.17% of trains scheduled 
for Metrorail and 23% for MLPS were cancelled, with an 
average delay of over 40 minutes on the Metrorail services 
and over 150 minutes on MLPS.

In 2013/14, Metrorail transported 543 million paying 
passenger trips. By 2019/20, this number had declined 
to 125.24 million, while MLPS transported only 205 793 
passengers in the year under review. This corresponds to the 
low Customer Satisfaction Index (CSI) of 53% and 65% for 
Metrorail and MLPS respectively. 

The unavailability and unreliability of rolling stock and 
infrastructure, key enablers of regular, reliable and on-
time train services, can no longer guarantee that rail is 
the backbone of public transport. Theft and continuous 
vandalism of these assets (rolling stock, stations and 
infrastructure) due to inadequate/lack of security has led to 
the rapid collapse of services, especially in the recent past. 
Availability of train sets (rolling stock) had decreased from 
288 sets in 2013/14 to a mere 110 by the end of 2019/20, 
with only 45% being correctly configured per standard. 
This decline happened despite the General Overhaul (GO) 
programme and repair interventions to the value of billions 
of rand. 

Rail Operations has identified key interventions that 
will curb further decline in passenger patronage whilst 
endeavouring to recover lost customers and stabilising 
service performance levels to offer customers a more 
predictable and reliable service. This will include improved 
communication with customers on the status of services 
and improvements over the turn-around period. However, 
its execution is premised on successful implementation of 
the Technical Unit’s rescue plan that addresses improved 
availability and reliability of rolling stock and infrastructure.

DELIVERING ON THE MANDATE

PRASA Corporate Real Estate Solutions (CRES)

Over the past few years, the face of PRASA’s property 
portfolio has evolved as a result of positive changes made in 
its facilities and/or stock. In this regard, and in line with the 
organisation’s modernisation goals, deliberate efforts have 
been made to maintain, upgrade and improve the condition 
of railway stations, depots and office buildings in key focus 
areas to enhance commuter and/or user experience. At the 
same time, levels of commercial activity within the portfolio 
have increased, thus changing railway stations from mere 
thoroughfares to places where people meet, eat, shop, bank, 
do business and travel. 

This has produced both tangible and intangible benefits, 
including a significant improvement in the entity’s financial 
position as the portfolio value grew. Recognition and 
awareness of the PRASA brand within the property industry 
has increased, with more blue-chip tenants trading in 
portfolio facilities. General aesthetics and the working 
condition of portfolio facilities have improved, with related 
changes in users’ Living Standard Measure (LSM).  

This realised success is attributed mainly to PRASA 
CRES’ effective planning and implementation of the 
Property Growth, Property Improvement and Maintenance 
programmes. Outlined below are programme highlights 
achieved over a period including the 2019/2020 financial year.

Portfolio growth

Growth in portfolio revenue increased over the past years 
but dropped slightly (by 1%) in the 2019/2020 financial year 
due to the slump in the economic conditions and closure of 
certain corridors. As shown in the graph below, operating 
revenue decreased from R652 million in the 2018/2019 
financial year to R649 million in 2019/20. As the graph shows, 
the Division has been on an upward trend as operating 
revenue has significantly increased in recent years in line 
with the objectives of the Real Estate Strategy. 

Graph 7: PRASA CRES Operating Revenue
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Tenants such as Clicks, U Care Medical Centre and Spar have been added in the commercialised station area at Park Station. 

The value of the investment portfolio has shown very significant growth, from R924 million in March 2012 to R4.8 billion in March 
2020. The investment portfolio is made up of acquired development leases (11), some stations with commercialised facilities and 
land. This growth has strengthened the financial position of PRASA CRES; the graph below shows the improvement in value over 
the eight years from 2012 to 2020

Property Improvement 

At the core of PRASA CRES’ delivery is an offering of improved facilities creating a safe and functional environment that 
enhances commuter and/or user experience. To deliver property improvements, the Division receives an annual capital budget 
allocation. 

Between 2012/13 and 2019/20, 513 property improvements were completed. However, the number dropped significantly in the 
2019/2020 financial year due to SCM-related delays, with only two (2) completed. The graph below shows the achievements over 
nine (9) years.

Graph 8: Investment Value

Graph 9: Property Improvement Projects
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Property Maintenance  

The Facilities Management (FM) function is one of PRASA CRES’ core deliverables as its output adds value in the provision 
of both rail commuter and long haul passenger rail services by offering clean, functional and well maintained portfolio stock 
including railway stations, workplace facilities, vacant land and commercial and/or residential facilities. Included in the FM 
offering are the services shown in the table below.

Soft services Hard Services

Station & Train Cleaning Repair & Maintenance ( Planned and Unplanned) 

Hygiene Services Electrical,

Pest Control & Fumigation Civil,

Horticulture Mechanical,

General Waste Management Building

These services were provided during the 2019/20 financial year at scheduled daily and/or periodic intervals. Theft and vandalism 
of station portfolio facilities remains the biggest threat and continues to undermine the gains achieved over time through 
implementation of the various programmes. 

PRASA TECH

PRASA Technical is responsible for improving rail system 
performance by ensuring infrastructure reliability and 
availability as well as improving rolling stock capacity 
and availability. Implementation of the modernisation and 
engineering programmes, with priority focus on fencing, 
signalling, perway and station upgrades, plays an important 
part in achieving the above. The Division’s focus is aligned to 
ensure an improved rail service offering for commuters and 
passengers. 

PRASA Technical’s core services include:
• Modernisation programme 
• Maintenance depot upgrade/renovation
• Corridor infrastructure recovery programmes 
• Station upgrades and platform rectification
• Electrical (OHTE & substations)
• Perway, bridges and structures
• General Overhaul and refurbishment of current fleet of 

Metrorail and MLPS
• Engineering Services: Maintenance of infrastructure and 

current fleet of Metrorail and MLPS.

During the 2019/2020 FY, the Division focused on the 
following: 
• Modernisation programme 
• Increased trainset availability with 100% configuration 
• Increased infrastructure reliability and performance by 

reducing signalling and telecoms faults
• Reduced train delays and cancellations by reducing 

electrical OHTE and substation faults 
• Reduced train delays and cancellations by reducing 

perway faults 
• Reduced speed restrictions on the network

Performance for the year

• 110 trainsets were available for the year under review. 
Non-availability of mission critical, maintenance-specific 
component and material floats as a result of no long-

term refurbishing contracts for rotating machines, 
wheel sets and the supply of material contributed to 
underperformance in this area.

• The faults in perway during the year decreased nationally 
with 7% from 2018/19; the decrease was mainly due to 
improvements in the Gauteng North and South regions.

• There was an increase in electrical faults during the year. 
The main contributory factor was theft and vandalism, 
with outages due to Eskom load shedding also playing a 
part.  

• A decrease in signal faults in the period under review 
was mainly due to the new signalling system being 
commissioned on parts of the network. It should, 
however, be noted that parts of the network are under 
manual authorisation where the signalling system is not 
operational. Overall, there is some improvement but this 
is not significant due to constant theft and vandalism of 
both the old and new signalling systems. 

• 137 km of the network is still under speed restrictions. 
The lack of long-term contracts for tamping machines 
that increase the Track Quality Index has contributed to 
slow progress in this regard.

• Many critical projects, including the depot modernisation 
projects, have not progressed past the procurement 
phase. Projects are behind schedule.

Challenges faced

• Leadership instability across the organisation.
• Unprecedented levels of theft and vandalism of rail 

infrastructure and rolling stock has had a major impact.
• Limited technical skills and capacity in the Division.
• SCM-related challenges affecting execution of the capital 

programme.
• The Action Plan for the future commenced with re-

building the technical capacity in the Division. This was 
supplemented with requisite supplier panels through 
competitive bidding processes.

• Working with other SOEs to assist with capacity and with 
managing the capital programme in the short-term.

Table 4: PRASA CRES Operating Revenue
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• Consolidating the technical and engineering functions 
into the PRASA Technical Division to address the current 
fragmentation and associated shortcomings.

• Capacitating the SCM function to deal with delays and the 
increased number of projects in the Division. 

• Implementation of the security strategy and plan that are 
crucial for implementation of projects; this is currently 
receiving high priority attention.

AUTOPAX

Autopax Passenger Services (SOC) Ltd., also known as 
Autopax, is a wholly-owned PRASA subsidiary. The company 
derives its mandate from its shareholder’s compact. It 
manages the PRASA Group’s bus business with the mandate 
to grow market share, expand the business and create 
shareholder value. In terms of the Legal Succession Act, 
Autopax exists to service the primary mandate of PRASA 
which is to provide, in consultation with the DoT, long-haul 
passenger rail and bus services within, to and from the 
Republic in terms of the principles set out in Section 23 of the 
Legal Succession Act. PRASA has also mandated Autopax to 
provide feeder services to Metrorail and to support PRASA 
Rail operations in cases of emergencies and occupations.

Autopax service offering

Currently, Autopax primarily services long distance routes 
and, due to vehicle non-availability, limited charter and rail 
support. The long distance operations are operated under 
two brands, Translux and City to City, targeting lower- and 
middle-income groups and with scheduled and duplicate 
services. Charter services provide buses for private hire to, 
amongst others, church groups, tourist operators and the 
general public.
 
Autopax supports PRASA rail when it is experiencing 
challenges resulting from incidental disruptions in their 
services; it also offers feeder services.

Background

Autopax has been experiencing severe cash flow constraints 
which have had a negative impact on the business and its 
ability to adequately sustain itself. The cash flow shortage 
culminated in terminated supplies and/or services which 
in turn resulted in buses being taken off the road due to 
maintenance constraints. Autopax therefore currently finds 
itself in a position where vehicles are not operational for a 
number of reasons, ranging from minor to moderate to major 
repairs not being possible. These include accident-damaged 
vehicles and vehicles with expired licenses. The revenue 
generating capability of the company is severely impacted.

The Autopax short term strategy

To address these problems, Autopax has developed a short-
term service recovery plan aimed at improving the financial 
stability and sustainability of the organisation in a very short 
time. The following key short-term deliverables have been 
identified and are being implemented: 

• Increasing the number of operational buses to meet 
operational requirements.

• Reviewing the Autopax mandate in consultation with 

the shareholder and reviewing the operating model to 
strengthen rail support.

• Diversifying revenue streams and strengthening internal 
controls.

• Reducing the cost of doing business.
• Improving Autopax operational efficiencies and improving 

customer experience.
• Preparing adequately for the divisionalisation of Autopax.

Autopax long-term strategy

Whilst the organisation continues to implement the short-
term service recovery plan, Autopax management and Board 
have crafted a turnaround strategy aimed at turning the 
organisation around. In developing the strategy, Autopax has 
identified the following critical areas as key success factors:
• Reviewing of the Autopax mission, vision and operating 

model.
• Alignment of the long-term strategy with the NDP and 

Government/DoT priorities.
• Alignment of the strategy with the PRASA Administrator’s 

mandate and deliverables.
• Alignment with the MTSF. 

The organisation achieved 22% of its set targets for the 
2019/2020 financial year. Total revenue was negatively 
impacted by the shortage of buses to operate the budgeted 
scheduled services, charters and rail services. The 
organisation continued to experience severe cash flow 
problems and was not able to meet its financial obligations. 
The situation got to a point where the organisation was not 
able to pay critical suppliers, leading to major suppliers 
closing accounts and some taking the legal action against 
Autopax. One of the major contributors to the business’ 
performance was when the diesel supplier closed the 
account. This resulted in a drastic reduction in services; 
the few that operated did so on a cash basis which posed a 
huge risk to the organisation. The issue of diesel availability 
also resulted in suspension of the coastal services, with no 
revenue generated on that corridor. All other corridors were 
reduced to a bare minimum.

The organisation also experienced a high number of vehicles 
off the road (VORs) due to mechanical breakdowns, accidents 
or expired Certificates of Fitness (COFs) and licenses. 
These challenges remained a constraint on the business. 
The shortage of buses had a negative impact on revenue 
generated, on the number of passengers conveyed, on time 
servicing of buses and on times of departures and arrivals. It 
impacted our service quality negatively.

During the year under review, Autopax experienced taxi 
intimidation in the Eastern Cape/KwaZulu-Natal (KZN) N3 
route. This resulted in one driver being killed and another 
injured. During this period, drivers embarked on a work 
stoppage, citing fear for their lives. This resulted in a loss of 
revenue for 13 days, estimated at between R1.5m and R2m 
per day. This intimidation impacted our loading capacity 
which was reduced from an average of 70% to below 60%. 

The future of Autopax within the PRASA Group

In 2018, the Autopax Board of Directors and the PRASA Board 
approved the conversion of Autopax Passenger Services 
(SOC) Ltd from a wholly-owned subsidiary of PRASA to a 



PRASA 2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT22

division of PRASA. The divisionalisation process of Autopax 
is underway and awaiting the necessary approvals from the 
shareholder.

Divisionalisation of Autopax

The divisionalisation of Autopax finds expression in the 
PRASA Get on Track strategy document as an option that 
the shareholder has approved. This envisaged process 
will see Autopax being deregistered as a company and the 
business activities continuing as a division of PRASA. This 
option presents several synergies within PRASA, in the 
main directed towards improving operations, in particular 
Metrorail and Autopax services.

The decision to divisionalise Autopax has been supported 
by the shareholder’s Board of Control; however, it is subject 
to final approval by the Minister of Transport. Through 
this model, PRASA will be able to realise maximum 
benefit from the value of Autopax as a business. However, 
divisionalisation of Autopax on its own will not turn it around; 
other operational and structural challenges highlighted in 
the strategy must be addressed. 

INTERSITE ASSET INVESTMENT

Intersite Asset Investments (SOC) Ltd (Intersite) is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of PRASA. It has been in existence for nine 
years following its restructuring in 2010. Intersite’s main 
purpose and objective is to carry out PRASA’s secondary 
mandate of commercialising its assets. As the investment 
arm of PRASA, the company is mandated to leverage 
PRASA’s large asset base, facilitate private sector investment 
in these assets and focus on new and innovative ways of 
generating income on commercial grounds.

Performance

In the 2019/20 FY, Intersite’s financial results reflected a 
loss of R14.4m compared with R18.125m in the prior year. 
With the exception of an outstanding retainer receivable for 
the 2017/18 financial year, 2019/20 is the last period that 
Intersite is meant to receive a retainer from the PRASA 
Group. The entity is to start to generate revenues from 
investments in property or real estate developments and 
telecoms assets including optic fibre commercialisation, and 
in this way become self-sustaining.
Intersite generated minimal revenues from its core 
operations which include property developments and 
investments and from optic fibre commercialisation due to 
the lack of capital needed to invest in qualifying projects.

Challenges

Key impediments to performance for Intersite since its 
inception:

• Its unfunded mandate.
• Its capital budget allocation from PRASA.
• Its inability to borrow funds from financial institutions due 

to restrictions placed on PRASA and the fact that PRASA 
is a Schedule 3B entity in terms of the Public Finance 
Management Act (PFMA).

Plans to address the challenges

To address the above-stated challenges and to give effect 
to strategic directives by the Executive Authority, the DoT, 
the PRASA Group Board is giving special attention to the 
secondary mandate and the need for rationalisation of 
entities within PRASA, including those active in the property 
and real estate space. 

As part of the PRASA turnaround strategy, at its February 
2019 sitting the PRASA Group Board Governance Committee 
recommended that PRASA Corporate Real Estate Solutions 
(“PRASA CRES”), a division of PRASA, and Intersite, a PRASA 
subsidiary, be consolidated into a single entity. Amongst the 
issues that consolidation would help to address are:

• The strategic re-alignment and positioning of the 
secondary mandate.

• Strategic repositioning of the PRASA property portfolio. 
• Rationalisation of similar functions
• Addressing overlapping mandates and roles.



PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

As reported in the previous financial years, PRASA’s performance of in terms of its predetermined objectives has continued the 
decline. Safety performance for the year improved from the previous financial year. Occurrences reportable to the RSR show 
an improvement against the target set for 2019/20 for Metrorail of 15%. Serious occurrences on open lines (outside of yards), 
collisions, derailments and signals passed at danger (SPADs) all show a downward trend.

Ministerial Objective Focus Area # Performance 
Indicator

Baseline 
2017/18

2018/19 
Actual

2019/20 
Target

2019/20 
Actual
Performance

Metrorail
Service Recovery 
to focus on rolling 
stock availability 
and reliability, 
infrastructure 
availability and 
reliability and train 
performance.

METRORAIL 1 Metrorail 
Trains on 
time as % 
of trains 
operated / 
run

73.84% 66.12% 85% 62.34%

2 Metrorail  
train set 
availability

226 183 291 110

3 Configuration 
of train sets 
to norm

43% 41% 100% 51%

4 Reduced 
speed 
restrictions 
on network

143 km 169 km <100km 137km

5 MLPS on-
time arrivals

16% 13% 50% 9%

6 MLPS 
locomotive 
availability

60% 19%

Safety Management Rail Safety 
Regulator 
permit 
conditions 
and directives

9a RSR permit 
conditions

100% 
Compliance

100%

9b RSR 
directives

100% 
Compliance

39%

Accelerate 
implementation of 
the modernisation 
programme

Capacity 
of PRASA 
to manage 
capital 
projects

Capital 
Budget Spend

R6.11bn R4.580bn R10.2bn R2.414bn

Table 4: PRASA CRES Operating Revenue
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The reasons for performance levels 
are as follow: 

METRORAIL: 

Train set availability declined by 
51,3% to 110 train sets. The train sets 
(Rolling stock)  available to provide 
train services (trains) is the major 
reason for a reduced service of 478 018 
trains scheduled for 2019/20 against 
639 007 of 2017/18 a decline of 25.2%. 
The worsening availability of train sets, 
in the main further reduced the trains 
operated to 376 813 or 21.17% less 
than the trains scheduled. As result of 
train sets not been available, train sets 
are also not configured in most lines 
to the standard number of coaches as 
per train configuration requirements 
for the line or colloquially termed 
short sets.

Train set availability was affected by 
continued train fires especially in 
Western Cape as well as the inability 
of the organization to maintain train 
sets due to unavailability of critical 
components and spares, due to 
long term contracts not been in 
places since 2017/18 as well as the 
cancellation of General Overhaul 
contracts, due to irregularity of these 
contracts. New contracts to restore 
the number of train sets to operate the 
trains scheduled remains outstanding.

New signaling 
systems are being 
installed (3-5 year 
projects) with major 
progress made in 
Western Cape in the 
financial year as well 
as in Gauteng

Trains on time of the 376 813 trains 
declined by 11.5 percentage points 
since 2018/19. Major reasons for 
this decline is on the Infrastructure 
side, where the signalling is the 
major contributor, 45,7% to train 
delays. Signaling not working leads 
to abnormal train working (similar to 
traffic lights out of order) that require 
significant reduction in speed of trains, 
thus train delays, but more importantly 
present a high risk for train accidents. 

Signaling is prone to vandalism and 
theft  and obsolescence. New signaling 
systems are being installed (3-5 year 
projects) with major progress made 
in Western Cape in the financial year 
as well as in Gauteng. Theft and 
vandalism of the signaling system 
however remain a major concern. 
Although copper is reduced in the 
new systems, control rooms are 
being targeted. Actions to harden the 
system against theft and vandalism is 
underway. 

Train speeds are also determined 
by the condition of the track (steel 
rails and related structures). Due to 
the condition of the track, for safety 
reasons, speed restrictions are set on 
the lines to ensure safety especially 
preventing train derailments. The 
speed restrictions imposed by the 
Chief Engineer per region, tend to be 
in places where the number of train 
trips are higher, exacerbating train 
delays. Progress was made to reduce 
the number of kilometers under 
places (various places) by 19% on 
2018/19. 

This was due to the use of rails 
earmarked for the KZN signaling 
projects, that was delayed as well 
as the ability to introduce some key 
maintenance contracts on on-track 
machines. This needs to be sustained 
and a long term contract be put in 
place for replacement of rails.

MAINLINE PASSENGER SERVICES

This service also remained on 
a downward trend. The on time 
performance was largely affected by 
the failure of PRASA locomotives on 
the Cape Town and Durban routes. 
The leased locomotives, as a short 
term contract from December 2019 
had limited failures and these were 
addressed with the lease and resolved. 
PRASA locomotive availability 
remained low also as result of same 
problems affecting Metrorail trains.  
An accident between a MLPS Premier 
Classé train and a Transnet Freight 
Train on 12 February 2020, resulted 
in a prohibition directive from the 
RSR that suspended all trains of 
MLPS as from 18 February 2020. This 
prohibition directive was still in place 
by year-end. 

RAIL SAFETY REGULATOR: 

The permit conditions set by the RSR 
for the safety permit of 2019/20 have 
all been met and the license extended 
till end of April 2020. Of the 41 
improvement directives set by the RSR 
for short term solutions, 25 are waiting 
for verification by the RSR whilst 16 
improvement directives have been 
complied with. Long term solutions 
are in the Capex programme to deal 
with 8 improvement directives. 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
ACCELERATION:

A significant amount of the Capital 
grant of 2019/20 was not spent. 
The R2.4bn spent were in the main 
the result of spending on existing 
capital projects such as the Rail Fleet 
Renewal Program with 10 additional 
train sets received and the re-
signalling projects in Western Cape 
and Gauteng.  The main constraint 
in the delivery of capital projects are 
procurement processes. The delay 
in procurement processes include a 
SCM policy that was not approved, 
capital change request approvals 
delayed, bid committees not convening 
and the requirement for probity and 
legal to attend most of the bid award 
committees and the Legal department 
and Internal Audit do not have 
capacity. 

The performance per pre-determined 
objective indicate only 20 or 17.5% 
of performance indicators achieved. 
Inclusive of projects delayed and 
partially achieved indicators a small 
improvement can be seen to 29.8%. 
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Priorities of the 6th Administration

PRASA: Strategic Objectives

Apex Priority 
1: Economic 
Transformation and 
Job Creation

Apex Priority 4: Spatial 
integration, human 
settlements and local 
goverment

Apex Priority 
6: A capable 
ethical and 
developmental 
state

Objective 1 : Strengthening Governance and Stabilizing 
Organization

Indicators 3,4,5 Indicators 1,2

Objective 2: Improving the Financial Position Indicators 10 Indicators 6-9,12-17

Objective 3: Improving Commuter and Passenger 
Travel Experience

Indicators 18 - 43

Objective 4: Ensuring Reliability and Availability of the 
Service & Infrastructure

Indicators 52-54 Indicators 44-51

Objective 5: Managing & Improving the Property 
condition: Railway Stations & workplace Facilities

Indicators 55-57

Objective 6: Improving Passenger Rail Travel 
Experience through Modernisation

Indicators 58-60 Indicators 61

Objective 7: Protecting People, Assets & infrastructure Indicators 65,66 Indicators 64 Indicators 63

Objective 8: Asset management & maintenance Indicators 67-69

Objective 9: Exploiting the Assets through Property 
Development and Commercialization

Indicators 74 Indicators 70-73

Objective 10: Procuring for the business Indicators 75,76,78-90

Objective 11: Effective Management Capital 
Programme

Indicators 91-94

Objective 12: Built to Last: Redefining the Organization Indicators 95-99 Indicators 100,101

Objective 13: Building Customer and Stakeholder 
Confidence

Indicators 102,105 -111 Indicators 103-104

Objective 14: Planning for Growth and Network 
Expansions

Indicators 112-114
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Detail performance per pre-determined objective:

Strategic 
Objective

# Performance 
Indicator

2018/29 Actual 
Performance

2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

Objective 1: 
Strengthening 
Governance 
and 
Stabilizing the 
Organization

Internal Control 
Framework

Not applicable Implement 
Internal Control 
Framework for 
PRASA

Partially 
achieved

An Internal Control Framework document was approved. However only two Management 
Assurance letters was received as per the approved framework

Risk 
Management 
Framework

Not applicable Implement 
and monitor 
effectiveness of 
risk mitigation

Achieved 0%

Quarterly reports on risk management provided to Group Exco.  The risks were baselined 
on 2019/20 Risk Assessment and Risk Register. This formed the bases for the 2020/21 
Risk Register. In April 2020 the new SCM Policy was approved and the SOPs developed.

3 Findings From 
AG, IA, PP 
and Treasury 
resolved

Not applicable Integrated plan 
to address 
matters 
affecting 
auditor’s 
opinion, critical 
and repeat 
findings from 
AG, IA, PP and 
Treasury

Partially 
achieved

A plan has been created however no funding was allocated and therefore no 
implementation could happen. Overall progress at year-end estimated at 60%. 

PRASA are however implementing policies and procedures following on from the 
Governance work stream process to address findings. The next step is to provide 
resources and systems to rectify AG findings.

4 Performance 
Management 
Agreements 
(PMAs)

Not applicable Complete 
performance 
agreements for 
all staff

Partially 
achieved with 
87% of PMAs 
submitted

Labour engagement for Junior Employee Performance Management has commenced. 
Labour requested a facilitated workshop to discuss the options of individual and group 
performance contracting and evaluation due to the fact that some functions in the 
operational environment are group/team based whilst others are individual task based. 
87% of management submitted scorecards. The process of reviews is still underway.

5 5-Year 
Corporate 
Strategy

Not applicable Review & 
approval 
of 5-Year 
Corporate

Not Achieved -100%

The 3-year Corporate Plan as per PFMA was approved by the MOT in March 2020. The 
Group Chief Strategy Officer position is vacant since December 2019.

2 Not Applicable indicates that the measure is new as per the 2019/20 Corporate Plan
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Detail performance per pre-determined objective:

Strategic 
Objective

# Performance 
Indicator

2018/29 Actual 
Performance

2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

Objective 2:
Improving 
the Financial 
Positon

6 Rental Income 
(Rm)

R773.32 million R728.78 million R725.97 million    -0.4%  

Mabopane Station is not yet finalised for occupation as PRASA CRES is awaiting an 
occupation certificate. Other vacancies are due to vandalism and theft that prevent these 
vacancies from being filled. The failed parking management system at Park Station has 
also led to revenue leakage. 

Rental revenue from PRASA Technical met the budget as per the Mutual Asset 
Agreement with Transnet.

Fare Revenue:

Metrorail (Rm) R916.29 million R1 075.96 
million

R563.94 million 47.6%   

The decline in Metrorail fare revenue is a consequence of the continued decline in train 
service performance, with high rates of train cancellations and delays. In addition, the 
regions experienced increased theft and vandalism at stations due to the cancellation of 
security contracts. There are continued challenges with security in the Western Cape, 
where the Central Line covering Khayelitsha, Kapteinsklip, Chris Hani and Phillipi was 
closed in October 2019. The Group Exco’s Service Recovery Committee implemented 
by the Administrator addressed the actions needed to recover the services. This work 
stream has interdependencies with the Safety and Security Committee as well as 
the Capital Programme and Modernisation Acceleration to ensure services can be 
recovered.

MLPS (Rm) R122.18 million R 140.77 million R66.94 million -52.4%    

In March, refunds amounting to R663 100 were given to customers as the service was 
suspended from 21 February 2020. The MLPS service was suspended on 18 February 
2020 due to the prohibition directive issued by the RSR as a result of the rear-end 
collision between the MLPS Première Classe and a Transnet Freight Rail (TFR) goods 
train on 12 February 2020 at Horison Station. Trains en route and confirmed trains were 
allowed to finish their journeys. There was no income for the month of March 2020. 

The MLPS short to medium term turnaround plan (11-point plan) has been submitted to 
Rail Exco for adoption and approval.

7 Autopax (Rm) R477.93 million R774.48 million R419.09 million -45.9%   

Autopax has not been able to operate all scheduled services due to the shortage of 
buses as result of cash flow challenges. The subsidiary was not able to pay critical 
suppliers and most of them stopped servicing Autopax. Coastal services were all 
suspended and no revenue was generated on those routes. All other corridors were 
reduced to a bare minimum as a result.

Due to taxi intimidation that occurred during the month of September, where one driver 
was killed and another driver injured, drivers embarked on a work stoppage citing fear 
for their lives. This resulted in a loss of revenue for 13 days.

8 Operating 
Subsidy (Rm)

R6 577.91 
million        
(Restated per 
2020

R6 252.59 
million

R8 376.50 
million

34.0%  

The Operating Subsidy for the year included a transfer of R2.1bn from Capex to Opex 
through a virement process to pay for municipal costs, Eskom and the National 
Transport Movement (NTM) settlement.
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Strategic 
Objective

# Performance 
Indicator

2018/29 Actual 
Performance

2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

9 Other income 
(Rm)

R308.50 million R297.23 million R273.92 million   -7.8%  

The negative variance is mostly in Autopax due to a decline in Charter and Luggage 
Revenue. The company continues to experience operational challenges that have 
resulted in financial and cash flow challenges. Autopax continues to operate a skeleton 
schedule so as to collect some revenue and also not to lose the permits and exposure in 
the different corridors.

Autopax is awaiting financial assistance from PRASA to fix the 90 buses with Minor 
defects. PRASA to approve a loan/funding for Autopax to pay critical suppliers for 
Technical to release buses and cover other operating costs that have an impact on the 
running of the business.

10 Operating 
Expenditure 
(Rm)

R14 457.79 
million       
(Restated per 
2020

R13 411.46 
million

R11 098.57 
million

-17.2%

There were savings on employee costs, repairs and maintenance and general expenses. 
In addition, purchasing was limited to available cash for operational expenditure.

11 Cost coverage Not applicable 22% 32.2% 10.2%    

The fare revenue, rental income and other income generated is not sufficient to fully 
offset expenditure. Interest earned increased the cost coverage. 

12 Cost per 
employee

Not applicable R 396 697 R 366 486 -7.7% 

Total employee costs were less than the budgeted costs. This was because the staff 
complement was below what was budgeted for as a result of vacant positions and 
implemented austerity measures.

13 Revenue per 
employee

Not applicable R 183 385 R 225 976 23.2% 

Although fare revenue remains in a decline actual revenue per employee exceeded the 
budgeted revenue per employee due to the inclusion of Interest earned as per GRAP in 
terms of revenue.  Revenue excludes subsidies and grants from Government.

Liquidity ratios:

14 Current ratio 3.31 13 4.40 -66.2%

This is a measure of PRASA’s ability to pay its short term obligations as and when they 
arise. The current ratio is higher than a standard acceptable ratio of 2:1 which indicates 
that PRASA is able to meet its short term obligations. However this ratio is misleading 
as about 90% of the current assets balance comprise cash that has been earmarked for 
CAPEX expenditure.

15 Quick ratio 3.22 10 4.33 -56.7%

This is a measure of PRASA’s ability to pay its short term obligations with its most liquid 
assets as and when they arise. The quick ratio is higher than a standard acceptable ratio 
of 2:1 which indicates that PRASA is able to meet its short term obligations. However 
this ratio is misleading as about 90% of the current assets balance comprise cash that 
has been earmarked for CAPEX expenditure.

Debt Ratios:

16 Debt to asset 0.71 1.07 0.61 -43.0%

With its debt at 72% of total assets, which is above an acceptable debt to assets ratio of 
40% and lower, PRASA is highly leveraged. However, it should be noted that 85% of the 
total debt consists of conditional grants from the fiscus.

17 Debt to equity 12.73 -15.23 11.79  -177.4%

PRASA is highly reliant on debt for financing its operations; conditional grants make up 
85% of the debt. The target incorrectly reflected a minus number. The variance against 
15.23 is -22.6% showing that debt to equity declined. There was an 8% improvement in 
comparison to 2018/19
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Objective

# Performance 
Indicator

2018/29 Actual 
Performance

2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

Objective 3:
Improving 
Commuter 
and Passenger 
Travel 
Experience

METRORAIL

18 Metrorail paying 
passengers 
transported 
(trips) Million

208.50m paying 
passenger trips 
Cumulative

246.35m paying 
passenger trips 
Cumulative

132.65m paying 
passenger trips 
Cumulative

  -46.2%  

All regions experienced a significant drop in passengers transported. This was as a 
result of the security challenges since December 2019 and the spike in vandalism 
and theft affecting rolling stock and infrastructure (perway, signals, OHTE and station 
facilities). This resulted in a further decline in train sets available and single line working 
that severely constrained the number of trains able to run. Due to extensive vandalism 
and theft, two major corridors in terms of passenger volumes remain closed for 
operations: the Central Line corridor in the Western Cape which closed in October 2019 
and the Mabopane to Pretoria Corridor which closed in December 2019.

19 Train incidents 
(Delays and 
cancellations) 
allocated to 
Protection 
Services for 
identified 
categories

2602 incidents 
Cumulative

2896 incidents 
Cumulative

2 428 incidents 
cumulative

-16.2%  

The regions experienced increased challenges due to theft and vandalism at stations, 
rolling stock and infrastructure, exacerbated by the cancellation of security contracts 
at the end of December 2019. Due to the continued challenges with security in the 
Western Cape, the Central Line covering the areas of Khayelitsha, Kapteinsklip, Chris 
Hani and Phillipi was closed in October 2019. Following extensive theft and vandalism, 
the Mabopane corridor was closed in December 2019. The two corridors remain closed. 
To ensure safe operations, other corridors in all regions have limited operations due to 
the theft and vandalism experienced from December 2019. Key strategic assets are now 
being targeted. 

Throughout the year, the majority of asset-related incidents were in Gauteng Province 
and passenger-related incidents in the Western Cape region. Robbery accounted for 
the majority of passenger-related incidents, followed by assault with intent to cause 
grievous bodily harm.

20 Metrorail 
Trains on time 
as % of trains 
scheduled 
(Passenger 
Performance 
Measure - PPM)

54.88%  average 
PPM cumulative

85% average 
PPM cumulative

49.14% average 
PPM cumulative

-35.9%

The low level of passenger experience (time-keeping and train cancellations) of the 
service during the reporting year was mainly due to the following challenges: 
• Train delays: of the 376 814 trains that ran, 37.7% were delayed.
• Train cancellations: of the 478015 trains scheduled, 101 201 (21.2%) trains were 

cancelled. 

The PRASA/Transnet interface has been concluded and the Operations work stream 
has been established. The main aim of the work stream is to address operational issues 
impacting on each operator, as we share sections of the network.
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Objective

# Performance 
Indicator

2018/29 Actual 
Performance

2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

21 Metrorail Fare 
Revenue  R 
million

R916.29 million R1075.96 
million 
Cumulative

R 563.94 million 
Cumulative

-47.6% 

Metrorail fare revenue is decreasing due to the continued decline in train service 
performance, with high rates of train cancellations and delays. In addition, the regions 
experienced increased challenges due to theft and vandalism at stations. There were 
continued challenges with security in the Western Cape, where the Central Line covering 
the areas of Khayelitsha, Kapteinsklip, Chris Hani and Phillipi was closed in October 
2019. In Gauteng, the Pretoria to Mabopane line was closed in December 2019. These 
two corridors remain closed. Although corridors in other regions were not closed, 
services had to be reduced to enable safe operation. 

22 Customer 
Satisfaction 
Rating per 
annual 
customer

52.5% 
Customer 
Satisfaction 
Rating

55% Customer 
Satisfaction 
Rating

50% Customer 
Satisfaction 
Rating

-5% 

The regional Customer Satisfaction Ratings were: Gauteng 53.8%; KZN 50.5%; Western 
Cape 41.3% and Eastern Cape 57.4%. The weighted rating was 49.95%.

23 Metrorail Rail 
Safety Record 
- Total safety 
occurrences 
(Total of SANS 
3000-1 A – L 
categories)

Not applicable 1 541 
occurrences 
Cumulative

1 311 
occurrences 
Cumulative

-14.9% 

A total of 23 serious rail occurrences took place during the financial year, including: 
• 1 open line collision 
• 2 yard collisions 
• 6 derailments, of which 4 occurred on the main line and 2 in the yards. 
• 3 SPADs
Some of the preliminary findings point to prolonged abnormal working caused by 
dysfunctional signalling. 

A Safety Improvement Plan was submitted to the RSR. 
The Action Plans are aligned with various internal initiatives such as the Engineering 
Maintenance Plan, Security Plan and the Operational Risk Register. 

 PRASA is committed to:
• improving safety management in line with RSR requirements, security of its asset 

base and implementation of security technology, physical security and integration
• developing a capital implementation process and accelerating service recovery and 

delivery through modernisation of the rail system. 

Objective 3:
Improving 
Commuter 
and Passenger 
Travel 
Experience
Mainline 
Passenger 
Services

24 Mainline 
Passenger 
Services trains 
ran

Not applicable 1731 trains run 
Cumulative

931 trains run -46.2% 

MLPS has experienced a steady month-on-month decline in the number of trains ran. 
This is primarily attributed to the decline in the availability of Prasa locomotives.  A 
combination of leased locomotive, General Overhauls of the existing ones and the 
procurement of new locomotives, are strategies underway to provide a long lasting 
solution to MLPS train and locomotive problems.
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# Performance 
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2018/29 Actual 
Performance

2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

25 Locomotive 
availability

Not applicable 60% average 
loco availability 
cumulative

19% average 
loco availability 
cumulative

-41.0% 

Locomotive availability declined sharply to a historic low of 19%; this is apparent in 
the number of trains (526) that had to be cancelled in the year. The average age of the 
existing locomotives is 45 years against a life expectancy of between 30 and 35 years. A 
tender for 18 leased locomotives was issued and contracting will take place in the new 
financial year.

26 Mainline 
Passenger 
Services 
Number of 
Passengers

387 501 
passengers 
cumulative

463 000 
passengers 
cumulative

205 884 
passengers 
cumulative

-55.5% 

The steady decline in patronage for the past ten years continued in 2019/20.

The plan is to increase the number of trains and routes, resulting in an increase in 
the number of passengers. The key focus will be on popular and untapped routes: 
Komatipoort, Polokwane for Moria, Mafikeng, Garden Route and Bloemfontein shuttle 
services. The time table will be reviewed to reflect passengers’ preferred travel days and 
times. The Marketing department will be aggressively marketing the service and looking 
for new and repeat passengers.

27 Mainline 
Passenger 
services on-
time arrivals

Not applicable 50% average 
cumulative

9% average 
cumulative

  -41.0% 

On-time performance was substantially affected by the failure of our locomotives on the 
Cape Town and Durban routes. The leased locomotives had limited failures; these were 
addressed with the lease and resolved. 

The relationship with Transnet is receiving attention at all levels, with MLPS now part of 
the weekly and monthly planning meetings. Discussions have also begun with Metrorail 
across all regions to synchronise train schedules and allocate slots to MLPS off-peak.

One of the key focus areas is on-time departure; a stringent countdown procedure will 
be introduced in this regard.

28 Mainline 
Passenger 
Services Fare 
Revenue Rm)

R122.18 million R140.772m 
Cumulative

R66.94 million -52.4% 

There was a 20% average deficit in operating expenses on a month to month basis; fare 
revenue and the subsidy were unable to cover operational costs. Revenue declined from 
R99m in 2019 to R67m this year, 52% from the target.

Following the RSR’s prohibition directive as a result of the rear-end collision between an 
MLPS Première Classe and a TFR goods train on 12 February 2020 at Horizon Station, 
the MLPS service was suspended on 18 February.
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# Performance 
Indicator

2018/29 Actual 
Performance

2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

29 Customer 
Satisfaction 
Rating per 
annual 
customer 
satisfaction 
survey (MLPS)

No survey 
conducted for 
MLPS

60% Customer 
Satisfaction 
Rating

64.6% 
Customer 
Satisfaction 
Rating

4.6% 

The customer satisfaction rating on average was 64.6%. The Trans Natal train between 
Durban and Johannesburg was rated 71.6%. The lowest score was for the Cape Town 
to Queenstown service, at 51.5%. MLPS plans to conduct a customer survey in the new 
financial year that will inform its turnaround going forward. The key focus will be on 
improvements required, priority routes and catering and ticket sales outlets.

30 MLPS Safety 
Record - 
Total safety 
occurrences  
(Total of SANS 
3000-1  A – L 
categories)

Not applicable 50 occurrences 
Cumulative

45 occurrences    -10.0% 

Most incidents were accidental and did not point to negligence or failure to adhere to 
procedure by personnel or passengers.

The major incident during the year was the rear-end collision between a Shosholoza 
Meyl train and a TFR goods train between Horizon View and Princess on 12 February 
2020. This resulted in one passenger fatality, six passenger injuries and five employee 
injuries. The RSR issued a prohibition directive for Shosholoza Meyl and no MLPS trains 
were operated between 18 February and 31 March 2020.
 
Minor passenger injuries, mostly taking place around station precincts, were also 
reported and are unfortunately showing an upward trend.

Two separate public fatalities were also recorded in the month of April 2019.

Collision-obstruction incidents rose, with 11 reported during the reporting period. This 
is a worrying trend because the underlying problem may be horticulture and/or lack of 
proper fencing, leading to damage to rolling stock and to delays en route.

Objective 3:
Improving 
Commuter 
and Passenger 
Travel 
Experience

AUTOPAX

31 Bus Trips 
completed per 
annum

Not applicable 55 938 bus trips 
by March 2020

35 316  bus 
trips

-36.9% 

The business operated 21 211 fewer trips than budgeted because of the number of VOR 
buses due to inadequate maintenance. This is attributed to non-availability of spares, 
as the business account was closed due to financial distress. SASOL also withdrew its 
diesel supply account as did other critical suppliers such as for spares, tyres, windows 
and brakes. This greatly contributed to the decreasing number of buses; at end of 
the financial year, only 38 buses instead of 177 were available for service. Due to taxi 
intimidation in September, when one driver was killed and another injured, drivers 
embarked on a work stoppage citing fear for their lives; during this time, buses did not 
operate. 
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# Performance 
Indicator

2018/29 Actual 
Performance

2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

32 Passenger 
Numbers per 
annum

1 664 337 
passengers / 
patronage on 
long distance 
routes

2 492 098 
passengers/ 
patronage on 
long distances 
routes by March 
2020

1 479 981 
passengers/ 
patronage on 
long distances 
routes

-40.6% 

Due to the shortage of buses, the subsidiary was not able to operate all scheduled 
services. Autopax missed the January peak demand and in February and March only 
operated with an average of 50 buses against a requirement of 161 buses. Coastal 
services were suspended due to the diesel challenge and this negatively impacted the 
number of passengers conveyed.

A service recovery plan has been approved by Group EXCO. This puts a huge emphasis on 
the availability of buses to meet operational requirements and on improving operational 
efficiencies. This will have a positive impact on the number of passengers conveyed by 
Autopax going forward.

33 On-Time 
Departures of 
buses up to 
March 2020

64% on time 
departures

95% on time 
departures by 
March 2020

36% on time 
departures

-57.1% 

Fleet availability was a major contributing factor due to the high number of VORs which 
resulted in fewer vehicles available to operate all scheduled services. The majority of 
the buses have between 600 000km and 1 000 000km travelled. The delays resulted from 
buses from the workshop as they come in with multiple defects. We have been using 
these buses on across corridor resulting in delays. 

Once the recovery plan is approved and supported with funding, the business will be in 
a position to bring 90 buses back onto the road which will provide enough to cover all 
services with 10% spare capacity to allow Technical to conduct proper maintenance.

34 Customer 
Satisfaction 
Index

58.45% 
Customer 
Satisfaction 
rating

80% Customer 
Satisfaction 
rating for 
Autopax by 
March 2020

53.4% 
Customer 
Satisfaction 
rating

-26.6% 

The overall average CSI score is 53.4% with Translux services at 55.2% and City to City 
52.1%. The shortage of buses was the source of customer dissatisfaction as it negatively 
impacted operational efficiencies. 

The business will focus on improving our operational efficiencies and communications 
at all touch points. Buses are to be released from VOR to cover all our operational 
requirements.

35 Total Revenue 
per annum

R417m 
cumulative

R992m 
Cumulative

R425.6m 
cumulative

57.1% 

Total revenue was negatively impacted by the shortage of buses to operate the budgeted 
scheduled services, charters and rail support. As indicated above, non-payment of 
suppliers such as SASOL and ABSA resulted in a cash operation and we were only able 
to operate fewer than 25% of our services. All Coastal services were suspended.

36 Safety 
performance 
in terms of bus 
accidents

261 accidents 
per kilometers 
travelled

< 171 accidents 
per kilometers 
travelled by 
March 2020   
(Cumulative)

192 accidents 
per kilometers 
travelled

12.9% 

Actions revolve around monitoring speeding and driver behaviour and interventions to 
correct driver behaviour
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# Performance 
Indicator

2018/29 Actual 
Performance

2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

37 Safety 
performance 
in terms of 
passenger 
fatalities

2 fatalities per 
passengers 
travelled

0 fatalities per 
passengers 
travelled by 
March 2020 
(cumulative)

0 fatalities per 
passengers 
travelled

    0%      

Actions revolve around monitoring speeding and driver behaviour and interventions to 
correct driver behaviour

38 Safety 
performance 
in terms of 
passenger 
injuries

2 passenger 
injuries per 
passengers 
travelled

< 19 passenger 
injuries per 
passengers 
travelled 
cumulative by 
March 2020

22 passenger 
injuries per 
passengers 
travelled

  22.2% 

Drivers are continuously monitored on the tracking and surveillance system. All 
deviations are reported and corrective action initiated.

39 Breakdowns per 
60 000 km

0 breakdowns 
per 60 000kms

1 breakdown 
per 60 000kms

0.33 
breakdowns per 
60 000kms

  -67.0% 

Regular inspection and maintenance are being done daily. Based on the age of the fleet, 
more resources are required for maintenance. The process of securing funding for 
repair and maintenance of all buses is to be fast-tracked, with 100% adherence to the 
maintenance regime.

40 Bus Servicing 
(On Time 
service rate)

76% on time 
service rate

100% on time 
service rate by 
March 2020

64% on time 
service rate

-36.0% 

Unavailability of service material such as engine oil contributed to the low on-time 
service rate. VOR funding and maintenance programme is to be intensified to ensure that 
vehicle availability is sustained and increased over time, with workshops capacitated to 
the required level.

41 Certificate of 
Fitness (COF)

Not applicable 100% COF rate 
by March 2020

71% COF rate 
by

-29.0% 

Planned buses were not tested as they had major component failures and are on the VOR 
list. There was unavailability of spares (mainly tyres and windscreens). 

The VOR list is to be addressed through funding and an intensified maintenance 
programme. The VOR list is to be monitored and buses tested as they are released.

Objective 3:
Improving 
Commuter 
and Passenger 
Travel 
Experience

RAIL

42 RSR permit 
conditions

Not applicable 100% 
Compliance 
of permit 
Conditions

100% 
Compliance 
of permit 
conditions

0%     

Special Condition 1: Risk Assessments Register submitted to the RSR: 100% complete
Special Condition 2: Filling of safety critical grade: 100% complete. 
Special Conditions 3 & 4: Policies approved and submitted to the RSR on 27 January 
2020: 100% complete.
Special Condition 5: Safety Interfaces Agreement with Transnet finalised and submitted 
on 27 January 2020: 100% complete.
Special Condition 6: Engineering and Costed Maintenance Plan: 100% complete.
Special Condition 8: Electronic Interlocking Spares: 100% complete. 
Special Condition 9: Manual Train Authorization is monitored and statistics are 
submitted to the RSR on a daily basis.
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# Performance 
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2018/29 Actual 
Performance

2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

43 RSR directives Not applicable 100% 
Compliance of 
directives

39% 
Compliance of 
directives

-61.0% 

Sixteen directives were complied with; 25 are awaiting verification by the RSR. The 
Acting Nominated Manager engaged the RSR on the delay relating to Inspectors in the 
Western Cape region to verify the completion of directives in order to issue compliance 
letters.

Objective 4:
Ensuring 
Reliability and 
Availability of 
the Service & 
Infrastructure

44 Metrorail Train 
Set availability

Not applicable 291 train sets 
available by 
year- end (non-
cumulative)

110 train sets 
available by 
year- end

  -62.2%

The non-availability of mission critical, maintenance-specific components and material 
floats as a result of no long-term refurbishing contracts for rotating machines, wheel 
sets and the supply of unique material remains. This contributed to over 500 coaches 
out-of-service waiting for components and spares.

Coaches lost due to cable theft and arson increased in November and December 2019 
and continued into January 2020 in the Western Cape and Gauteng and contributed 
negatively to coach availability nationally.

An interim solution for refurbishing rotary machines ended in July 2018.
The cancellation of national security contracts affected vandalism of coaches at a rate of 
20 coaches per week.

There is currently one corridor open for train operations in Gauteng North; hence 3 out 
of 22 trains are used and the rest are parked. There is a need for a different approach to 
procurement to address the operational crisis. The appointment of service providers for 
ad hoc and insurance repairs of coaches vandalised due to cable theft and arson needs 
to be expedited. A comprehensive 12-month coach recovery action plan is in place with 
two-weekly meetings monitoring progress and implementing corrective actions.

Regional protection services have revised their asset protection deployment strategies to 
minimise arson and coach cable theft at various hot spots. Improvement of these plans 
is continuously required.

Awarding of long-term contracts for component refurbishment needs to be expedited to 
ensure continuity in sustaining coaches recovered. 8 trains from Wolmerton have been 
temporarily transferred to Gauteng South to assist with train set availability. The planned 
actions are included in the work of the Service Recovery, Safety and Security and Capital 
Programme and Modernisation Acceleration committees.

45 General 
Overhaul of 
Metrorail 
Coaches per 
annum

351 Metrorail 
Coaches 
overhauled

230 Metrorail 
Coaches 
overhauled 
(Cumulative)

1 Metrorail 
Coach 
Overhauled

-99.6%

No GO contracts were awarded as they were cancelled due to their irregularity. The SCM 
process to appoint new contractors for the GO programme has been reinitiated.

46 General 
Overhaul of 
MLPS coaches 
per annum

47 MLPS 
coaches 
overhauled

45 MLPS 
coaches 
overhauled   
(Cumulative)

0 MLPS 
Coaches 
Overhauled

-100% 

There are no GO contracts awarded. The GO contracts were cancelled due to their 
irregularity. The SCM process to appoint a new contractor for the GO programme has 
been reinitiated.

47 Configuration 
of train sets to 
norm

41% set 
configuration to 
norm

100% set 
configuration 
to norm (non-
cumulative)

51% set 
configuration to 
norm

-49.0% 

Refer to reasons an actions above in item 44
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# Performance 
Indicator

2018/29 Actual 
Performance

2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

48 Perway Faults 
per annum

1163 perway 
faults reported
(excl. No fault 
found and Theft 
and Vandalism)

1440 perway 
faults by 
year-end 
(Cumulative)

975 perway 
faults by year-
end

-32.3%

Faults in perway for the 2019/20 year decreased nationally by about 7% from 2018/19; 
the decrease was as a result of a decrease of faults in Gauteng region. 

Worn-out turnouts, rails, track formation failure and defective sleepers which are 
due for replacement are the contributing factors to most of the perway faults. The 
poor condition of the ballast and the poor sub-formation which needs screening and 
rehabilitation contributes to track instability which leads to failure in various perway 
components. The results of the said condition are reflected in speed restrictions and the 
track quality index which at this point is on an increasing trend.

49 Electrical Faults 
per annum

1665 electrical 
faults reported 
(excl. No faults 
found and Theft 
and Vandalism)

1120 electrical 
faults by 
year-end 
(Cumulative)

2 810 electrical 
faults by year-
end

150.9%

Power outages due to Eskom load-shedding and the impact of theft and vandalism on 
the electrical network have resulted in a significant increase in electrical faults. When 
substations switch off due to theft, an adjacent substation supplies power over a section 
longer than it was designed for. This puts a strain on the working substation as it is 
overloaded with multiple trains in a section. Theft and vandalism have adversely affected 
various maintenance programmes to improve the electrical system as maintenance 
teams now focus mainly on constructive major breakdowns, replacing stolen catenary 
and contact wire.

There are various projects in place which include Substation Barrier Protection, OHTE 
Refurbishment Programme, Lightning Protection, Standby Power Supply as well as 
Substation and OHTE material national contracts. These projects have been budgeted on 
SAP under the Capital Investment and Procurement (CIP) Programme.

50 Signal faults per 
annum

17397 Signal 
faults reported
(excl. No fault 
found and Theft 
and Vandalism)

23 740 Signal 
faults by 
year-end 
(Cumulative)

 8 204 Signal 
faults by year-
end

-65.4

There is a downward trend in signalling faults nationally. The main contributing factor 
is that sections are being commissioned with the new signalling systems. The overall 
improvement is negated by constant theft of both the old and the new signalling 
systems. System reliability is affected mainly by theft and vandalism which hampers the 
daily maintenance intervention programme originally prescribed for each asset. Gauteng 
and the Western Cape are the main contributors, as indicated by data on sections in 
which trains are manually authorised. 

In addition to this challenge, the conventional signalling system has reached its end of 
life span. Maintenance personnel struggle to keep up with faults due to obsolescence, 
theft and vandalism and this has a direct impact on system reliability due to non-
conformance with the required maintenance regime.
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Strategic 
Objective

# Performance 
Indicator

2018/29 Actual 
Performance

2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

51 Temporary 
engineering 
speed 
restrictions 
measured in 
km on the rail 
network as at 
end of March 
2020 (Last 
month)

Temporary 
speed 
restrictions on 
the network  
at year-end 
2018/19 were 
169 km

Reduce 
temporary 
speed 
restrictions 
in km on the 
network to 
<100 km by 
year-end (non-
cumulative)

Temporary 
speed 
restrictions on 
the network  at 
year-end are 
137 km

37.1%

It should be noted that, as a speed restriction is cleared due to accessible machinery 
such as tamping machines, other speed restrictions are being imposed as the track 
continues to deteriorate as a result of worn out rails, material condition and track 
formation. Sections with higher Track Quality Index are immediately put under speed 
restriction.

In the Gauteng region, procurement for formation and drainage rehabilitation has been 
presented to the Bid Specification Committee (BSC) and returned for corrections. Depot 
teams are busy with small scale re-sleepering interventions. 

52 Construction 
of Rolling 
Stock Depot 
modernisation

Not applicable Commence 
construction 
at Wolmerton  
(Phase 3)

Not Achieved -100% 

A tender to appoint a Turnkey Contractor closed in April 2019. The process of appointing 
is underway; as soon as it is done, we will make an announcement.

53 Construction 
of Rolling 
Stock Depot 
modernisation

Not applicable Paarden Eiland 
commenced

Not Achieved -100%

The Bid Specification Committee (BSC) did not consider the submission because it 
prioritized walling tenders for the rail corridors.  Appoint additional resources in Bid 
Specification Committee to review BSC documents.

54 Construction 
of Bus Depot 
projects

Not applicable Complete 
designs for 
Harmony depot

Not Achieved -100% 

Bus Depot Strategy document is not finalized. Autopax to finalize Bus Depot Strategy 
document that will inform how the Bus Depots will be developed.

Objective 5:
Managing and 
Improving 
the Property 
condition: 
Railway Stations 
& Workplace 
Facilities

55 National Station 
Improvement 
Projects per 
annum (NSIP)

3 NSIP projects 
with practical 
completion

30 NSIP 
projects with 
practical 
completion

0 NSIP projects 
with practical 
completion

 -100% 

Procurement status of NSIPs at the start of 2020/21:
• Awards: 5 contracts awarded
• Advert stage: 7
SCM has set quarterly targets, with regular meetings with the end-user departments to 
assist and monitor projects with the end-users. Bi-weekly meetings with the Executive 
to provide status updates, and monthly reporting to the Capital Programme and 
Modernisation Acceleration  Committee, are envisaged.
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Indicator

2018/29 Actual 
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2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

56 National Station 
Upgrade 
Projects per 
annum (NSUP)

4 NSUP projects 
with practical 
completion

6 NSUP projects 
with practical 
completion

0 NSUP projects 
with practical 
completion

-100%

Overall SCM delays and lack of turnaround times in tender awards.  Failure by SCM 
to extend consultant’s contracts, resulting in the cancellation and re-starting of most 
CAPEX projects from scratch.
Procurement status of NSUP at start of 2020/21: 
• Advert:1;
• Evaluation:  1;
• Adjudication:  3;
• Active projects 4 
SCM has set quarterly targets and with regular meetings with the end- user 
departments to assist and monitor projects that are with the End-Users.

57 Workplace 
Improvement 
Projects per 
annum (WPIP)

5 WPIP projects 
with practical 
completion

12 WPIP 
projects with 
practical 
completion

0 WPIP projects 
with practical 
completion

-100% 

There are overall SCM delays and lack of turnaround times in tender awards (e.g. 
failure of various divisional and corporate committees to convene); failure by SCM to 
extend consultants’ contracts resulting in the cancellation and restarting of most Capex 
projects from scratch; delays by Group Finance in approving change requests for quick-
win projects in the Eastern Cape region; delays in approval of SCM policies; no WPIP 
projects went into construction due to the failure of SCM to factor in the local content 
requirements.

Objective 6:
Improving 
Passenger 
Rail Travel 
Experience 
through 
Modernization

58 Train sets 
provisionally 
accepted as 
per contract 
agreement per 
annum 

3 train sets 
provisionally 
accepted

20 train sets 
provisionally 
accepted 
(Cumulative) 

10 train sets 
provisionally 
accepted

-50.0% 

During the FY19/20, Gibela has experienced challenges meeting the delivery 
programme. PRASA is in the process of following the contractual remedial process. As 
part of this process, Gibela has been instructed to build mitigation measures to prevent 
any further re-occurrence. The delays in manufacture is mainly due to challenges in the 
supply chain and suppliers meeting their delivery obligations due to capacity and quality 
Gibela commenced working on a recovery plan that will include the revision of delivery 
dates accordingly.
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Objective

# Performance 
Indicator

2018/29 Actual 
Performance

2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

59 Station 
Signalling 
commissioned 
per contract

Indicator 
reflecting 
station 
commissions in 
201920. 
15 Signal 
interlockings 
commissioned  
in 2018/19

33 stations 
commissioned 
as per 
project plan 
(Cumulative)

30 stations 
commissioned 
as per project 
plan.

-9.1% 

Delays are experienced due to theft and vandalism issues as well as community unrest 
problems. Delays are also experienced in Western Cape due to health, safety and 
security issues. Non-payment of contractor’s invoices is causing further delays and 
possible suspension of contracts. Commissions completed:

Gauteng Stations Western Cape Station

Apr-19 Mitchell Street

May-19 Elandsfontein Kensington, woltemade, Mutual, 
Goodwood, Elsiesrivuer, Parow

Jun-19 Cor Delfos, Sausville, Florida

Jul-19 Knights, Newclare, Mariasburg Faure, Firgrove, Somerest West, 
Van Der Stal, Strand

Sep-19 Langlaagte, Croesus, Nasrec North Kuilsrivier, Blackheath, 
Eersterivier, Lynedoch, 
Vlottenburg

Oct-19 Nasrec

Nov-19 Stellenboch

Feb-20 New Canada

60 Construction 
of Perway 
programme for 
modernisation

Not applicable Commence 
with turnout 
and track 
replacement in 
Gauteng

Not Achieved -100% 

A service provider has not been appointed to review the draft tender document to ensure 
compliance with PRASA’s method of contracting. The BSC document will be revised as 
and when SCM finalises the appointment of a service provider.

61 Station 
modernisation 
programme 
stations in 
construction

Not applicable Phillipi station 
complete

Not Achieved -100%

The consultants’ contract is yet to be re-instated. A proposed short-term intervention to 
ensure safety at the project site has not been supported by SCM and therefore could not 
be processed further. Required additional security on site has not been provided.

A request for contract price adjustment is still under review by the Bid Adjudication 
Committee (BAC) after which support for submission to the National Treasury will be 
sought.

62 Station 
modernisation 
programme 
stations in 
construction

Not applicable Oakmoor 
station 
re-tender 
commenced

Not Achieved -100% 

The consultant has withdrawn from the project as the agreement cannot be finalised due 
to the pronouncement by the National Treasury indicating that the consultant’s contract 
was deemed irregular. Implementation of recommendations by the National Treasury on 
the Station Modernisation Programme will be done in 2020/21.
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2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

Objective 7: 
Protecting 
People, 
Assets and 
Infrastructure

63 Security 
Capability with 
outsourced 
(private) 
insourced 
(Internal) staff.

Not applicable Develop and 
commence 
a plan for 
creating an 
internal security 
capability at 
70:30 in favour 
of insourced 
security by 
the end of 
the 2019/20 - 
2021/22 MTEF

Not Achieved -100%

The greatest challenge relating to implementation of projects and services during the 
2019/20 financial year emanated from the SCM Policy that required Probity and Legal 
resources that was not viable for the organisation to achieve. Interventions that sought to 
address the requirements during the latter part of 2019 were unsuccessful. 

The department is engaged in a process of emergency procurement of security 
services through SCM to address provision of private security services as an emergency 
intervention for the short term. The department is in the process of reviewing its strategy 
in line with the introduction of security technology and other physical security measures. 
The approach will provide guidance on best practice going forward to ensure a security 
resourcing model that is dynamic and cost effective and that addresses human resource 
requirements including contributing to the upliftment of designated groups.

64 Provision 
of armored 
vehicles

Not applicable Implementation 
of Armored 
Vehicles for 
critical security 
hot spots

Not Achieved -100% 

The greatest challenge with respect to implementation of projects and services during 
the 2019/20 financial year emanated from the SCM policy that required Probity and Legal 
resources that was not viable for the organisation to achieve. Interventions to address 
the requirements during the latter part of 2019 were unsuccessful.

65 Drone 
technology to 
curb vandalism 
and theft

Not applicable Implement 
National 
Security Drone 
Operations 
Tender

Not Achieved -100% 

The greatest challenge with respect to the implementation of projects and services 
during the 2019/20 financial year emanated from the SCM Policy that required Probity 
and Legal resources that was not viable for the organization to achieve. Interventions 
to address the requirements during the latter part of 2019 were unsuccessful. New 
processes and additional interventions were implemented in January 2020 but were 
impacted by the COVID-19 regulations passed at the end of March 2020.
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# Performance 
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2018/29 Actual 
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2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

66 Implementation 
of integrated 
control rooms

Not applicable Commence 
implementation 
of integrated 
control rooms 
in line with the 
CI4STAR model

Not Achieved  -100%

The greatest challenge with respect to the implementation of projects and services 
during the 2019/20 financial year emanated from the SCM Policy that required Probity 
and Legal that was not viable for the organization to achieve. Interventions sought 
to address the requirements during the latter part of 2019 was unsuccessful. New 
processes and additional intervention were implemented in January 2020 and was 
impacted on when the regulations were passed at the end of March 2020. 

PRASA Security developed a specification for E-Guarding that address the short 
to medium term requirements for an integrated security solution whilst PRASA is 
developing the capacity and capability for a fully integrated enterprise Security BI 
Solution that cuts across the value chain. The BI solution is a medium to long term 
project. PRASA Security included the provision of monitoring control rooms and control 
room operators supported by armed guards in the E-Guard solution to ensure the shift 
implementation of additional security capacity in a cost effective and efficient manner.

Objective 8:
Asset 
management 
and maintenance

67 Maintenance 
schedule 
Compliance

Not applicable Commence 
implementation 
of computerized

Not Achieved -100% 

There was no Capex allocation for the SAP Programme in 2019/2020. The project has 
since been deferred to 2020/2021, with motivation for funding to implement the project in 
the 2020/2021 financial year.

68 Inventory 
Management 
Policy

Not applicable Approved of 
Inventory

Not Achieved -100% 

Inadequate capacity to compile the policy. The matter was discussed with the Group 
Chief Procurement Officer (GCPO); to be finalised in conjunction with revised SCM Policy 
in 2020/21

69 Maintenance 
Engineering 
Standards

Not applicable Compendium 
of Maintenance 
Engineering

Not Achieved   -100%

Review of the documentation has been delayed because Chief Engineers have 
not been appointed. Commenced with Rolling Stock Quality Manual Master list of 
Maintenance Activities (using Cape Town Region Quality Manual). Review of the available 
documentation is in progress.

Objective 9:
Exploiting the 
Assets through 
Property 
Development 
and 
Commerciali-
zation

70 Operating 
Revenue from 
Real Estate

R640.28 million R663.5 million R647.18 million -2.5% 

Mabopane station is not yet finalised for occupation and awaits the occupation 
certificate. Other vacancies are due to vandalism and theft that hamper progress on new 
tenants. 

Implementation of a new parking system is currently at the tender evaluation stage. A 
manual system is currently in place in an attempt to close revenue leakage. Mabopane 
station awaits the occupation certificate for the award of Beneficial Occupation (BO) to 
tenants. Closure of the railway line has further impacted securing tenants. 
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2018/29 Actual 
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2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

71 New Real Estate 
Investment 
Developments

Not applicable Invest in 2 
top structure 
developments 
Umgeni (Devco 
1&2) with the 
value of R45m

Not Achieved -100% 

Given the reorganisation of PRASA, INTERSITE was asked to submit a business case for 
consolidation with CRES for consideration by the Administrator in 2020/21.

72 Revenue growth 
from property 
investments

R3.32 million Generate R2.9m 
in Revenue 
from property 
investments 
Umgeni (Devco 
1&2)

Not Achieved -100% 

Given the reorganisation of PRASA, INTERSITE was asked to submit a business case for 
consolidation with CRES for consideration by the Administrator in 2020/21

73 Fibre optic 
network for 
commerciali-
zation

Not Achieved 282 km of fibre 
deployed by 
Intersite for 
commercial use

Not Achieved    -100% 

Given the reorganisation of PRASA, INTERSITE was asked to submit a business case for 
consolidation with CRES for consideration by the Administrator in 2020/21

74 Revenue growth 
generated 
from the 
commerciali-
zation of fibre.

R3.32m Generate 
R14.6m in 
Revenue from 
commerciali-
zation of fibre

R 4.8 million -67.1% 

Given the reorganisation of PRASA, INTERSITE was asked to submit a business case for 
consolidation with CRES for consideration by the Administrator in 2020/21

Objective 10:
Procuring for 
the Business

75 Platform for 
Integrated 
Engineering 
Procurement 
(IEP) & Contract 
Management 
(CM)

Not Achieved Feasibility study 
completed for 
an appropriate 
IEP & CM Tool

Not Achieved  -100% 

Enterprise Program Management Office (EPMO) project tools to be developed to track all 
projects, their stages of implementation and consolidate reporting.

76 Open Tender 
System for 
tenders ≥R10M

Not applicable Developed draft 
guideline of 
Open Tender 
System for 
tenders ≥R10M

Achieved    0%      

Checklist was developed and implemented in November 2019 to guide execution of these 
tenders and align the bid committees.

77 SCM Policy & 
Procedures in 
place

SCM policy and 
Framework 
completed

Approved 
SCM Policy & 
procedures

Not Achieved -100% 

SCM Policy under review by Group EXCO for approval; SOP’s in process of finalization. 
The new SCM 2020 Policy has been developed and training conducted across the 
organization.
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2018/29 Actual 
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2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
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Variance

78 SCM Structure 
reviewed

Not applicable Approved SCM 
Structure

Not Achieved -100% 

Recruitment process for filling permanent positions on hold. The structure was reviewed 
with HCM and internal resourcing to be expedited

79 Catalogue 
of projects 
determined

Not applicable 80% 
Procurement 
Spend

Partially 
achieved

Procurement for the entire year was not fully executed due to internal challenges with 
SCM 2018 Policy and Bid Committees. Bid Committees have been reconfigured and 
trained on the Revised SCM 2020 policy

80 Service Level 
Agreement 
(SLA)

Not applicable 80% average 
availability of 
key components 
as per SLA

Not Achieved -100% 

SLA with user department dependent on clear procurement plans. Procurement plans 
will be adjusted to align with allocated and confirmed budget

81 Strategic 
partnerships

Not applicable Identified 
products & 
services for 
Strategic 
partnership

Delayed

The organization is in progress to leverage on other state organs.

82 BBBEE 
recognition for 
PRASA

Not applicable Commence with 
certification 
`BBBEE 
recognition 
Level 8 for 
PRASA

Delayed

Configuration of the vendor master data to extract correct B-BBEE information to enable 
verification is the constraint. A memo was sent for approval to source funding to appoint 
a verification agency. 

83 BBBEE 
Compliant 
Spend as 
percentage 
of identified 
operational 
spend per 
annum

Not applicable 80% of 
Procurement 
spend on 
BBBEE 
compliant 
suppliers 
(cumulative)

45% of 
Procurement 
spend on 
BBBEE 
compliant 
suppliers 
(cumulative)

 -35.0% 

Procurement for the entire year was not fully executed due to internal challenges with 
the SCM 2018 Policy and Bid Committees. Bid Committees have been reconfigured 
to execute the procurement plan. B-BBEE targets are embedded in the procurement 
approach

84 Qualifying Small 
Enterprise 
(QSE) spend 
as percentage 
of identified 
operational 
spend per 
annum

Not applicable 15% of 
Procurement 
spend on QSE

12% of 
Procurement 
spend on QSE

-3%     

PRASA experienced numerous internal challenges with SCM 2018 and Bid Committees. 
Bid Committees have been reconfigured to execute the procurement plan. QSE targets 
are embedded in the procurement approach
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85 Exempted Micro 
Enterprise 
(EME) Spend

Not applicable 15% of 
Procurement 
spend on EME 
(cumulative)

13% of 
Procurement 
spend on EME 
(cumulative)

-2%   

PRASA experienced a lot of internal challenges with SCM 2018 and Bid Committees. 
Bid Committees have been reconfigured to execute the procurement plan.  QSE targets 
embedded in the procurement approach

86 Black-owned 
companies (BS) 
Spend

Not applicable 40% of 
procurement 
spend on BS

20% of 
procurement 
spend on BS

-20%   

PRASA experienced numerous internal challenges with SCM 2018 and Bid Committees. 
Bid Committees have been reconfigured to execute the procurement plan. BS targets are 
embedded in the procurement approach.

87 Black-Women 
owned 
companies 
(BWS) Spend

Not applicable 12% of 
Procurement 
spend on BWS

13% of 
Procurement 
spend on BWS

1%      

88 Designated 
groups Spend

Not applicable 2% of 
Procurement 
spend on 
designated 
groups

Not achieved   -100% 

The SAP System is currently not configured to capture this data. Designated groups 
spend aligned to reportable sector targets for 2020/21 targets.

89 Supplier 
Development 
Spend

Not applicable 2% of 
Procurement 
spend on 
supplier 
development

Not achieved -100%   

The function to drive this transformation target has not been established in PRASA. 2% 
of NPAT as per regulation. Not feasible with a deficit budget

90 Enterprise 
Development 
Spend

Not applicable 1% of 
Procurement 
spend on 
enterprise 
development 
(cumulative)

Not achieved -100%   

The function to drive this transformation target has not been established in PRASA (2% 
of NPAT as per regulation). PRASA will look at doing this in the next year.

Objective 11:
Effective 
Management 
of Capital 
Programme

91 Long- term 
investment plan

Not applicable Commence 
development 
of long- term 
investment plan 
by moving to 
tender stage.

Not Achieved   -100% 

The Long-term Investment Plan development has been on-hold due to a lack of funding 
for professional services that are required to develop the plan. The Strategic Asset 
Development (SAD) Department is currently engaging with Group Finance for the 
development of the Plan. However, it must be noted that PRASA as a Group is currently 
experiencing financial constraints, especially on operational funding.
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92 Governance 
Framework

Not applicable PRASA’s 
Capital Projects 
Investment 
Committee 
(CPIC) and 
DOT’s Capital 
Programme 
Steering 
Committee 
(CPSC) meeting 
twice per 
quarter

Partially 
achieved

The CPIC Terms of Reference (ToR) were presented by SAD to the then AGCEO. As part 
of the renewed focus on Capital Program and Modernisation Acceleration a new set 
of  ToR now called Prasa Capital Investment Committee was drafted by the Enterprise 
Programme Management Office (EPMO).  The DOT’s CPSC sat twice during 201920 for 
the first and second quarter..

93 Capital 
Spending Rbn

R4.58bn capital 
spend 

Targeted 
spending 
of R10.2bn 
(Cumulative)

R2.414bn 
capital spend

-76.3% 

0n aggregate, PRASA has spent R 2.41 billion (23.7%) of the allocated capital budget 
R10.2 billion for the financial year 2019/20.  The budget was adjusted with additional 
unspent capital of R2,3bn from 2018/19 to R12.1.5bn and again for a virement to a final 
amount of R10.8bn. The variance against this budget is 80%.

94 Standardised 
Specifications 
for critical 
projects

Not applicable Implement- 
standardised 
specifications 
for prioritised 
projects

Partially 
achieved

A draft standardized document is available for workshopping with DOT as requested by 
the CPSC meeting of quarter 3. Corridor Modernisation sequencing and prioritization 
will also assist with similar specifications. The scheduled CPSC meeting for March 2020 
was postponed. Presentation at next CPSC meeting.

Objective 12:
Built to Last:
Redefining the 
Organization

95 Operating Model 
for PRASA

Not applicable Implement a 
revised suitable 
operating model 
for PRASA 
Group

Delayed

The Operating Model (OM) is being developed and will be approved in the next financial 
year. The OM project team was officially appointed on 17 February 2020 and given three 
months to achieve approval for a redesigned OM by 23 April 2020. On 9 April 2020, the 
OM team presented revised timelines to the Administrator for approval, which were 
motivated by an “Oversight of Mandate 2: Revenue generation” component and the 
delay of the OM team not obtaining approval to visit regions to address stakeholder 
engagement sessions.

96 One Real Estate 
Entity

Not applicable Implement one 
Real Estate 
Entity

Not Achieved -100% 

INTERSITE is to be deregistered as PTY (LTD). An implementation plan has been 
submitted and the consolidation is pending appraising the Intersite Board on the de-
registration. However, approval for the change of Intersite is to be sought from the 
Department of Transport and Department of Finance in terms of Section 54 of the PFMA. 
Corporate Legal is tasked with the de-registration.
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97 One 
Engineering 
function

Not applicable Design and get 
approval for one 
engineering 
function

Not Achieved -100% 

The matter was submitted to the HC & REM Committee with draft structures included. 
The matter was not finalized.  For 2020/21 the finalization of structures is to continue. A 
HCM Committee has been established to revisit the PRASA Operating Model. Item to be 
presented at the committee.

98 Integrated 
Learning and 
Development 
master plan for 
PRASA

Not applicable Design and 
implement 
an Integrated 
Learning and 
Development 
master plan 
(incorporating 
skills of the 
future)

Achieved 0%

As per the 2019/20 Workplace Skills Plan (WSP) targets, 4314 people received training 
against a target of 4104, exceeding the target by 5%. In total PRASA has sponsored 579 
employees for part-time bursaries.

99 Workforce Plan 
for PRASA

Not applicable Design and 
implement 
the PRASA 
Workforce Plan

Delayed

All PRASA regions started to develop workforce drivers. The development of the 
workforce plan requires a budget as there is no capacity to develop the plan in-house. A 
request has been made and sent to treasury. PRASA does not have capacity to develop 
functional tools for a skills audit and currently there is no budget to outsource

100 Organizational 
culture 
Framework 
for PRASA 
that promotes 
unification 
and gauge the 
success per 
an employee 
satisfaction 
survey

Not applicable Design and 
implement an 
organizational 
culture that 
promotes 
unification 
and gauge the 
success per 
an employee 
satisfaction 
survey.

Delayed

A culture charter framework was developed and the next step is to obtain input from 
internal stakeholders. This will be utilized for conducting the employee satisfaction 
survey.

101 Integrated 
Wellness 
Programme 
covering 
Employee 
Assistance 
Programme and 
Occupational 
Health and 
Safety

Not applicable Design and 
develop an 
Integrated 
Wellness 
Programme

Not Achieved -100%

A draft Integrated Wellness Plan was developed with input from employee wellness 
programmes (EWPs) in entities and from Corporate. Engagement with stakeholders 
in Risk and Occupational Health was done; however, input is still awaited as agreed at 
sessions and especially from the Risk department as the integrated model involves them 
significantly. A draft plan is anticipated to be completed by Quarter 1 of 2020/21.
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Objective 13:
Building 
Customer and 
Stakeholder 
Confidence

102 Group-wide 
customer 
satisfaction

48.11% 
Customer 
Satisfaction

60% Customer 
Satisfaction

52.24% 
Customer 
Satisfaction

-7.8% 

The weighted score for the Group is 52.24% using fare revenue collected during 2019/20 
financial year. The actual reflects the continued decline of commuter and passenger 
travel experience for PRASA Group. This excludes the tenants’ satisfaction for PRASA 
CRES

103 Group 
Communication 
Policy and 
Standard 
Operating 
Procedures 
(SOP)

Not applicable Policy and 
SOP Operating 
Procedures 
approved and 
communicated 
across the 
PRASA Group

Not Achieved -100% 

The policy was drafted and discussed at Group Exco in Quarter 1. A new Stakeholder and 
Communications policy and SOP has been drafted for the new financial year. The policy 
and SOP is expected to be approved in June 2020

104 Stakeholder 
Engagement 
Framework & 
Plan

Not applicable 19 Stakeholders 
engaged by 
PRASA

Achieved 0%

19 Stakeholder groups were engaged in the last quarter of which the bulk was in Central 
line and Mabopane engagements.

105 Stakeholder 
Engagement 
Forums

Not applicable 4 Stakeholder 
Engagements 
every Quarter

Partially 
achieved

Eight stakeholder engagements were held during the last quarter: United Commuters 
Voice (UCV) met with Administrator in Cape Town on 11 February 2020; a stakeholder 
engagement were held Khayelitsha on 22 January 2020 and 6 February 2020; another 
meeting with stakeholder in Cape Town on19 February 2020;  A Ministerial visit in Cape 
Town with the Administrator on 5 March 2020; Cleaning Campaign at Cape Town station 
on 15 March 2020; In Gauteng two stakeholder engagements  held on 14 February 2020 
and  12 March 2020.

106 Information 
display screens 
at stations

Not applicable Information 
Display Screens 
implemented

Not Achieved -100% 

Ongoing litigation regarding ISAMS/Siyangena has affected progress. ICT will continue 
engagement with Rail for motivation for funding to implement the project in the next 
financial years. 

107 Customer 
Help Desk 
for specific 
identified 
stations

Not applicable Customer 
Help Desks 
implemented 
at identified 
stations.

Not Achieved -100% 

Customer Help Desks are established at specific key stations however do not have links 
to the Control Centers. The customer help desks are manned between 05h00 and 18h00 
in Gauteng and between 05h30 and 19h30 in KZN
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Strategic 
Objective

# Performance 
Indicator

2018/29 Actual 
Performance

2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

108 24-hour Call 
center for 
PRASA

Not applicable Integrated 
24- hour Call 
Centre

Not Achieved  -100% 

Business requirements not signed-off by Autopax and Rail - they have been re-circulated 
for comments. Motivation for funding to implement the project in the 2020/21 financial 
year was not granted/approved. Exploring alternative solutions, with the aim of fully 
utilizing the current in-house solutions

109 Social Media 
utilized by 
PRASA

Not applicable Social Media: 
Twitter 
Instagram 
Facebook 
consolidation 
for PRASA and 
minimum of 1 
post per week

Achieved 0%    

Regular postings are taking place on Instagram The PRASA Twitter handles have more 
than 51 000 followers. The PRASA Group handle had 10 000 followers in March. This 
handle became active with the War room in August 2019. All of the handles have regular 
postings.

110 Customer 
Newsletter

Not applicable Introduce 
PRASA 
Customer 
Newsletter

Not Achieved   -100% 

No budget was allocated for a PRASA Customer Newsletter

111 Reputation 
Management 
Plan

Not applicable 60% positive 
news about 
PRASA

Not Achieved -100% 

The 2019/2020 financial year was a difficult one for Communications performance. 
Rampant vandalism and theft on the PRASA system has created a difficult operating 
environment. The resulting train delays, cancellations and overcrowding were widely 
covered as negative stories about PRASA’s performance and business reputation. In 
addition, changes in management added to the negative media coverage. 

In the next financial year, Communications will focus on positive strategic interventions 
on Revenue Enhancement & Cost Containment; Governance; Service Recovery; Safety 
Management; and Capital & Modernisation Programme Acceleration.

Objective 
14: Planning 
for Growth 
and Network 
Expansions

112 Rail expansion 
project 
(Motherwell 
Rail Link)

Not achieved as 
detailed designs 
not approved by 
the Transport 
Authority

PRASA to 
decision taken 
on deferment or 
implementation 
of Motherwell

Not Achieved -100% 

The Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) has not been signed between PRASA and 
Nelson Mandela Bay Metro (NMBM). NMBM has not finalized the Integrated Transport 
Plan. MOU with comments expected to have been received from NMBM before end of 
November 2019.

During 2020/21 PRASA and NMBM to finalize MoU and the project team will engage 
NMBM and get the Integrated Transport Plan done.

113 Rail expansion 
project (Blue 
Downs Rail 
Link)

Not applicable Advertise RFP 
& evaluate 
received 
Proposals

Not Achieved -100% 

The matter has not served at the BSC in 2019/20. The plan is to re-submit to the BSC 
during April 2020
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Strategic 
Objective

# Performance 
Indicator

2018/29 Actual 
Performance

2019/20 Target 2019/20   Actual 
Performance

Variance

114 Rail expansion 
projects 
(Daveyton - 
Etwatwa Rail 
Corridor)

Not applicable Submission 
of motivation 
for Capital 
Allocation

Not Achieved -100% 

Capital budget process for 2020/2021 will commence in April 2020 and obtain executive 
approval and submit the approved Business Case to EPMO during April 2020
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During the period under review, the 
term of office of the Interim Board 
of Control was extended from 1 April 
2019 and terminated by the Minister 
on 5 December 2019. 

The Board exercised its oversight 
responsibilities over the organisation, 
assisted by the following Board 
subcommittees:
• Audit and Risk Committee
• Human Resources and 

Remuneration Committee
• Finance, Capital Investment and 

Procurement (FCIP) Committee
• Safety, Health and Environment 

Quality (SHEQ) Committee
• Governance and Performance 

Committee

The Board’s main focus during the 
reporting period was to put in place 
controls to stabilise the organisation 
and take remedial action where 
necessary.

Constitution of the Board of 
Control, 2019/2020 (1 April 2019 
to 5 December 2019)

Between 1 April and 5 December 2019, 
the Interim Board of Control consisted 
of the following members:
• Ms. K Kweyama
• Mr. R Khan 
• Mr. K Wessie
• Ms. D Tshepe
• Mr. T Setai
• Ms. J Schreiner
• Ms. A.Nchabeleng
• Mr. S Ntsaluba
• Mr. X George

Board achievements over the 
period 

The Board achieved the following 
important milestones during the 
period under review:

• Made recommendations to the 
Minister on organisation-critical 
tenders including the Security 
Tender and the Rolling Stock Heavy 
Maintenance Tender (General 
Overhaul).

• Implemented Proclamation No. 
R. 51 of 2019 on the Special 
Investigating Unit and Special 

THE BOARD OF CONTROL

Tribunals Act (74/1996). Referral of 
matters to the Special Investigating 
Unit: Passenger Rail Agency of 
South Africa by the President of the 
Republic of South Africa.

• Establishment of the Autopax 
Board to oversee the entity.

• Approval of the NTM Employees 
payback in line with the court 
order.

• Approval of the 2019/20 Corporate 
Plan and the 2018/19 Annual 
Report.

• Approval of Bargaining Unit 
Employee Annual Salary increases.

• Addressing of long outstanding 
investigations, including Zondo 
Commission enquiries and PPSA 
and SIU investigations.

• Recruitment of key executives.
• Approval of accounting policies 

for conversion from the Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) to Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP).

• Resolution on the divisionalisation 
of Autopax and consolidation of the 
Group Property portfolio.

• Development of a Group Payment 
Plan.

Work of the various committees

Audit and Risk Committee

The purpose of this committee was 
to provide independent oversight of 
the integrity of the Annual Financial 
Statements and the effectiveness of 
the assurance functions and internal 
controls. 

The committee had the following 
responsibilities which were set out in 
its terms of reference:
• Internal Audit oversight
• Combined Assurance
• Governance of Risk incl. financial 

reporting risks, internal financial 
controls, fraud risks as it relates 
to financial reporting, IT risks as 
it relates to financial reporting, 
Operational risk reviews in 
conjunction with the Safety, 
Health and Environmental Quality 
Assurance Committee.  

• Compliance with Laws and 
Regulations

• Review the effectiveness of 
the system for monitoring the 

Group’s compliance with laws 
and regulations and the results of 
management’s investigation and 
follow-up (including disciplinary 
action) of any fraudulent acts or 
non-compliance.

The Audit Committee consisted of 
the following members in the year in 
question:
• Mr. S Ntsaluba
• Mr. K Wessie
• Ms. D Tshepe
• Mr. T Setai

The committee satisfied its 
responsibilities for the year, in 
accordance with its terms of reference. 
Its achievements during the period 
under review included the following 
important milestones:
• Provided oversight over Autopax 

in terms of Audit and Risk 
responsibilities, which included 
consideration of the loan 
subordination requirements and 
application, and its quarterly and 
Annual Financial Statements.  

• Finalisation of the Group 
Financials, quarterly and annual, 
including conclusion of the audit.  

• Approval and monitoring of 
implementation of the Internal 
Audit plan.  

• Approval of the ICT strategy.
• Development of the Irregular 

Expenditure Framework and the 
Irregular Expenditure Register.

• Oversight and recommendation of 
the final NTM Backpay Audit.

• Recommendation of the Risk 
Framework and Policies.

Human Resources and Remuneration 
Committee 

The Human Resources and 
Remuneration Committee (HRRC) 
consisted of the following members 
during the period of the Interim Board:
• Ms. K Kweyama
• Ms. D Tshepe
• Ms. J Schreiner
• Mr. X George

The Committee adopted its ToR setting 
out its responsibilities and mandate 
which were as follows:
• Ensure development and 

continuous review of the 
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framework, policies and guidelines 
for PRASA’s human resources.

• Guide PRASA’s human resources 
practices, succession planning 
of Executives, training and 
development programme

• Monitor the effective 
implementation of Employment 
Equity Plans

• Enhance and monitor business 
performance

• Ensure the organisational 
development of PRASA, including 
the restructuring of existing 
organisational structures.  

The Committee performed all its 
duties as per the ToR during the 
period under review and achieved the 
following important milestones:

• Made recommendations to the 
Minister regarding strategic 
tenders, including development of 
the operating and organisational 
design model

• Addressed organisational needs 
with regard to:
 - Automation of all HCM services
 - Assessment of critical skills 

within the organisation
 - HCM Rescue Plan
 - Relocation of the Corporate 

Office to Umjantshi
• Integration of NTM employees
• Consideration of Employment 

Relations reports and the Training 
and Development plan

• Consideration and 
recommendation for approval of 
employee-critical policies including 
the Performance Management 
Policy, Leave Management Policy 
and Human Capital Development 
Policy.  

Finance, Capital Investment and 
Procurement Committee 

The Finance, Capital Investment and 
Procurement Committee (FCIP) had 
the following members during its 
tenure:
• Mr. K Wessie
• Ms. D Tshepe
• Ms. J Schreiner
• Mr. X George

According to its ToR, the Committee 
was entrusted with the following 
responsibilities:
• Review and recommend for 

approval by the Board the budget 
of the PRASA Group.

• Review capital and revenue 
investment and significant tenders.

• Give strategic direction and 
oversee execution of the Capital 
Investment Programme.

• Review and recommend for Board 
approval tenders that fall within 
the delegated authority of the 
Board.

• Review and recommend for Board 
approval the SCM Policy and 
related SOPs and Directives in 
place.  

The Committee achieved the following 
important milestones during the 
period under review:
• Considered and recommended the 

following critical tenders:
 - Security Tender
 - Rolling Stock Heavy 

Maintenance Tender i.e. General 
Overhaul

 - Variation orders for Signalling 
Tender

 - Cost benefit analysis for the 
server infrastructure

 - KZN Emergency works.
• Consideration of the engagements 

with the Development Bank of 
Southern Africa (DBSA) as the 
implementing agent of PRASA.

• Review of the SCM Policy in line 
with identified organisational 
challenges.  

Safety, Health and environment 
Quality Committee 

The Safety, Health and environment 
Quality (SHEQ) Committee had the 
following membership during its term:
• Ms. J Schreiner
• Mr. K Wessie
• Ms. D Tshepe
• Mr. S Ntsaluba

The Committee adopted ToR which 
assigned to it the following duties:
• Consider and recommend for 

approval by the Board policies, 
frameworks and guidelines 
that relate to safety, health, the 
protection of the environment and 
quality.

• Evaluate the implementation of 
the SHEQ Policy and Framework 
and the Committee’s composition, 
mandate and effectiveness.  

• Provide timely and accurate 
reports to the Board.

• Monitor the performance of 
the PRASA Group in respect of 
safety, health and environmental 
protection and quality.

• Evaluate the implementation 
and effectiveness of Integrated 
Management System  (“IMS”).

• Ensure that the resources needed 
for the IMS are available

The Committee performed the 
following important duties during the 
period under review:
• Oversaw the temporary safety 

permit application to ensure the 
permit was granted. 

• Monitored and addressed a matrix 
report on implementation of the 
safety permit conditions.  

• Ensured filling of critical vacancies.
• Developed the required policies.  
• Addressed Insurance Risks to 

ensure that risk cover was not 
revoked.  

• Reviewed the Group Security 
Structure.

Governance and Performance 
Committee

The Committee consisted of the Chairs 
of the Board’s Committees and the 
Chairs of the subsidiaries’ Boards. 

The mandate of the Governance and 
Performance Committee, according to 
its ToR, was to:
• Ensure and oversee a transparent 

and effective means for 
maintaining suitably qualified and 
committed Board membership

• Continuous assessment of the 
Board’s composition

• Perform the functions of the Social 
and Ethics Committee as per 
Regulation 43 of the Companies 
Regulations, 2011

• Oversee the functioning of the 
subsidiaries.  

The Committee consisted of the 
following members:
• Ms. K Kweyama
• Mr. K Wessie
• Ms. D Tshepe
• Ms. J Schreiner
• Mr. S Ntsaluba
• Autopax Board Chairperson
• Intersite Board Chairperson

1 The Integrated Management System means the integration of the Railway Safety Management 
standard (SANS 3000), the Quality Management Standard (ISO 9001), the Environmental Management 
Standard (ISO 14001), the Quality Management Standard for bus operators (SANS 10399), the Risk 
Management Standard (ISO 31001) and the Occupational Health and Safety Management System (ISO 
45000)
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Board of 
Control

Governance 
Committee

ARC FCIP HRCC SHEQ

No. of Meetings

Ms. K Kweyama 8 5 4 8

Mr. K Wessie 8 5 8 7 6

Ms. D Tshepe 8 5 8 7 5

Mr. T Setai 5 3 3

Ms. J Schreiner 7 5 6 3 8

Mr. S Ntsaluba 6 5 8 4

Mr. X George 8 3 5

Ms. E Nchabeleng 5 2

Mr. B Mthembu 4 2 5

Dr Nkosinathi Sishi 5 7

Mr. R Khan 4 4 3 2 4

Dr Nkosinathi Sishi 5 7

Mr. R Khan 4 4 3 2 4

Significant changes to the constitution of the Board

The term of the Interim Board ended on 5 December 
2019 when the Minister dissolved it and appointed an 
Administrator as the Accounting Authority for a period of 12 
months, beginning on 9 December 2019. The Administrator 
was given the following key priorities:

• Expedite the implementation of the modernisation 
programme, with priority focus on fencing, signalling, 
perway and station upgrades.

• Accelerate interventions aimed at improving operational 
performance.  

• Address all matters raised in the Auditor-General’s 
report and ensure that there are no repeat findings.  

• Security interventions across all corridors.

• Undertake the review of PRASA’s organisational design 
and business model.   

• Urgently develop capacity to manage PRASA’s capital 
programme, working with other state entities in the 
short term.  

• Build capacity to support interventions aimed at 
recovering the system by establishing requisite supplier 
panels through competitive bidding or other means 
permissible.  

• Attend to issues that require engagement with Transnet 
in order to unblock blockages that negatively affect 
operations.  

• Ensure effective consequence management and provide 
support to investigations currently underway by law 
enforcement authorities.  

1.1. The Board and Committee attendance was as follows for the period between April 2019 and December 2020 when their term 
ended:
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The Audit and Risk Committee was in existence for 3 
Quarters of the financial year under review. When the 
Minister of Transport dissolved the Board of Control on 
5 December 2019, the demise of the Board befell all its 
Committees, including the Audit and Risk Committee.

From the beginning of the financial year under review 
to 5 December 2019 the Audit and Risk Committee (the 
Committee) consisted of the members listed hereunder 
and it, during the said period, held 3 ordinary meetings and 
5 special meetings. According to the minutes, which were 
neither signed nor approved, and other records, the meetings 
of the Committee were held on 7 May, 24 May, 29 May, 29 
July, 28 August, 17 September, 24 October and 04 December 
2019. 

There were no minutes for most of the meetings, except for 
the meetings held on 7 May, 29 May, 17 September and 24 
October 2020. 

The attendance of the members at meetings was as set out 
in the table below.

Members Status Meetings 
Held 

Meetings 
Attended

Mr. Sango 
Ntsaluba

Chairperson 8 6

Ms. Doris Tshepe Member 8 6

Mr. Kodisang 
Wessie

Member 8 6

Mr Riad Khan Member 8 4

Mr Nehemia Setai Member 8 3

Audit and Risk Committee’s Responsibilities

The Committee adopted and maintained terms of reference.  

Compliance 

According to the minutes, which were unsigned and 
unapproved, the Committee received and reviewed only 
one compliance report from management. Certain areas of 
non-compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements 
relating to procurement were noted by the Committee. 

Corporate Governance 

During the financial year under review, the Committee 
did not raise any issue of non-compliance with applicable 
corporate governance principles. 

Effective Internal Control 

The internal controls assessment for the year indicated that 
the existing controls at PRASA were partially adequate; i.e. 
they partially provided reasonable assurance that the entity 
would achieve its performance objectives. Furthermore, the 

1 Mr Riad Khan was appointed on 11 April 2019 for six months and attended ARC meetings 
held on 24 May, 29 July and his term ended 10 October 2019 as per his appointment letter
2 Mr Setai was appointed for the period 19 July 2019 to 31 October 2019.  He attended ARC 
meetings on 24 October 2019 and 04 December 2019.  

existing controls at PRASA were not effective; i.e. they did 
not provide reasonable, appropriate and functional mitigation 
during the period of assessment. 

From the audit report on the financial statements and the 
management letter, it is noted that functionaries of the 
organization should have been more resolute in addressing 
matters of non-compliance with internal policies and 
deficiencies in the development of the appropriate policies 
and internal control procedures. 

Risk Management 

According to its terms of reference, the Committee should 
have, inter alia, reviewed risk management framework and 
monitor the risk mitigation strategies. 

There was apparently no focus on the adequacy of the 
insurance cover and enterprise wide risk management 
processes. 

Performance Management

The information on the performance against predetermined
objectives indicates that the organization did not achieve all 
its objectives and that it was not monitoring. 

Management was urged to inculcate the culture of 
consequence management by consistently taking disciplinary 
action to address transgressions and non-performance.  
 
Only one quarterly performance report had been considered 
by the Audit and Risk Committee by the time it was dissolved 
instead of two reports.   

Current Audit Committee

The current Audit and Risk Committee consisted of the 
members listed hereunder:

Members Status 

Ms Thinavhuyo N Mpye Chairperson

Adv. Smanga Sethene Member 

Mr. Matodzi Mukhuba Member

Evaluation of the Financial Statements 

The current Audit & Risk Committee performed the following 
functions in relation to the financial statements included in 
the Annual Report:
• reviewed and discussed the annual financial statements 

with the AGSA, management and the Board;
• reviewed the AGSA management letter; 
• reviewed changes in the accounting policies and 

procedures;
• reviewed significant adjustment arising from the audit.

The current Audit & Risk Committee concurs and accepts the 
conclusions of the AGSA on the annual financial statements 

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT  



PRASA 2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT54

and is of the opinion that the audited financial 
statements be accepted and read together with the 
report of the AGSA.

The interventions by the current Committee will include 
the implementation of the following measures: 

(a) Ensuring that people take responsibility and 
accountability for their actions and functions, 
whether they are acting in positions or not.

(b) Compliance with applicable governance principles;
(c) Review and development of internal controls and 

adherence thereto;
(d) Evaluation of the finance function;
(e) Review of the Performance Management Systems 

with a view to introducing performance based 
incentives through out the organisation. 

(f) Review of the effectiveness of the assurance 
providers;

(g) Development of action plans to address matters 
from the planned interaction    with with the AGSA, 
Internal Audit and Executive management.  

_______________________________________
Ms T.N. Mpye
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee
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HCM priorities for the year under review

workforce planning framework

PRASA HCM is currently faced with the following challenges:
• Personnel costs continue to escalate at a high rate. 
• No scientific approach to forecasting workforce needs to 

meet business strategy.
• No strategic approach to determine centralising vs 

decentralising of functions.
• Quantitative staffing ratios have not been determined 

to indicate ratios of support staff to core services 
employees.

• Structures not designed to support strategy but designed 
to accommodate existing employees and managers.

• People sourcing is not linked to Strategic Workforce 
Planning which inhibits PRASA’s ability to deliver on 
business imperatives. 

In addressing these challenges, HCM is to develop and 
implement an approach to right-sizing the organisation. The 
approach includes:

• Workforce Analytics, Segmentation and Forecasting
• Work Load Measurements
• Organisation Structure Alignment and Re-design
• Role profiling and grading
• Identification and succession planning of mission critical 

positions including advancement of employment equity 
(EE) candidates

Employee matching (skills audit) and placement 
(recruitment, transfers and promotions based on Succession 
Plans and skills matches)

HUMAN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Translate business 
strategy into 
organisational 
capabilities to 
ensure that the 
talent portfolio 
aligns to the needs 
of the business
Identify 
organisational 
business cycle
Identify key 
stakeholder

Establish the type 
of roles PRASA will 
need over the next 
three to five years
Prepare actual 
headcount and 
identify the 
strategic, core, 
requisite, and 
misaligned or 
redundant roles.

Forecast the future 
(3-5 years) Head 
count and the timing 
of any talent needs
Develop workforce 
demand data 
(budgeted position, 
workforce 
segments, EE 
profile)

Identify talent 
gaps between 
current and needed 
head count after 
considering all types 
of churn (retirement 
turnover, transfer 
and promotions)
Establish availability 
of Succession 
candidates

Identify actions 
and investments to 
arrive at optimal 
staffing level in 
line with personnel 
costs targets. 
Actions can include 
building talent 
internally, buying 
talent externally, 
outsourcing roles, 
merging roles, 
removing redundant 
roles

The PRASA Workforce Plan should detail areas that drive the requisite organisational capabilities in each Operating Division/
Department.

Before embarking on the workforce planning process, the current workforce needs to be profiled in line with the segments 
detailed below. Until PRASA can clearly outline the segments below, no workforce plan can be undertaken.

Segment Definition Typical 
Action

Strategic Roles that are critical to driving long-term competitive advantage through strategic organisational 
capabilities. These roles are often linked directly to top-line growth

Strengthen

Core Roles that are the “engine of the enterprise”, unique to the company and core to delivering 
its service. These roles often possess proprietary knowledge and skills that are hard to find 
or replace. These are roles where any disruption, loss of continuity or loss of PRASA specific 
knowledge will be extremely costly for the organisation.

Retain

Requisite Roles that the organisation cannot do without, but whose value could be delivered through 
alternative staffing strategies (other than full-time head count)

Streamline 
or 
Outsource

Misaligned Roles whose skills sets are not aligned with their current organisational unit Redeploy

Redundant Roles impacted by shifts in strategic capabilities Phase Out
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Employee Performance Management

Performance management at the employee level is an 
on-going interactive process between an employee and 
her/his supervisor/manager about the employee’s annual 
performance. Face-to-face ongoing communication is an 
essential requirement of the process and covers the full 
performance cycle (a cycle of one year, starting on 1 April 
and ending on 31 March of each year).  

This financial year was not without challenges. Finance 
has been a challenge and resulted in limited training 
interventions. Some managers did not submit their 
scorecards in fear of not delivering on their expected outputs.

PRASA has not complied fully with performance 
management. As the table below shows, Intersite was the 
only entity that fully complied with submission of scorecards 
for 2019/20. 

Divisions Total Headcount Total Number of 
Submitted Scorecards

Total Number 
of Outstanding 
Scorecards

Percentage complete

Corporate Office 188 118 70 63

PRASA Rail 412 381 31 92

PRASA CRES 104 97 7 93

INTERSITE 13 13 0 100

PRASA TECHNICAL/ 
ENGINEERING 
SERVICES

89 68 21 76

AUTOPAX 50 48 2 96

Total 856 725 131 85

On average 85% of management submitted their scorecards for 2019/20.

Performance Reporting by Skill Level

The following table provides the percentage of employees 
submitting performance scorecards per occupational level.

The submission rate at Executive and Senior management 
levels was lower than the overall submission rate of 
85%, with just over 70% submitting their scorecards. The 
submission rate by skilled and professional employees was 
approximately 90%, bringing the overall submission rate to 
85%.

Junior Employee Performance Management

Junior employees are not expected to compete scorecards. 
PRASA has had various engagements with labour to discuss 
the options of individual and group performance contracting 
and evaluation due to the fact that some functions in the 
operational environment are group/team based and others 
are individual task based. The South African Transport 
and Allied Workers Union (SATAWU) will be signing the 
Performance Management MoU that was signed by the 
United National Transport Union (UNTU) in 2015. 

2020/21 Performance Management Scorecards Cascading

A PRASA-wide performance management scorecard 
cascading drive commenced in March 2020. The various 
Business Units and Departments seconded their employees 
to be trained and to drive submission of their scorecards.

As of 31 March 2020, 80% of the Business Units 
had responded to the submission request. Of the 11 
Departments, only 4 made their submissions timeously. The 
initiative continues to ensure that in the 2020/21 financial 
year all management up to Assistant Management level have 
performance agreements in place. 

Recommendations

The following recommendations were implemented in 
Performance Management for the successful and timeous 
completion of performance scorecards at PRASA:

• For the year 2020/21, all PRASA management have to 
submit their signed scorecards by the end of April 2020. 
Due to COVID-19, electronically signed documents will be 
acceptable.

• PRASA management has to conduct the required 
quarterly reviews and implement the necessary 
interventions as stated in the policy.

• There must be alignment between the reviews (especially 
the final ones) and the year-end processes.

• There must be a review of the performance agreements 
against the Corporate Plan.

• The Capex and Operational budgets should be approved 
in the fourth quarter so that people can complete their 
performance agreements appropriately.

• PRASA-wide businesses should engage during the 
second quarter to reflect on performance and identify 
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the interventions needed to inform the following year’s 
plan. This will improve delivery, buy-in and business 
performance.

• The Divisional and Departmental Plans aligned to the 
Corporate Plan should be distributed in March of each 
year.

• Consequence management should be considered for 
those not submitting their scorecards 

Employee Wellness Programmes 

The national tender for EWP services from an external 
service provider was initiated during the financial year. This 
was for a national EWP service to employees across the 
entire organisation. EWP services were offered to PRASA 
employees until the end of January 2020 via an external 
service provider. The national tender was not finalised in this 
financial year. 

During the reporting year, over 1% of employees used the 
EWP service which assists them to address and overcome 
personal and psychological problems. 

The challenges within the business relate to the funding 
models of the various PRASA entities. Only PRASA Rail 
offers EWP and / or Occupational Health clinic services to 
its employees; thus, the EWP service to some employees is 
limited. 

Successes in some PRASA entities include health awareness 
sessions held with other service providers; HIV/AIDS 
testing sessions held on World AIDS Day, and regular 
communication with employees regarding health matters. 

Policy Development

The following policies have been developed and approved:
• Lifestyle Audit
• Ethics Policy
• Workforce Planning Policy
• Competency Management Policy
• Human Factor Management Policy
• Disciplinary Policy.

Labour is still being engaged on the following policies:
• Travel Policy
• Performance Management Policy
• Acting Policy
• Employment Equity Policy.

Labour has been engaged on the Bursary Policy and it is now 
under consideration by the PRASA Governance Committee.

Review of Departmental Structures

The Department conducted an assessment of approved 
business structures against SAP data and HCM practitioners’ 
knowledge and understanding of operations. The assessment 
found that, in the main:

• Structures were not designed/developed in line with the 
business

• Departmental business plans not available
• Most structures were last approved as far back as 

2013/2014

• Current operations are not in line with approved 
structures (in most Departments).

• Structures were approved as functions and some as 
positions. It is therefore impossible to count the total 
number of positions and the vacancy rate.

• There is a lack of alignment between most position titles 
on the SAP system and the approved structures.

• Some positions are similar but are named differently.
• Not all jobs are profiled and graded.
• Job profiles are not signed off.

Based on the findings of the assessment, the Department 
has embarked on a number of processes to strengthen 
controls. These include:
• Introduction of a new template for capturing structures to 

ensure that structures provide relevant information that 
will enable effective management, reporting and decision 
making. The template is already in use.

• Development of an Organisation Design Policy that will 
govern the design and review of business structures. The 
policy is still in draft.

• Development of a Job Evaluation Policy to govern the 
grading/evaluation of jobs and positions. This policy is 
still in draft.

• A review of current administrative support roles. This 
process is nearing completion.

• A review of the Employee Transfer Process and related 
documents. This process has been completed.

• Reviews of SAP data to ensure alignment with approved 
structures. This is a continuous process.

The biggest challenge in relation to organisational design is 
budgetary constraints for procurement of a job evaluation 
system.

Performance Rewards

The Remuneration and Benefits department was responsible 
for the reinstatement of 690 employees of the National 
Transport Movement (NTM) due to a court order in 2018. 
This project has a total value of R1.1 billion and is almost 
complete. A total of five (5) years’ worth of back pay was 
calculated in SAP for 690 employees per month, pay slips 
created and their net pay paid. 

The department has also facilitated the appointment of a 
new medical aid broker for the business.

A new reward policy was crafted, aligning PRASA with global 
best practice and paving the way towards more standardised 
remuneration practices for the PRASA Group. 

The Remuneration and Benefits department has worked 
closely with Payroll to draft a total guaranteed package (TGP) 
structuring policy with a TGP package module which would 
assist employees to understand and structure their TGPs.

PRASA was also party to a 52 000 strong class action 
settlement agreement initiated in July 2014 by members of 
the PRASA Sub Fund of the Transport Pension Fund together 
with the members of Transnet Sub Fund, the members 
of SAA Sub Fund and members of the Transnet Second 
Defined Benefit Fund against the Transport Pension Fund, 
the Transnet Second Defined Benefit Fund and Transnet SOC 
Ltd. This class action was settled in November 2019. The 
Transnet Pension Fund is a defined benefit fund thus the 



PRASA 2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT58

employer carries the financial risk of member retirements, 
however this settlement was funded from fund reserves and 
the matter was settled at no cost to the employer.

Challenges faced by PRASA

The department cannot conduct market benchmarking due 
to lack of budget. 

The need for remuneration and benefits consulting services 
and market data is also preventing the harmonisation of 
salary scales across the PRASA Group. Certain operational 
areas are allegedly on lower salary scales than the Group but 
no harmonisation can be done without ensuring that PRASA 
salary scales are aligned with the market.

Training Costs

The national training costs per entity are shown in the table 
below:

ENTITY BUDGET TOTAL TRAINING 
COSTS

PRASA Corporate R 8 871 840 R 688 792  

Intersite R 387 999 0.00

Autopax R 480 000  R 429 203 

PRASA Technical R 2 008 562 R 432 670 

PRASA Cres R 3 135 160 R 1 222 045 

PRASA Rail Head 
Office

R 20 206 775 R 7 458 477 

MLPS R 3 133 601 R 2 231 603  

TOTAL R 38 223 937 R 12 462 790

Spend during the financial year was over R 12m; in the 
previous year it was over R 32m. This reduction resulted from 
cost containment initiatives.

The costs shown in the above table relate only to direct 
training costs incurred by PRASA and do not include 
expenditure on training facilities, the cost of training material 
and the salaries of trainees and trainers. The actual cost of 
training is therefore far higher than the figures shown above. 

It should be noted that most PRASA entities complied with 
Transport Education Training Authority (TETA) processes 
regarding training accreditation compliance as well as with 
submission of workplace skills plans. 

Equity Targets

The table below reflects a comparison of the status of 
employment equity in PRASA as per the required Department 
of Labour (DoL) report, as at October 2019 against the 
economically active population as per Statistics SA (StatsSA)

Economic Active population
Statistics SA October 2019

DOL Consolidated Reports
October 2019

54.8.% Black population 
(AIC) Senior and Executive

30.10%

39.08% Female population 
(Senior and Executive)

32.10%

88.05 % Black Population 
(AIC) Middle and Junior 
Managers

68.00%

60.08 % Female Population 
(Middle and Junior 
Managers)

35.09%

4.08 % (Disabled) 1.50%
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Regional / Divisional Employment Equity Targets

PRASA 
Levels

KZN 
Region 

W.C
Region

E.L
Region

Gauteng 
Region

MLPS APX PRASA
CRES

Intersite PRASA
Corp.

PRASA
Tech 

Executives/
GM’s 
Senior 
Management
Female 
employees

2% 2% 1% 5% 1% 2% 2% 1% 3% 1%

Female 
employees
Middle 
Management

5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 4% 4% 2% 5% 2%

Female 
Employees
Technical /
scarce and 
or critical 
grades

5% 5% 5% 5% 1% 2% 2% 1% 5% 2%

Female 
employees
Bargaining 
grades

5% 5% 5% 5% 1% 1% 4% 1% 5% 2%

2% disability
All racial 
groups
Male/female

2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

PRASA EE Targets 2019-2023

• 54.8% AIC staff by 2023
• 15% female staff by 2023
• 20% of all managers to be AIC by 2023
• 6.2% of all managers to be female by 2023
• 4% of staff with disabilities by 2023

Future HR Plans And Goals

PRASA currently has budget limitations and there is no budget allocation in the 2020/21 financial year to implement Human 
Capital projects, except for the Shared Services. However, in the future PRASA Human Capital intends to implement the pillars 
of the Human Capital strategy through prioritising the following:

• Implement a three-year wage agreement.
• Development and approval of PRASA Employee Value Proposition.
• Approval of the developed PRASA Culture: “I am PRASA”.
• Implementation of PRASA Talent Management and succession review strategy.
• Completion of PRASA Skills Audit, which was planned for 2020/21. However, there is no internal capacity except for Human 

Capital and no budget allocation in 2020/21 to conduct the audit.
• Develop and implement the PRASA Leadership Competency framework.
• Implement the rewards and recognition programme 
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Report of the auditor-general to 
Parliament on the Passenger Rail 
Agency of South Africa
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Report of the auditor-general to Parliament on the Passenger Rail Agency of 
South Africa

Africa Report on the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements

Disclaimer of opinion 

1. I was engaged to audit the consolidated (economic entity) and separate (controlling entity) 
financial statements of the Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa (Prasa) and its subsidiaries 
(the group), set out on pages 78 to 174, which comprise the consolidated and separate 
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, the consolidated and separate statement 
of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement and the 
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as the 
notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies.

2. I do not express an opinion on the financial statements of the public entity. Because of the 
significance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of this 
auditor’s report, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis 
for an audit opinion on these consolidated and separate financial statements.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

Property, plant and equipment

3. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had properly 
accounted for property, plant and equipment (PPE) in accordance with the requirements of 
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) 17, Property, plant and equipment (GRAP 
17). This was due to the inadequate state of accounting records, including the lack of a credible 
fixed asset register and the non-submission of some information in support of these assets. Some 
assets were not recorded in the asset register, while others were recorded but their existence 
could not be verified. I was unable to confirm these assets by alternative means. Consequently, 
I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were necessary to the net carrying amount 
of PPE, stated at R40 billion (2018/19: R39,9 billion) and R40,2 billion (2018/19: R40 billion); 
depreciation and amortisation stated at R2,5 billion (2018/19: R2,1 billion) and R2,5 billion 
(2018/19: R2,2 billion); general expenses stated at R3,9 billion (2018/19: R7,2 billion) and 
R4,2 billion (2018/19: R7,5 billion); surplus for the year stated at R2,4 billion (2018/19: R1,9 
billion deficit for the year) and R2,3 billion (2018/19: R2,1 billion deficit for the year) and the 
accumulated surplus stated at R20 billion (2018/19: R17,7 billion) and R19,8 billion (2018/19: 
R17,6 billion) for the controlling entity and the economic entity, respectively. Since the PPE is 
included in the determination of net cash flows from investing activities reported in the cash 
flow statement, I was unable to determine whether cash flows from investing were accurate 
and complete.

4. The public entity did not review the useful lives and residual values of PPE at each reporting 
date in accordance with the requirements of GRAP 17. The PPE carrying amount included 
some classes of PPE with a cost amount of R4,8 billion which had zero net carrying amount 
while still being in use for the current and prior year for both the controlling and economic entity. 
I was
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unable to determine the impact on the net carrying amount of PPE, stated at R40 billion (2018/19: 
R39,9 billion) and R40,2 billion (2018/19: R40 billion); depreciation and amortisation stated at 
R2,5 billion (2018/19: R2,1 billion) and R2,5 billion (2018/19: R2,2 billion); surplus for the year 
stated at R2,4 billion (2018/19: R1,9 billion deficit for the year) and R2,3 billion (2018/19: R2,1 
billion deficit for the year) and the accumulated surplus stated at R20 billion (2018/19: R17,7 
billion) and R19,8 billion (2018/19: R17,6 billion) for the controlling entity and the economic 
entity respectively, as it was impracticable to do so.

5. The public entity did not adequately perform the impairment assessment for PPE at each 
reporting date in accordance with the requirements of GRAP 21, Impairment of non cash- 
generating assets (GRAP 21). The impairment assessment performed by management did 
not include some of the material classes of assets that had significant impairment indicators. 
I was unable to determine the impact on the net carrying amount of PPE, stated at R40 billion 
(2018/19: R39,9 billion) and R40,2 billion (2018/19: R40 billion); impairment loss stated at 
R232,8 million (2018/19: R424,3 million reversal of impairment) and reversal of impairment 
stated at R19,4 million (2018/19: R656,8 million); surplus for the year stated at R2,4 billion 
(2018/19: R1,9 billion deficit for the year) and R2,3 billion (2018/19: R2,1 billion deficit for the 
year) and the accumulated surplus stated at R20 billion (2018/19: R17,7 billion) and R19,8 
billion (2018/19: R17,6 billion) for the controlling entity and the economic entity respectively, as 
it was impracticable to do so.

Unspent conditional grants and revenue from non-exchange transactions – capital subsidy
and grants amortised 

6. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had properly 
accounted for the unspent conditional grants and capital subsidy and grants amortised in 
accordance with the requirements of GRAP 23, Revenue from non-exchange transactions 
(GRAP 23). This was due to management being unable to provide information that confirms 
conditions applied to these grants, resulting in a liability being recognised on the statement 
of financial position, and that these conditions had been met, resulting in amounts being 
recognised in the statement of financial performance. I was unable to confirm these by alternative 
means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were necessary to 
unspent conditional grants of R48,8 billion (2018/19: R45 billion) and capital subsidy and grants 
amortised of R4,3 billion (2018/19: R3,5 billion), as disclosed in notes 16 and 20 to the financial 
statements for the controlling entity and economic entity, respectively.

Prior period error

7. The prior period errors and adjustments as disclosed in notes 34 and 35 to the financial 
statements was not in accordance with the requirements of GRAP 3, Accounting policies, 
change in accounting estimates and errors (GRAP 3). Note 34 to the financial statements 
includes cumulative adjustments from 2017/18 for both depreciation and amortisation and 
repairs and maintenance as 2018/19 adjustments for the controlling entity and economic entity. 
Note 35 to the financial statements does not include any disclosure on the impact on the 
accumulated surplus for both 2018/19 and 2017/18 and there is no disclosure of the impact on 
the capital subsidy and grants amortised for 2017/18 for the controlling entity and economic 
entity. Note 35 to the financial statements only includes the impact of the error as far as the 
2017/18 financial period with no disclosure on the impact preceding 2017/18. Sufficient and 
appropriate evidence was not provided to substantiate that it was impractical to disclose the 
impact on preceding years.
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Receivables from non-exchange transactions, revenue from non-exchange transactions – 
operational subsidy and bad debts written off

8. During 2018/19, Prasa did not recognise all revenue from non-exchange transactions – 
operational subsidy in accordance with the requirements of GRAP 23. The operational subsidy 
relating to the 2018/19 year was incorrectly recognised as a receipt of R838,8 million relating 
to a prior year receivable from non-exchange transactions. The R838,8 million receivables 
from non-exchange transactions should have been derecognised in accordance with the 
requirements of GRAP 104, Financial instruments (GRAP 104). Consequently, the revenue from 
non- exchange transactions – operational subsidy and bad debts written off were understated 
by R838,8 million as included on notes 23 and 26 to the 2018/19 financial statements for the 
controlling entity and economic entity, respectively. Additionally, there was an impact on the 
deficit for the 2018/19 period and the accumulated surplus. My audit opinion on the financial 
statements for the period ended 31 March 2019 was modified accordingly. My opinion on the 
current year financial statements was also modified because of the possible effect of this matter 
on the opening balance of the accumulated surplus and the comparability of the revenue from 
non-exchange and the surplus (deficit) for the year.

Change in accounting policy - first time adoption of GRAP

9. During 2018/19, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management 
had properly accounted for the change in accounting policy for the first time adoption of GRAP 
in accordance with the requirements of Directive 11, Change in measurement basis following 
initial adoption of Standards of GRAP and GRAP 3. This was due to the lack of supporting audit 
evidence to substantiate the change in accounting policy adjustments for the capital subsidy 
and grants – non-current liabilities amount of R23,1 billion and material inconsistencies between 
the amounts disclosed in respect of the adjustment to the capital subsidy and grants – non-
current liabilities of R59,2 billion as previously reported for 2017/18 and the audited balances 
previously reported as R65,7 billion and R65,4 billion for the controlling entity and economic 
entity, respectively. I was unable to confirm this adjustment by alternative means. Consequently, 
I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were necessary to the unspent conditional 
grants stated at R44,8 billion for 2018/19 (2017/18: R40,1 billion) for the controlling entity and 
the economic entity. My audit opinion on the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 
2019 was modified accordingly. My opinion on the current year financial statements was also 
modified because of the possible effect of this matter on the opening balances.

10. The change in accounting policy as disclosed in 2018/19, was also not accounted for in 
accordance with the requirements of GRAP 3. The financial statements stated that retrospective 
application was impracticable for periods preceding 2017/18, while no evidence was provided 
to substantiate this statement of impracticability. In addition, there was a lack of supporting 
audit evidence to substantiate the change in accounting policy adjustment for the accumulated 
surplus of R25,5 billion for the controlling entity and economic entity, as disclosed in note 35 to 
the 2018/19 financial statements. I was also unable to confirm the restatement of the opening 
accumulated surplus balance by R23,2 billion at 1 April 2017 as disclosed on the statement 
of changes in net assets for the year ended 31 March 2017. This amount, together with the 
restatement of R2,5 billion at 1 April 2018, was not included in the change in accounting policy 
note on the 31 March 2019 financial statements. I was unable to confirm these adjustments by 
alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were 
necessary to the accumulated surplus stated at R18,9 billion for 2018/19 (2017/18: R20,4 
billion) and R18,8 billion for 2018/19 (2017/18: R20,5 billion) for the controlling entity and the 
economic
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entity, respectively. My audit opinion on the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 
2019 was modified accordingly. My opinion on the current year financial statements was also 
modified because of the possible effect of this matter on the opening balances.

Commitments

11. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had properly 
accounted for commitments disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements in accordance 
with the requirements of GRAP 1, Presentation of financial statements (GRAP 1). This was 
due to a lack of supporting audit evidence to substantiate R15,8 billion included in operational 
commitments as services contracted but not provided for. I was unable to confirm that the 
assumptions used by management were reasonable as they could not be substantiated by 
adequate supporting evidence. I was unable to confirm this amount by alternative means. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were necessary to the 
commitments already contracted but not provided for stated at R16,6 billion (2018/19: R20,4 
billion) in note 30 to the financial statements for the controlling entity and the economic entity.

Risk management

12. Risk management details as disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements were not in 
accordance with the requirements of GRAP 104. Prasa has not disclosed its exposure to 
market related risks including interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations. As Prasa has 
significant cash and cash equivalents balances and foreign currency denominated contracts, 
its exposure to market risks and foreign currency risk is considered material. The comparatives 
included in the risk management disclosure was changed in the current year however, no prior 
period error adjustment was disclosed in accordance with the requirements of GRAP 3.

Irregular expenditure 

13. Section 55(2)(b)(i) of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 
1999) (PFMA) requires the entity to disclose in a note to the controlling entity and economic 
entity financial statements particulars of all irregular expenditure that had occurred during 
the financial year. The group did not have an adequate system for identifying and disclosing 
all irregular expenditure and there were no satisfactory alternative procedures that I could 
perform to obtain reasonable assurance that all such expenditure had been properly recorded 
in note 40 to the financial statements. Consequently, I was unable to determine the full extent 
of the adjustment necessary to the balance of irregular expenditure stated at R27,3 billion 
(2018/19: R26.2 billion) for the controlling entity and at R28,6 billion (2018/19: R27,3 billion) 
for the economic entity in note 40.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

14. Section 55(2)(b)(i) of the PFMA requires the entity to disclose in a note to the controlling entity 
and economic entity financial statements particulars of all fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
that had occurred during the financial year. The group did not have an adequate system for 
identifying and disclosing all fruitless and wasteful expenditure and there were no satisfactory 
alternative procedures that I could perform to obtain reasonable assurance that all such 
expenditure had been properly recorded in note 39 to the financial statements. Consequently, 
I was unable to determine the full extent of the adjustment necessary to the balance of fruitless 
and wasteful expenditure stated at R362 million (2018/19: R333 million) for the controlling 
entity and at



PRASA 2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 65

R432 million (2018/19: R383 million) for the economic entity in note 39 to the financial statements.

Emphasis of matters 

15. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Material impairments 

16. As disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements, an additional impairment of R21,2 million 
was recognised as a result of a further impairment of the receivable relating to the locomotives 
contract. The balance of this impairment is R2,2 billion.

Material capital commitments 

17. Included in note 30 to the financial statements is R73,3 billion for both the controlling entity 
and economic entity relating to a commitment for the purchase of rolling stock (fleet renewal 
programme).

Other matters

18. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Lack of governance records 

19. Prasa did not maintain complete governance records, including minutes of meetings of the 
board, its sub-committees, the executive committee and the additional structures implemented 
after the board was discharged in December 2019. This has had a negative impact across the 
audit as resolutions and other decisions taken could not be confirmed, including those taken 
subsequent to year-end.

Material impairments of loans to controlled entities

20. As disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements for the economic entity, the total amount 
loaned to Autopax Passenger Services (SOC) Ltd, the 100% owned subsidiary, was R873,6 
million of which the total amount has been impaired. There were no approvals of the loan as 
required by section 66(3)(b) of the PFMA.

Responsibilities of the accounting authority for the financial statements

21.The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
the consolidated and separate financial statements in accordance with Standards of 
GenerallyRecognised Accounting Practice (Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the 
PFMA and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

22. In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the accounting authority is 
responsible for assessing the public entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
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 unless the appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the public entity or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate
financial statements

23. My responsibility is to conduct an audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements 
in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and to issue an auditor’s report. 
However, because of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of this 
auditor’s report, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis 
for an audit opinion on these financial statements.

24. I am independent of the group in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the Code of 
ethics for professional accountants and parts 1 and 3 of the International Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ (including 
International Independence Standards) (IESBA codes) as well as the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements. I have fulfilled 
my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA codes.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

Introduction and scope 

25. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and 
the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report on the usefulness 
and reliability of the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for 
selected objectives presented in the annual performance report. I performed procedures to 
identify material findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

26. My procedures address the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information, 
which must be based on the approved performance planning documents of the public entity. 
I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators / 
measures included in the planning documents. My procedures do not examine whether the 
actions taken by the public entity enabled service delivery. My procedures also do not extend 
to any disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information in 
respect of future periods that may be included as part of the reported performance information. 
Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.

27. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance 
with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as 
defined in the general notice, for the following selected objective presented in the annual 
performance report of the public entity for the year ended 31 March 2020:

Objectives Pages in the annual 
performance report

Objective 6 - Improving Passenger Rail Travel 
Experience through Modernization 38–39
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28. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was 
consistent with the approved performance planning documents. I performed further procedures 
to determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and 
assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was 
valid, accurate and complete.

29.I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information for this objective:

• Objective 6 - Improving Passenger Rail Travel Experience through Modernization

Other matters 

30. I draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets 

 31. Refer to the annual performance report on pages ... to ... for information on the achievement 
of planned targets for the year.

Adjustment of material misstatements 

32. I identified a material misstatement in the annual performance report submitted for auditing. This 
material misstatement was in the reported performance information of Objective 6 - Improving 
Passenger Rail Travel Experience through Modernization. As management subsequently 
corrected the misstatement, I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability 
of the reported performance information.

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope 

33. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a 
responsibility to report material findings on the public entity’s compliance with specific matters 
in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to 
express assurance.

34. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows:

Annual financial statements 

35. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the 
prescribed financial reporting framework and supported by full and proper records, as required 
by section 55(1)(a) and (b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements of non-current assets, 
current assets, non-current liabilities, expenditure, the cash flow statement, the statement of 
comparison of budget and actual amounts and disclosure items identified by the auditors in 
the submitted financial statements were corrected and the supporting records were provided 
subsequently, but the uncorrected material misstatements and supporting records that could 
not be provided resulted in the financial statements receiving a disclaimer of opinion.
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Expenditure management

36. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure, as required 
by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA. As reported in the basis for the disclaimer of opinion, the 
value disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements does not reflect the full extent of irregular 
expenditure incurred which could not be quantified. The majority of the expenditure disclosed 
in the financial statements was caused by non-compliance with supply chain management-
related legislation.

37. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure, 
as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA. As reported in the basis for the disclaimer 
of opinion, the value disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements does not reflect the 
full extent of fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred which could not be quantified. The 
majority of the fruitless and wasteful expenditure disclosed in the financial statements was 
caused by payments made where there was no value derived.

Procurement and contract management

38. Some goods, works or services were not procured through a procurement process that is 
fair, equitable, transparent and competitive, as required by section 51(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA. 
Similar non-compliance was also reported in the prior year.

39. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that some goods, works and 
services were procured through a procurement process which is fair, equitable, transparent 
and competitive, as required by section 51(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA.

40. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that the bids of the winning 
suppliers were received before the stipulated closing date and time which impacts on a fair, 
equitable, transparent and competitive procurement process, as required by section 51(1)(a)
(iii) of the PFMA.

41. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that contracts were awarded to 
bidders in an economical manner and/or prices for the goods or services were reasonable as 
required by section 57(b) of the PFMA.

42. Some of the contracts and quotations were awarded to bidders based on preference points that 
were not allocated and/or calculated in accordance with the requirements of the Preferential 
Procurement Policy Framework Act of South Africa, 2000 (Act No. 5 of 2000) (PPPFA) and its 
regulations.

43. Some of the contracts and quotations were awarded to bidders that did not score the highest 
points in the evaluation process, as required by section 2(1)(f) of the PPPFA and the Preferential 
Procurement Regulations.

44. Some of the tenders which achieved the minimum qualifying score for functionality criteria 
were not evaluated further in accordance with the 2017 preferential procurement regulation 
5(7).

45. Some of the bid documentation for procurement of commodities designated for local content 
and production, did not stipulate the minimum threshold for local production and content as 
required by the 2017 preferential procurement regulation 8(2). Similar non-compliance was 
also reported in the prior year.



PRASA 2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 69

46. Some of the commodities designated for local content and production, were procured from 
suppliers that did not submit a declaration on local production and content as required by the 
2017 Preferential Procurement Regulation.

47. Some of the commodities designated for local content and production, were procured from 
suppliers that did not meet the prescribed minimum threshold for local production and content, 
as required by the 2017 preferential procurement regulation 8(5).

Consequence management

48. Disciplinary steps were not taken against officials who had incurred irregular and fruitless 
and wasteful expenditure, as required by section 51(1)(e)(iii) of the PFMA. This was due to all 
instances of such expenditure reported in the prior year not being investigated.

Other information

49.The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the annual report. The other information does not include 
the consolidated and separate financial statements, the auditor’s report and the selected 
objective presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported on 
in this auditor’s report.

50. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information 
and compliance with legislation does not cover the other information and I do not express an 
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

51. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and 
separate financial statements and the selected objective presented in the annual performance 
report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

52. I did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. When I do receive 
and read this information, and if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I am 
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the 
other information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, I may have to retract 
this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected 
this will not be necessary.

Internal control deficiencies

53. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements, reported performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; 
however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported 
below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for the 
disclaimer of opinion, and the findings on compliance with legislation included in this report.

54. The lack of approved governance records as indicated in paragraph 19 is a matter of significant 
concern and requires urgent intervention.
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55. Section 24 of the Legal Succession to the South African Transport Services Act, 1989 (Act 
No. 9 of 1989) (Legal Succession Act) prescribes that the minister shall appoint a board of 
control of Prasa. Since the discharge of the previous board of control in December 2019, the 
minister has not appointed a board of control, as required by the Legal Succession Act, which 
has resulted in instability at the entity. The instability at board and executive management 
level, where positions have been filled by a number of acting incumbents has continued to 
impact the entity negatively and has contributed to the significant deficiencies in the financial 
management and compliance monitoring processes. This, together with the complacent 
attitude, lack of accountability and lack of effort of some executives to address the collapse 
of the internal controls, including those relating to asset management and the information 
technology environment, when combined with the significant matters that have been 
repeatedly reported over the previous audits has contributed to the stagnated audit outcome. 
The inadequate records supporting amounts disclosed as assets under construction, which 
constitutes a significant portion of PPE, remains a significant concern and requires urgent 
intervention.

56. Prasa is constantly under threat from a security perspective with the pillaging and destruction 
of the rail infrastructure continuing unabated. Not only are trains continuously being vandalised 
and burnt, the rail network infrastructure has also been under consistent attack, stripped of 
copper cables, railway tracks, signalling equipment and overhead electricity cables, and 
its facilities across the country continue to be vandalised. Inadequate physical access and 
security measures to restrict access to passengers with valid tickets have resulted in low 
passenger numbers being recorded and contributed to declining fare revenue amounts and 
poor financial performance. There needs to be a holistic security strategy to ensure Prasa’s 
assets are secure, commuters are safe and fare revenue evasion is combatted.

57. The financial statements contained a significant number of material misstatements, resulting 
in a disclaimer of opinion being expressed. Previously reported deficiencies regarding the 
inadequate financial discipline of staff involved in the financial reporting process and ineffective 
reviews to ensure that credible financial statements were compiled remain unaddressed.

58. The documents supporting the financial statements were not in all instances properly filed and 
easily retrievable due to an inadequate document management system. Despite this matter 
being raised repeatedly during previous audit cycles, it has remained unaddressed to a large 
extent. The significant delays in the submission of information continued to have a negative 
impact on the audit process.

59. Major capital projects, including those related to rolling stock, signaling and the modernisation 
programme, remain behind schedule, resulting in low amounts of the capital subsidies being 
used. The supply chain management and project management function must be strengthened 
to ensure that the supply chain process does not create delays and that projects are properly 
managed to minimise delays.

Material irregularities

60. In accordance with the PAA and the Material Irregularity Regulations, I have a responsibility 
to report on material irregularities identified during the audit and on the status of the material 
irregularities reported in the previous year’s auditor’s report.
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Status of previously reported material irregularities

Unfair procurement process for the purchase of locomotives

61. A R3,5 billion contract for the purchase of locomotives was awarded in July 2012. Multiple 
noncompliance matters were identified in this regard including the following: The bid 
specifications were not drafted in accordance with the requirements of the supply chain 
management policy resulting in a contravention of section 51(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA.

62. The supplier was evaluated and allocated points for technical and financial capability 
even though insufficient and inappropriate evidence was included in the bid submission to 
indicate or demonstrate that the supplier was capable of executing the contract resulting in 
a contravention of section 51(1)(a) (iii) of the PFMA. According to the bid documentation, the 
supplier subcontracted 100% of the work to another supplier however, at the bid submission 
date there was no subcontracting agreement between the two parties and the supplier was 
evaluated on the technical capabilities of the subcontractor in contravention of section51(1)(a)
(iii) of the PFMA. A prepayment of R2,6 billion was made to the supplier for which Prasa has 
derived no value as the supplied locomotives were assessed as not fit for purpose by Prasa 
and the amount has not been recovered. The prepayment which had been reclassified to a 
receivable from exchange transactions was impaired by R2,2 billion as disclosed in note 12 to 
the financial statements for 2018/19. A material financial loss is likely as the supplier applied 
for liquidation in December 2018 and at the date of this report the liquidation process is still 
in progress. The initial phase of the investigation into this award, was initiated in 2015 by the 
board resulting in an application to the courts to set aside the contract which was finalised in 
May 2019. The second phase of the investigation into implicated employees was in progress 
at the finalisation of the 2018/19 auditor’s report.

63. The accounting authority was notified of the material irregularity on 17 July 2019. While it 
was acknowledged that the contract with the supplier has been cancelled and the Directorate 
for Priority Crime Investigations (DCPI) had been investigating the matter since 2015, I 
recommended that the accounting authority take the following action to further address the 
material irregularity, which had to be implemented by 31 March 2020:

(a) Appropriate action had to be taken to ensure the second phase of the investigation was 
concluded.

(b) Effective and appropriate disciplinary steps had to commence against any employee that 
the second phase of the investigation found to be responsible, as required by section 51(1)
(e) of the PFMA.

64. Delays were experienced with the implementation of the recommendations due to the changesat 
accounting authority level and the lockdown measures implemented in response to Covid- 19. 
As a result, I granted the new accounting authority an extension for the implementation of the 
recommendations to 18 August 2020.

65. To implement the recommendations, Prasa requested the Special Investigating Unit (SIU) 
to assist with the finalisation of the investigation into the material irregularity through the 
secondment of SIU resources to Prasa for a period of six months, with an option to extend. An 
agreement to this effect was signed on 11 September 2020.
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I will follow up on the investigation and the implementation of the disciplinary steps during my 
next audit cycle.

Competitive bidding process not followed in the appointment of general overhaul and
upgrade contractors

66. A competitive bidding process was not followed for the initial appointment of suppliers to 
provide general overhaul and upgrade services and for the subsequent extensions of the 
contracts, in contravention of the requirements of section 51(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA which 
requires a fair, equitable, transparent and competitive procurement process. The extensions 
from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2019 did not include any extension contract values. This was 
done despite the supply chain management policy at the time of the extension, prohibiting the 
awards of contracts for periods longer than three years.

67. Since the transition from South African Rail Commuter Corporation Limited (SARCC) to Prasa 
in 2008, a competitive bidding process has not been followed. Over time, various suppliers 
were added to the list of contractors from the SARCC over time including some added through 
a “confinement” process which was also found to be non-compliant with section 51(1)(a)(iii) of 
the PFMA and had been reported on in previous audit reports.

68. These contractors have continued to render services and significant irregular expenditure 
continues to be disclosed in respect of these services. Cumulative payments made in respect 
of these contractors exceeded R2,7billion. A material financial loss is likely as Prasa has not 
secured market-related prices by way of a competitive bidding process since 2008.

69. The accounting authority was notified of the material irregularity on 17 July 2019. The accounting 
authority requested an investigation by the SIU into the matter, which was approved by the 
President on 13 August 2019 and is in progress. I will follow up on the investigation and the 
implementation of the planned actions including disciplinary steps, financial recovery and civil 
and criminal cases arising from the outcome of the investigation, during my next audit.

Unfair procurement process followed in the appointment of the signalling contractor

70. A R1,8 billion contract for the design, construction and implementation of a new railway 
signalling system in the Western Cape, which is a key project, was awarded in July 2012. 
Non-compliance matters identified in this regard included the following:

• The closing date of the tender was extended from 31 March 2012 to 13 April 2012. 
However, there was insufficient, appropriate evidence to indicate that the revised tender 
closing date was communicated to all potential bidders, in contravention of section 51(1)
(a)(iii) of the PFMA.

• Prasa failed to maintain a register of the bid submissions received in contravention of 
section 51(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA and the Prasa’s supply chain management policy at the 
time of the award.

• A 10% mobilisation fee (advance payment) of R186,4 million was paid to the contractor 
in August 2013, while the signed contract did not include a provision for an advance 
payment guarantee to Prasa despite this being listed as an advance payment condition 
in the Briefing Note 007 issued in respect of the Request for Proposal (RFP) on 23 March 
2012. No
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evidence was provided that the contractor had provided the advance payment guarantee, 
resulting in a contravention of section 51(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA.

• The amount recommended by the Finance, Capital, Investment and Procurement 
Committee (FCIP) for approval was R1,6 billion, while the contract was awarded at R1,8 
billion. No evidence was provided to justify the difference in amounts of R255,7 million.

71. The non-compliance is likely to result in a material financial loss as a fair and transparent 
process was not followed in the appointment of the contractor. There was also no justification 
for the difference of R255,7 million between the contract value and the value recommended 
by the FCIP.

72. he accounting authority was notified of the material irregularity on 17 July 2019. There was 
a delay in the initiating of the investigation due to the changes in the accounting authority of 
Prasa. The SIU was requested to assist with the finalisation of the investigation into the material 
irregularity through the secondment of SIU resources to Prasa for a period of six months, with 
an option to extend. An agreement to this effect was signed on 11 September 2020 and the 
investigation is in progress. I will follow up on the investigation and the implementation of the 
planned actions, including disciplinary steps, financial recovery and civil and criminal cases 
arising from the outcome of the investigation, during my next audit.

Competitive bidding process not followed in the award relating to the provision of bus
services in the Western Cape

73. A competitive bidding process was not followed for the appointment of a supplier to provide 
bus services in the Western Cape since 2005, in contravention of the requirements of 
section 51(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA which requires afair, equitable, transparent and competitive 
procurement process. Prasa has continued to use this supplier on the basis of this 2005 
contract, without testing the market and despite the 2009 and 2014 supply chain management 
policies prohibiting the awards of contracts for periods longer than three years.

74. A material financial loss is likely as Prasa has not secured market-related prices by way of a 
competitive bidding process since 2005.

75. The accounting authority was notified of the material irregularity on 18 July 2019. There was 
a delay in the initiating of the investigation due to the changes in the accounting authority of 
Prasa. The SIU was requested to assist with the finalisation of the investigation into the material 
irregularity through the secondment of SIU resources to Prasa for a period of six months, with 
an option to extend. An agreement to this effect was signed on 11 September 2020 and the 
investigation is in progress. I will follow up on the investigation and the implementation of the 
planned actions including disciplinary steps, financial recovery and civil and criminal cases 
arising from the outcome of the investigation, during my next audit.

Competitive bidding process not followed in the award relating to the provision of 
surveillance services (drones)

76. In February 2018, a deviation in terms of treasury regulation 16A.6.6 for the provision of 
surveillance services (drones) to the value of R3,2 million was approved for a period of six 
months.
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77. The regulation used as a basis to deviate from the competitive bidding process does not 
apply to Prasa as a schedule 3B entity and the contracts were extended without obtaining the 
required approvals resulting in a contravention of section 51(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA.

78. A material financial loss is likely as Prasa has not secured market-related prices by way 
of a competitive bidding process and the contract has been extended without obtaining the 
required approvals.

79. The accounting authority was notified of the material irregularity on 18 July 2019. There was 
a delay in the initiating of the investigation due to the changes in the accounting authority of 
Prasa. The SIU was requested to assist with the finalisation of the investigation into the material 
irregularity through the secondment of SIU resources to Prasa for a period of six months, with 
an option to extend. An agreement to this effect was signed on 11 September 2020 and the 
investigation is in progress. I will follow up on the investigation and the implementation of the 
planned actions including disciplinary steps, financial recovery and civil and criminal cases 
arising from the outcome of the investigation, during my next audit.

Competitive bidding process not followed in the award relating to the provision of security 
services

80. In February 2018, a deviation in terms of treasury regulation 16A.6.6 for the provision of 
security services to the value of R9,3 million was approved for a period of six months.

81. The regulation used as a basis to deviate from the competitive bidding process does not 
apply to Prasa as a schedule 3B entity and the contracts were extended without obtaining the 
required approvals resulting in a contravention of section 51(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA.

82. A material financial loss is likely as Prasa has not secured market-related prices by way 
of a competitive bidding process and the contract has been extended without obtaining the 
required approvals.

83. The accounting authority was notified of the material irregularity on 18 July 2019. There was 
a delay in the initiating of the investigation due to the changes in the accounting authority of 
Prasa. The SIU was requested to assist with the finalisation of the investigation into the material 
irregularity through the secondment of SIU resources to Prasa for a period of six months, with 
an option to extend. An agreement to this effect was signed on 11 September 2020 and the 
investigation is in progress. I will follow up on the investigation and the implementation of the 
planned actions including disciplinary steps, financial recovery and civil and criminal cases 
arising from the outcome of the investigation, during my next audit.

Uncompetitive process followed in the awards relating to the repair, supply and delivery of 
signalling equipment on the basis of an “emergency” deviation

84. In July 2018, three deviations to the value of R7,5 million were approved on the basis of 
emergencies with contracts to the value of R11 million being concluded in September 2018 
with the same supplier for the repair, supply and delivery of signalling equipment.

85. The basis for the deviation does not meet the requirements of National Treasury SCM 
Instruction Note 3 of 2016/17 as it could have been avoided had proper planning occurred and 
there was no evidence of additional approvals for the difference between the award amount 
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and the amount approved for the deviation resulting in a contravention of section 51(1)(a)(iii) 
of the PFMA.

86.A material financial loss is likely as Prasa has not secured market-related prices by way of a 
competitive bidding process and the award price exceeded the deviation approval amount by 
R3,5 million.

87. The accounting authority was notified of the material irregularity on 18 July 2019. There was 
a delay in the initiating of the investigation due to the changes in the accounting authority of 
Prasa. The SIU was requested to assist with the finalisation of the investigation into the material 
irregularity through the secondment of SIU resources to Prasa for a period of six months, with 
an option to extend. An agreement to this effect was signed on 11 September 2020 and the 
investigation is in progress. I will follow up on the investigation and the implementation of the 
planned actions including disciplinary steps, financial recovery and civil and criminal cases 
arising from the outcome of the investigation, during my next audit.

Unfair award for the control of vegetation

88. The supplier that scored the highest points was initially awarded the contract for the control of 
vegetation to the value of R2,8 million in February 2018; however, there was no documented 
justification why this award was cancelled and another supplier, that did not score the highest 
points in terms of the PPPFA and its regulations, was awarded the contract of R5,2 million in 
August 2018 in contravention of section 51(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA.

89. A material financial loss is likely as the award of R5,2 million is significantly higher than the 
price tendered by the supplier with the highest points that was initially awarded the contract.

90. The accounting authority was notified of the material irregularity on 11 July 2019. There was 
a delay in the initiating of the investigation due to the changes in the accounting authority of 
Prasa. The SIU was requested to assist with the finalisation of the investigation into the material 
irregularity through the secondment of SIU resources to Prasa for a period of six months, with 
an option to extend. An agreement to this effect was signed on 11 September 2020 and the 
investigation is in progress. I will follow up on the investigation and the implementation of the 
planned actions including disciplinary steps, financial recovery and civil and criminal cases 
arising from the outcome of the investigation, during my next audit.

Uncompetitive process followed in the award relating to the repair and replacement of 
signalling equipment on the basis of an “emergency” deviation

91. In May 2018, a deviation to the value of R3 million was approved on the basis of an emergency, 
with a contract to the value of R5,1 million being concluded in July 2018 with a supplier for the 
repair and replacement of signalling equipment.

92. The basis for the deviation does not meet the requirements of National Treasury SCM 
Instruction Note 3 of 2016/17 as it could have been avoided had proper planning occurred and 
there was no evidence of additional approvals for the difference between the award amount 
and the amount approved for the deviation resulting in a contravention of section 51(1)(a)(iii) 
of the PFMA.
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93. A material financial loss is likely as Prasa has not secured market-related prices by way of a 
competitive bidding process and the award price exceeded the deviation approval amount by 
R2,1 million.

94. The accounting authority was notified of the material irregularity on 18 July 2019. There was 
a delay in the initiating of the investigation due to the changes in the accounting authority of 
Prasa. The SIU was requested to assist with the finalisation of the investigation into the material 
irregularity through the secondment of SIU resources to Prasa for a period of six months, with 
an option to extend. An agreement to this effect was signed on 11 September 2020 and the 
investigation is in progress. I will follow up on the investigation and the implementation of the 
planned actions including disciplinary steps, financial recovery and civil and criminal cases 
arising from the outcome of the investigation, during my next audit.

Other reports

95. In addition to the investigations relating to material irregularities, I draw attention to the 
following engagements conducted by various parties which had, or could have, an impact 
on the matters reported in the public entity’s financial statements, reported performance 
information, compliance with applicable legislation and other related matters. These reports 
did not form part of my opinion on the financial statements or my findings on the reported 
performance information or compliance with legislation.

Investigations

96. The forensic investigation by National Treasury instituted in accordance with the remedial 
action recommended by the Public Protector in her August 2015 report is still in progress. The 
outcome of these investigations may also have an impact on Prasa’s subsidiaries.

97. The DCPI is currently investigating cases reported by Prasa in terms of the Prevention and 
Combating of Corrupt Activities Act, 2004 (Act No.12 of 2004) (Precca). The investigation 
has been ongoing since 2016. The outcome of this investigation may also have an impact on 
Prasa’s subsidiaries.

98. An investigation into allegations relating to the contravention of the Competition Act of South 
Africa, 1998 (Act No. 89 of 1998) is being conducted by the Competition Commission. The 
allegations have been referred to the Competition Tribunal for adjudication.
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99.The accounting authority has commissioned an investigation into a number of supply chain 
management irregularities identified and reported during the previous audit. This investigation 
is in progess.
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Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2019
Economic entity    Controlling entity

Figures in Rand thousand Note(s) 2020 2019 
Restated*

2020 2019 
Restated*

Assets

Current Assets

Inventories 11 565,082 536,577 548,018 515,373

Loans to economic entities 7 - - - -

Receivables from exchange transactions 12 1,512,153 1,276,467 1,719,285 1,257,117

VAT receivable 13 737 - 2,119 -

Employee benefit asset 9 - - - -

Prepayments 10 604,231 287 729 604,231 287,729

Cash and cash equivalents 14 24 181 747 18 315 956 24,164,586 18 301,776

26,863,950 20,416,729 27,038,239 20,361,995

Non-Current Assets

Investment property 3 4,863,447 4 786 933 4 863 447 4 786 933

Property, plant and equipment 4 40 167 267 39 994 862 40 041 569 39 860 949

Intangible assets 5 262 433 323 349 262 072 323 277

Operating lease asset 8 2 179 133 2 192 068 2 175 785 2 189 710

Prepayments 10 7 709 550 8 169 916 7 709 550 8 169 916

55 181 830 55 467 128 55 052 423 55 330 785

Total Assets 82 045 780 75 883 857 82 090 662 75,692,780

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Payables from exchange transactions 18 5 724 763 5 553 394 5 545 971 5,244,057

VAT payable 19 - 1 855 - 683

Employee benefit obligation 9 888 975 860 944

Provisions 17 377 671 614 335 375 270 613 789

6 103 322 6 170 559 5 922 101 5,859,463

Non-Current Liabilities

Operating lease liability 8 1 332 991 1 389 726 1 332 991 1 389 726

Employee benefit obligation 9 6 082 7 472 5 880 7 230

Unspent conditional grants 16 48,839,515 45,013,346 48,839,515 45,013,346

Provisions 17 1 679 877 1 497 628 1 679 877 1 497 628

51,858,465 47,908,172 51,858,263 47,907,930

Total Liabilities 57,961,787 54,078,731 57,780,364 53,767,403

Net Assets 24,083,993 21,805,126 24,310,298 21,925,377

Share capital 15 4 248 258 4 248 258 4 248 258 4 248 258

Accumulated surplus 19,835,735 17,556,868 20,062,040 17,677,119

Total Net Assets 24,083,993 21,805,126 24,310,298 21,925,377

* See Note 35 & 34
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Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

STATEMENT OF FINANCNIAL PERFORMANCE

* See Note 35 & 34

Economic entity    Controlling entity

Figures in Rand thousand Note(s) 2020 2019 
Restated*

2020 2019 
Restated*

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Fare revenue 1 049 970 1 516 398 630 883 1 038 467

Operating lease rental income 28 725 971 773 318 748 239 800 883

Other income 21 273 921 308 504 265 997 299 166

Interest received 22 1 520 108 1 012 525 1 520 943 1 011 306

Fair value adjustments 3 - 297 520 - 297 520

Actuarial gains 9 2 426 2 567 2 391 2 561

Total revenue from exchange transactions 3 572 396 3 910 832 3 168 453 3 449 903

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue

Government subsidy 23 8 376 499 6 577 911 8 376 499 6 577 911

Capital subsidy and grants amortised 20 4,259,545 3,474,220 4,259,545 3,474,220

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 12,636,044 10,052,131 12,636,044 10,052,131

Total revenue 20 16,208,440 13,962,963 15,804,497 13,502,034

Expenditure

Employee related costs 24 (5 789 746) (5 688 969) (5 414 587) (5 313 346)

Depreciation and amortisation (2 518 075) (2 184 943) (2 491 884) (2 112 014)

Impairment(loss)/reversal of impairments 19 402 656 836 (232 818) 424 298

Finance costs 25 (34 813) (22 334) (29 320) (14 452)

Loss on disposal of assets (245 085) (96 457) (245 081) (96 457)

Fair value adjustments 3 (52 429) - (52 429) -

Repairs and maintenance 4 (1 070 147) (1 232 184) (1 030 759) (1 161 540)

General Expenses 26 (4 238 680) (7 536 634) (3 922 698) (7 185 696)

Total expenditure (13 929 573) (16 104 685) (13 419 576) (15 459 207)

Surplus (deficit) for the year 2,278,867 (2,141,722) 2,384,921 (1,957,173)



PRASA 2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT80

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Figures in Rand thousand Share capital Accumulated 

surplus
Total net 

assets

Economic entity

Opening balance as previously reported 4,248,258 20,458,467 24,706,725

Adjustments 
Prior year adjustments - (759,877) (759,877)

Balance at 1 April 2018 as restated* 4,248,258 19,698,590 23,946,848

Changes in net assets Deficit for the year - (1,685,100) (1,685,100)

Total changes - (1,685,100) (1,685,100)

Opening balance as previously reported 4,248,258 18,773,367 23,021,625

Adjustments 
Prior year adjustments - (456,622) (456,622)

Restated* Balance at 1 April 2019 as restated* 4 ,48,258 17,556,686 21,805,126

Changes in net assets Surplus for the year - 2,278,867 2,278,867

Total changes - 2,278,867 2,278,867

Balance at 31 March 2020 4,248,258 19,835,735 24,083,993

Note(s) 15

Controlling entity

Opening balance as previously reported 4,248,258 20,394,170 24,642,428

Adjustments 
Prior year adjustments - (759,887) (759,887)

Balance at 1 April 2018 as restated* 4,248,258 19,634,293 23,882,551

Changes in net assets Deficit for the year - (1,500,552) (1,500,552)

Total changes - (1,500,552) (1,500,552)

Opening balance as previously reported 4,248,258 18,893,618 23,141,876

Adjustments 
Prior year adjustments - (456,622) (456,622)

Restated* Balance at 1 April 2019 as restated* 4,248,258 17,677,119 21,925,377

Changes in net assets Surplus for the year - 2,384,921 2,384,921

Total changes - 2,384,921 2,384,921

Balance at 31 March 2020 4,248,258 46,057,914 50,306,172

Note(s) 15



PRASA 2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 81

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Economic entity Controlling entity

Figures in Rand thousand Note(s) 2020 2019 
Restated*

2020 2019 
Restated*

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Receipts from customers 1,829,537 1,795,821 1 373 449 1,336,197

Grants 16,462,214 15,778,968 16 462 214 15,778,968

Interest income 1,520,108 1,012,525 1 520 943 1,011,306

19,811,859 18,587,314 19 356 606 18,126,471

Payments

Employee costs (5,765,653) (5,688,968) (5,390,677) (5,313,346)

Suppliers (5,209,116) (4 790 456) (4,903,363) (4,410,740)

Finance costs (34,813) (22,334) (29,320) (14,452)

(11,009,582) (10,501,758) (10,323,360) (9,738,538)

Net cash flows from operating activities 29 8,802,277 8,085,556 9,033,246 8,387,933

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4 (2,810,968) (3 481 421) (2 808 368) (3 481 265)

Purchase of investment property 3 (125 518) (141 788) (125 518) (141 788)

Purchase of other intangible assets 5 - (24 453) - (24 453)

Loans to economic entity - - (236 550) (276 498)

Net cash flows from investing activities (2 936 486) (3 647 662) (3 170 436) (3 924 004)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents

5 865 791 4 437 894 5 862 810 4 463 929

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
year

18 315 956 13 878 062 18 301 776 13 837 847

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14 24 181 747 18 315 956 24 164 586 18 301 776
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Figures in Rand thousand

Approved 
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual 
amounts 
on comparable 
basis

Difference 
between final 
budget and 
actual

Economic entity

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions 
Fare revenue                                        

1,980,294 - 1,980,294 1,049,970 (930,324)

Operating lease rental income                728,787 - 728,787 725,971 (2,816)

Other income                                           290,612 - 290,612 273,921 (16,691)

Interest received                                      500,983 - 500,983 1,520,108 1,019,125

Actuarial gains/losses                                         - - - 2,426 2,426

Total revenue from exchange transactions 3,500,676 - 3,500,676 3,572,396 71,720

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 
                            

Operational subsidy  6,252,593 2,123,906 8,376,499 8,376,499 -

Capital subsidy and grants amortised 2,533,851 - 2,533,851 4,259,545 1,725,694

Total revenue from non-exchange 
transactions

 8,786,444 2,123,906 10,910,350 12,636,044 1,725,694

Total revenue from exchange transactions 3,500,676 - 3,500,676 3,572,396 71,720

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 8,786,444 2,123,906 10,910,350 12,636,044 1,725,694

Total revenue                                    12,287,120 2,123,906 14,411,026 16,208,440 1,797,414

Expenditure            

Employee related costs  (6,526,771) - (6,526,771) (5,789,746) 737,025

Depreciation and amortisation            (2,664,830) - (2,664,830) (2,518,075) 146,755

Impairment (loss)/ Reversal of impairments                        - - - 19,402 19,402

Finance costs                                             (5,940) - (5,940) (34,813) (28,873)

Loss on disposal of assets                                  - - - (245,085) (245,085)

Fair value adjustments                                        - - - (52,429) (52,429)

Repairs and maintenance                      (959,747) - (959,747) (1,070,147) (110,400)

General Expenses                              (5,924,944) - (5,924,944) (4,238,680) 1,686,264

Total expenditure                            (16,082,232) - (16,082,232) (13 929 573) 2,152,659

Surplus for the year (3,795,112) 2,123,906 (1,671,206) 2,278,867 3,950,073

Actual Amount on Comparable Basis 
as Presented in the Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement

(3,795,112) 2,123,906 (1,671,206) 2,278,867 3,950,073

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND 
ACTUAL AMOUNTS
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Figures in Rand thousand

Approved 
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual 
amounts 
on comparable 
basis

Difference 
between final 
budget and 
actual

Controlling entity

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions 
Fare revenue                                        1,215,813 - 1,215,813 630,883 (584,930)

Operating lease rental income                728,787 - 728,787 748,239 19,452

Other income                                           132,616 - 132,616 265,997 133,381

Interest received                                      500,012 - 500,012 1,520,943 1,020,931

Actuarial gains/losses                                         - - - 2,391 2,391

Total revenue from exchange 
transactions

2,577,228 - 2,577,228 3,168,453 591,225

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue 
Operational subsidy                              

6,252,593 2,123,906 8,376,499 8,376,499 -

Capital subsidy and grants                   
amortised

2,533,851 - 2,533,851 4,259,545 1,725,694

Total revenue from non-                    
exchange transactions

8,786,444 2,123,906 10,910,350 11,536,964 1,725,694

Total revenue from exchange               
transactions

2,577,228 - 2,577,228 3,168,453 591,225

Total revenue from non- exchange 
transactions          

8,786,444 2,123,906 10,910,350 12,636,044 1,725,694

Total revenue                                    11,363,672 2,123,906 13,487,578 15,804,497 2,316,919

Expenditure 
Employee related costs                       (6,071,859) - (6,071,859) (5,414,587) 657,272

Depreciation and amortisation            (2,640,790) - (2,640,790) (2,491,884) 148,906

Impairment (loss)/ Reversal of 
impairments                      

- - - (232,818) (232,818)

 
Finance costs                                             

(2,500) - (2,500) (29,320) (26,820)

Loss on disposal of assets                                  - - - (245,081) (245,081)

Fair value adjustments                                       - - - (52,429) (52,429)

Repairs and maintenance                      (841,095) - (841,095) (1,030,759) (189,664)

General Expenses                               (5,516,564) - (5,516,564) (3,922,698) 1,593,866

Total expenditure                            (15,072,808) - (15,072,808) (13,419,576) 1,653,232

Surplus for the year (3,709,136) 2,123,906 (1,585,230) 2,384,921 3,970,151

Actual Amount on Comparable Basis 
as Presented in the Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement

(3,709,136) 2,123,906 (1,585,230) 2,384,921 3,970,151

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND 
ACTUAL AMOUNTS
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1.      Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management 
Act (Act 1 of 1999).

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical 
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard 
of GRAP.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been applied in the preparation of these annual financial 
statements, are disclosed below.

1.1    Presentation currency

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the economic 
economic entity.

1.2    Going concern assumption

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the economic economic entity will continue 
to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.3    Consolidation Basis of consolidation

The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate the annual financial statements of the controlling entity and all 
controlled entities, which are controlled by the controlling entity.

Consolidated annual financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events 
in similar circumstances.

Control exists when the controlling entity has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of another entity so as to 
obtain benefits from its activities.

The revenue and expenses of a controlled entity are included in the consolidated annual financial statements from the transfer 
date or acquisition date as defined in the Standards of GRAP on Transfer of functions between entities under common control or 
Transfer of functions between entities not under common control. The revenue and expenses of the controlled entity are based 
on the values of the assets and liabilities recognised in the controlling entity’s annual financial statements at the acquisition 
date.

The annual financial statements of the controlling entity and its controlled entities used in the preparation of the consolidated 
annual financial statements are prepared as of the same date.

All intra-entity transactions, balances, revenues and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

1.4    Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the 
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates 
which may be material to the consolidated annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

1.4    Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Receivables from exchange transactions / Held to maturity investments and/or loans and receivables

The economic entity assesses its trade receivables, held to maturity investments and loans and receivables for impairment 
at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the 
surplus makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future 
cash flows from a financial asset.

Impairment testing of tangible and intangible assets

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of value- 
in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is 
reasonably possible that the assumption may change which may then impact our estimations and may then require a material 
adjustment to the carrying value of intangible and tangible assets.

The economic entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely 
independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates 
are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in 
use of intangible and tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determines an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of 
these estimates of provisions are included in note 17 - Provisions.

Useful lives and residual values of assets

The entity’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for the assets . These 
estimates are reviewed annually in line with applicable GRAP standards requirements.

Post-retirement benefits

The present value of the post-retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis 
using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) include the discount rate. Any 
changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post-retirement obligations.

The economic entity determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be 
used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the post retirement 
obligations. Other key assumptions for post retirement obligations are based on current market conditions and information is 
disclosed in Note 9.

1.5    Investment property

Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation 
or both, rather than for:
• use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
• administrative purposes, or
• sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Owner-occupied property is property held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative 
purposes.

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that  are 
associated with the investment property will flow to the economic entity, and the cost or fair value of the investment property can 
be measured reliably.

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.
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1.5    Investment property (continued)

Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property. If 
a replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised.

Fair value

Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value. The fair value of investment property reflects 
market conditions at the reporting date.

A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net surplus or deficit for the period in which it arises.

Once the entity becomes able to measure reliably the fair value of an investment property under construction that has previously 
been measured at cost, it measures that property at its fair value. Once construction of that property is complete, it is presumed 
that fair value can be measured reliably. If this is not the case, the property is accounted for using the cost model in accordance 
with the accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment.

1.6    Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the 
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during 
more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the economic entity; and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or 
a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the 
acquired item’s fair value was not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also 
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the 
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of 
property, plant and equipment.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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1.6    Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the 
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining 
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated 
residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life

Land Indefinite

Rolling stock - Undercarriages Straight line 33 - 40 years

Rolling stock - Components Straight line 10 - 40 years

Network assets Straight line 5 - 149 years

Movables & workshop Straight line 3 - 10 years

Facilities & leasehold improvements Straight line 3 - 50 years

Buses and vehicles Straight line 3 - 10 years

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 
depreciated separately.

The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential are 
expected to be consumed by the economic entity. The depreciation method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at each 
reporting date and, if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits 
or service potential embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for 
as a change in an accounting estimate.

The economic entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the economic entity expectations about 
the residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, 
the economic entity revises the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change 
in an accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another 
asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic 
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit 
when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.7    Prepayment

Payment made up front to a supplier prior to and during construction of the asset is capitalised as a prepayment under long- 
term assets. The amount for assets expected to be delivered in the new financial year will be classified to current assets. Once 
construction of the asset is complete and delivered to PRASA, and meets the organisations quality standards, the prepayment is 
de-recognised and transferred to property, plant and equipment.
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1.8    Intangible assets (continued)

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monentory asset without physical substance.

An asset is identifiable if it either:
• is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, 

either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of whether the entity intends 
to do so; or

• arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are transferable or 
separable from the economic entity or from other rights and obligations.

An asset is identifiable if it either:
• is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, 

either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of whether the entity intends 
to do so; or

• arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are transferable or 
separable from the economic entity or from other rights and obligations.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the 

economic entity; and
• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The economic entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and 
supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the 
useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured 
at its fair value as at that date.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable 
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not provided 
for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may 
be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that 
the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over 
its useful life.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life

Copyright Straight line 20 years

Software Straight line 1 - 10 years

Intangible assets are derecognised:
• on disposal; or
• when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of intangible assets is included in surplus or deficit when the asset is 
derecognised.
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1.9    Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual 
interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is 
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or 
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of financial 
position.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group 
of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life 
of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial 
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the 
financial instrument but shall not consider future credit losses. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected 
life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to 
reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall 
use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in 
an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
• cash;
• a residual interest of another entity; or
• a contractual right to:

-       receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
-       exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable to 

the entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
• deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.
• 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge 
an obligation.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
foreign exchange rates.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates.
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1.9    Financial instruments (continued)

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors 
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the 
market.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or 
financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed 
of the financial instrument.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed 
or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

• the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
• are held for trading.
Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market, 
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Classification

The economic entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of 
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category

Loans to economic entities Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Receivables from exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Investment in controlled entities Financial asset measured at cost

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of 
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category

Payables from exchange transactions Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition

The  economic entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value.
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1.9    Financial instruments (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:

Class  Category

Loans to economic entity  Financial instruments at fair value.  

Receivables from exchange transaction Financial instruments at fair value.

Cash and cash equivalent Financial instruments at amortised cost.

Investment in controlled entities Financial instruments at cost.
                                                                                
                                                                                                                                 
All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review. 

Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is recognised 
in surplus or deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit 
when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

The economic entity assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset 
or group of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the 
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective 
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly or  through the use of an allowance account. The amount of 
the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by adjusting 
an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised 
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the 
reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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1.9    Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets

The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting. The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
• the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
• the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or
• the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has transferred 

control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an 
unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions on 
the transfer. In this case, the entity:

-       derecognises the asset; and
-       recognises separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration 
received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Financial liabilities

The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is 
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as 
having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification 
of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability 
and having recognised a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred 
to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in 
surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange transaction are 
accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).

Presentation

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in 
surplus or deficit.

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or 
expense in surplus or deficit.

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when 
the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, 
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not offset the transferred 
asset and the associated liability.

1.10  Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is 
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.
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1.10  Leases (continued) 

Finance leases - lessor

The economic entity recognises finance lease receivables as assets on the statement of financial position. Such assets are 
presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease.

Finance revenue is recognised based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the economic entity’s net 
investment in the finance lease.

Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value 
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is 
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance 
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessor

Operating lease revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset 
and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue.

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis. 
Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance.

Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the 
amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

1.11  Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost.

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
• distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
• consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion 
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.
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1.11  Inventories (continued)

Current replacement cost is the cost the economic entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for 
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.  

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories 
having a similar nature and use to the economic entity.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the 
related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or 
related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement 
cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any 
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are 
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

1.12  Impairment of non cash and cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates a 
commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition 
of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial 
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax 
expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 
Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the economic entity; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the economic entity.

Identification

When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired.

The economic entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the economic entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
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1.12  Impairment of non cash and cash-generating assets (continued) 

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the economic entity also tests a cash-generating intangible 
asset with an indefinite useful life or a cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by  
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If 
an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment 
before the end of the current reporting period. 

Fair Value and Value in use

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in 
an arm’s length transaction.

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the 
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the economic entity estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived 
from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the economic entity applies the appropriate discount rate to 
those future cash flows.

Recognition and measurement (individual asset)

If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-generating asset to which it 
relates, the economic entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standard of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted in 
future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic 
basis over its remaining useful life.

Reversal of impairment loss

The economic entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in 
prior periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity 
estimates the recoverable amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased 
carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior 
periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is 
adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a 
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit pro rata with 
the carrying amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are treated as reversals of impairment losses for 
individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset contributing service 
potential to a cash-generating unit.
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In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset is not increased above 
the lower of:
• its recoverable amount (if determinable); and
• the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been 

recognised for the asset in prior periods.  

1.13  Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates a 
commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition 
of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial 
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax 
expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 
Useful life is either:

(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the economic entity; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the economic entity.

Value in use

Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service potential.
The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assets is determined using the following 
approach:

Recognition and measurement

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 
asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to 
which it relates, the economic entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is 
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on 
a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
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1.13  Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued) 

Reversal of an impairment loss

The economic entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior 
periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the  economic 
entity estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in 
the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The 
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. 
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in 
prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset 
is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any),  
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

1.14  Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown 
in equity as a deduction, from the proceeds.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an economic entity after deducting all of 
its liabilities.

1.15  Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation 
leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the 
service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their 
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive obligation to make such 
payments as a result of past performance.

The economic entity recognises the expected cost of short-term employee benefits in the form of compensated absences as 
follows:
(a) In the case of accumulating compensated absences, when the employees render services that increase their entitlement to 

future compensated absences; and in the case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

(b) The economic entity measures the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the 
entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period.

Defined contribution plans

Under the defined contribution structures, fixed contributions payable by the economic entity and members are accumulated 
to provide retirement benefits through a provident fund. The economic entity has no legal or constructive obligation to pay 
any further contributions other than these fixed contributions. Contributions to any defined contribution plan are expensed as 
incurred.Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.
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1.15  Employee benefits (continued) 

Defined benefit plans

The economic entity operates the following defined benefit plans:

• Transport Pension Fund: PRASA sub fund; and
• Post-employment medical aid fund

The Transport Pension Fund is in respect of pension benefits upon retirement of employees, the assets of which are held in 
separate trustee fund administered by Metropolitan Health Group (Pty) Ltd. Employees of the economic entity also participate 
in the Transmed Medical Scheme administered by Metropolitan Health Group (Pty) Ltd. These funds are valued by professional 
independent actuaries.

The benefit cost and obligations under the defined benefit fund are determined using the projected unit credit method on an 
annual basis. The benefit costs are recognised in the statement of financial performance. Any actuarial gains or losses are 
recognised in the statement of financial performance in the period in which they arise. The economic entity’s net obligation in 
respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that 
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior years; that benefit is discounted to determine its 
present value, and any unrecognised past-service cost and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in 
which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension fund liability. 
Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits have already vested, and are otherwise amortised on a 
straight-line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become vested. The amount recognised in the statement 
of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of the plan assets; less 
unrecognised past service cost. Any resulting asset is limited to the present value of available refunds and reductions in future 
contributions to the plan.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or 
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The company recognises termination 
benefits when it has demonstrated a commitment to either terminate the employment of current employees according to a 
detailed formal plan without the possibility of withdrawal or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to 
encourage voluntary redundancy.

1.16  Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
• the economic entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the 

obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected 
to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the economic 
entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement 
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1.16  Provisions and contingencies (continued)

does not exceed the amount of the provision.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is 
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the 
obligation.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and 
measured as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.
A contingent liability is:
• a possible obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or
• a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

-    it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle 
the obligation; or

-      the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statement as 
per note  31.

1.17  Commitments

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the 
outflow of cash.

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial 
statements, if both the following criteria are met:
• Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or building 

maintenance services); and
• Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore salary 

commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

1.18  Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an 
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly 
gives approximately equal value services to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in 
an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 
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Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the 
transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a 
transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:
• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the economic entity;
• the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a 
straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of 
completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the 
significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only 
to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Fare revenue

Revenue from the rendering of passenger services is recognised in the statement of financial performance in the period the 
service is rendered. It comprises of transport services to train or bus commuters for passenger and long distance journeys 
rendered during the period.

Operating lease income

Revenue from property management activities is recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless 
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the usage from the leased asset is diminished. 
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease is added to the carrying amount of the leased asset 
and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income. Recoveries of operating costs (for 
example, rates and taxes, water and electricity) are recognised as income, as the costs are charged to lessees and are also 
included in revenue.

Interest

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.

1.19  Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which 
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied 
in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be 
returned to the transferor.

Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can exclude 
or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and 
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in 
exchange.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either 
receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another  entity 
without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.
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1.19  Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used, 
but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed 
as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a 
transferred asset by entities external to the reporting entity.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent 
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange 
transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of 
revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity.
When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the 
amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. 
Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the 
obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is 
subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is 
recognised as revenue.

1.20  Investment income

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

1.21  Comparative figures

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current financial year. Where necessary, comparative figures 
have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

1.22  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been 
exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the 
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.23  Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in 
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including -
(a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end and/
or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In 
such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being 
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of 
updating the note to the financial statements. 
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1.23  Irregular expenditure (continued)

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the 
register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the 
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the 
irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate 
steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting 
officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the 
financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not 
been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant programme/
expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the irregular 
expenditure register.

1.24  Budget information

Economic entities are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), 
which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by economic entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used 
in accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance outcome 
objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 4/1/2019 to 3/31/2020.

The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities approved budgets under its control. Comparative information is not 
required.

1.25  Related parties

The economic entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South 
African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, 
only entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the economic entity, including 
those charged with the governance of the economic entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to 
perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be 
influenced by, that management in their dealings with the economic entity.

1.26  Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the 
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); and
• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting date).

The economic entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting 
date once the event occurred.

The economic entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate 
cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Economic entity Controlling entity

Figures in Rand 
thousand

2020 2019 2020 2019

2. New standards and interpretations

2.1  Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The economic entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are
mandatory for the economic entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020 or later periods:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:
Years beginning on or
after

Expected impact:

• GRAP 104 (amended): Financial Instruments 1 April 2099 Unlikely there will be a
material impact

• IGRAP 20: Accounting for Adjustments to Revenue 1 April 2020 Unlikely there will be a
material impact

• GRAP 34: Separate Financial Statements 1 April 2020 Unlikely there will be a
material impact

• GRAP 35: Consolidated Financial Statements 1 April 2020 Unlikely there will be a
material impact

• GRAP 36: Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 April 2020 Unlikely there will be a
material impact

• GRAP 37: Joint Arrangements 1 April 2020 Unlikely there will be a
material impact

• GRAP 38: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 April 2020 Unlikely there will be a
material impact

• IGRAP 1 (revised): Applying the Probability Test on Initial 
Recognition of Revenue

1 April 2021 Unlikely there will be a
material impact

• GRAP 32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor 1 April 2021 Unlikely there will be a
material impact
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Figures in Rand thousand

3. Investment property

2020 2019

Economic entity Cost /
Valuation 

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Investment property 4,863,447 - 4,863,447 4,786,933 - 4,786,933

2020 2019

Controlling entity Cost /
Valuation 

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Investment property 4,863,447 - 4,863,447 4,786,933 - 4,786,933

Reconciliation of investment property - Economic entity - 2020

Opening
balance

Additions Transfers
from property,

plant and
equipment

Fair value
adjustments

Total

Investment property 4,786,933 125,518 3,425 (52,429) 4,863,447

Reconciliation of investment property - Economic entity - 2019

Opening
balance

Additions Transfer from
property,
plant and

equipment

Derecognition
of

investment
property

Fair value
adjustments

Total

Investment property 4,348,143 141,788 100 (618) 297,520 4,786,933
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Figures in Rand thousand

3. Investment property

2020 2019

Economic entity Cost /
Valuation 

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Investment property 4,863,447 - 4,863,447 4,786,933 - 4,786,933

2020 2019

Controlling entity Cost /
Valuation 

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Investment property 4,863,447 - 4,863,447 4,786,933 - 4,786,933

Reconciliation of investment property - Economic entity - 2020

Opening
balance

Additions Transfers
from property,

plant and
equipment

Fair value
adjustments

Total

Investment property 4,786,933 125,518 3,425 (52,429) 4,863,447

Reconciliation of investment property - Economic entity - 2019

Opening
balance

Additions Transfer from
property,
plant and

equipment

Derecognition
of

investment
property

Fair value
adjustments

Total

Investment property 4,348,143 141,788 100 (618) 297,520 4,786,933
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Figures in Rand thousand

3. Investment property (continued)

Reconciliation of investment property - Controlling entity - 2020

Opening
balance

Addition Transfer from
property,
plant and

equipment

Fair value
adjustments

Total

Investment property 4,786,933 125,518 3,425 (52,429) 4,863,447

Reconciliation of investment property - Controlling entity - 2019

Opening
balance

Additions Transfer from
property,
plant and

equipment

Derecognition
of

investment
property

Fair value
adjustments

Total

Investment property 4,348,143 141,788 100 (618) 297,520 4,786,933

Investment property consists of commercial properties situated in KwaZulu-Natal, Western Cape and Gauteng.

The properties comprise commercial properties rented out to third parties under operating leases ranging from 1 month to 10 
years.

The fair market valuation of the investment property was professionally determined by an independent valuer, Knight Frank 
(2019: Knight Frank Valuers). The capitalisation of net income
method as well as comparable sales method was used.

The valuers are members of the Institute of valuers, and have the appropriate qualifications and experience in the valuation of 
properties in the relevant locations.

A register containing the information required by Regulation 25(3) of the Companies Regulations, (2011) is available for 
inspection at the registered office of the entity.

Carrying value of investment property that is taking significantly longer complete:

Project still under construction 250,398 - 250,398 -
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Figures in Rand thousand

3. Investment property (continued)

Reconciliation of investment property - Controlling entity - 2020

Opening
balance

Addition Transfer from
property,
plant and

equipment

Fair value
adjustments

Total

Investment property 4,786,933 125,518 3,425 (52,429) 4,863,447

Reconciliation of investment property - Controlling entity - 2019

Opening
balance

Additions Transfer from
property,
plant and

equipment

Derecognition
of

investment
property

Fair value
adjustments

Total

Investment property 4,348,143 141,788 100 (618) 297,520 4,786,933

Investment property consists of commercial properties situated in KwaZulu-Natal, Western Cape and Gauteng.

The properties comprise commercial properties rented out to third parties under operating leases ranging from 1 month to 10 
years.

The fair market valuation of the investment property was professionally determined by an independent valuer, Knight Frank 
(2019: Knight Frank Valuers). The capitalisation of net income
method as well as comparable sales method was used.

The valuers are members of the Institute of valuers, and have the appropriate qualifications and experience in the valuation of 
properties in the relevant locations.

A register containing the information required by Regulation 25(3) of the Companies Regulations, (2011) is available for 
inspection at the registered office of the entity.

Carrying value of investment property that is taking significantly longer complete:

Project still under construction 250,398 - 250,398 -
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Economic entity Controlling entity

Figures in Rand thousand 2020 2019 2020 2019

4.  Property, plant and equipment

Economic entity 2020 2019

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated

impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated

impairment

Carrying 
value

Land 1,142,383 - 1,142,383 1,145,807 - 1,145,807

Facilities and leasehold 9,382,728 3,718,233 5,664,495 9,197,941 (3,255,276) 5,942,665

improvements

Buses and vehicles 1,734,645 (1,569,127) 165,518 1,744,577 (1,518,299) 226,278

Network assets 6,014,932 (3,047,524) 2,967,408 5,942,934 (2,844,407) 3,098,527

Rolling stock 22,291,623 (10,867,018) 11,424,605 20,858,792 (11,456,500) 9,402,292

Movables and workshop 1,046,776 (821,780) 224,996 955,295 (696Ê786) 258Ê509

equipment

Facilities and leasehold 5,332,213 - 5,332,213 5,400,947 - 5,400,947

improvements: Assets under

construction

Rolling stock: Assets under 2,128,411 - 2128,411 4,684,400 - 4,684,400

construction

Movables and workshop 131,149 - 131,149 41,711 - 41,711

equipment: Assets under

construction

Buses and vehicles: Assets - - - 8,497 - 8,497

under construction

Network assets: Assets under 10,986,089 - 10,986,089 9,785,229 - 9,785,229

construction

Total 60,190,949 (20,023,682) 40,167,267 59,766,130 (19,771,268) 39,994,862
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Economic entity Controlling entity

Figures in Rand thousand 2020 2019 2020 2019

4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Controlling entity 2020 2019

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated

impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated

impairment

Carrying 
value

Land 1,141,983 - 1,141,983 1,145,407 - 1,145,407

Facilities and leasehold 9,377,901 (3,714,377) 5,663,524 9,193,076 (3,251,495) 5,941,581

improvements

Buses and vehicles 584,087 (538,215) 45,872 594,019 (495,434) 98,585

Network assets 6,014,932 (3,047,524) 2,967,408 5,942,934 (2,844,407) 3,098,527

Rolling stock 22,291,623 (10,867,018) 11,424,605 20,858,792 (11,456,500) 9,402,292

Movables and workshop 1,022,272 (801,648) 220,624 932,918 (678,816) 254,102

equipment

Facilities and leasehold 5,332,213 - 5,332,213 5,400,947 - 5,400,947

improvements: Assets under

construction

Rolling stock: Assets under 2,128,411 - 2,128,411 4,684,400 - 4,684,400

construction

Movables and workshop 130,840 - 130,840 41,382 - 41,382

equipment: Assets under

construction

Buses and vehicles: Assets - - - 8,497 - 8,497

under construction

Network assets: Assets under 10,986,089 - 10,986,089 9,785,229 - 9,785,229

construction

Total 59,010,351 (18,968,782) 40,041,569 58,587,601 (18,726,652) 39,860,949
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Figures in Rand thousand

4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Economic entity - 2020

Opening
balance

Additions Capitalisation Disposals Transfer from
prepayments

and intangible
assets

Transfer to
investment

property and
intangible

assets

Depreciation Impairment
loss

Total

Land 1,145,807 - - - - (3,424) - - 1,142,383

Facilities and leasehold improvements 5,942,665 - 205,964 (7,124) - - (477,010) - 5,664,495

Buses and vehicles 226,278 - 2 (499) - - (75,933) 15,670 165,518

Network assets 3,098,527 - 92,509 (182) - - (223,446) - 2,967,408

Rolling stock 9,402,293 - 3,672,461 (237,253) 143,865 - (1,560,493) 3,732 11,424,605

Movables and workshop equipment 258,509 - 86,791 (27) 2,260 (1,770) (120,767) - 224,996

Facilities and leasehold improvements: Assets 5,400,947 137,230 (205,964) - - - - - 5,332,213

under construction

Rolling stock: Assets under construction 4,684,400 1,116,472 (3,672,461) - - - - - 2,128,411

Movables and workshop equipment: Assets 41,711 176,229 (86,791) - - - - - 131,149

under construction

Buses and vehicles: Assets under construction 8,497 (8,495) (2) - - - - - -

Network assets: Assets under construction 9,785,229 1,293,369 (92,509) - - - - - 10,986,089

39,994,863 2,714,805 - (245,085) 146,125 (5,194) (2,457,649) 19,402 40,167,267
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Figures in Rand thousand

4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Economic entity - 2020

Opening
balance

Additions Capitalisation Disposals Transfer from
prepayments

and intangible
assets

Transfer to
investment

property and
intangible

assets

Depreciation Impairment
loss

Total

Land 1,145,807 - - - - (3,424) - - 1,142,383

Facilities and leasehold improvements 5,942,665 - 205,964 (7,124) - - (477,010) - 5,664,495

Buses and vehicles 226,278 - 2 (499) - - (75,933) 15,670 165,518

Network assets 3,098,527 - 92,509 (182) - - (223,446) - 2,967,408

Rolling stock 9,402,293 - 3,672,461 (237,253) 143,865 - (1,560,493) 3,732 11,424,605

Movables and workshop equipment 258,509 - 86,791 (27) 2,260 (1,770) (120,767) - 224,996

Facilities and leasehold improvements: Assets 5,400,947 137,230 (205,964) - - - - - 5,332,213

under construction

Rolling stock: Assets under construction 4,684,400 1,116,472 (3,672,461) - - - - - 2,128,411

Movables and workshop equipment: Assets 41,711 176,229 (86,791) - - - - - 131,149

under construction

Buses and vehicles: Assets under construction 8,497 (8,495) (2) - - - - - -

Network assets: Assets under construction 9,785,229 1,293,369 (92,509) - - - - - 10,986,089

39,994,863 2,714,805 - (245,085) 146,125 (5,194) (2,457,649) 19,402 40,167,267
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Figures in Rand thousand

4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Economic entity - 2019

Opening
balance

Additions Capitalisation Disposals Transfer from
prepayments

Transfer to
investment

property

Transfer to
repairs and

maintenance

Depreciation Impairment
loss

Total

Land 1,145,908 - - - - (101) - - - 1,145,807

Facilities and leasehold 6,250,497 - 79,430 (4,143) - - - (372,228) (10,891) 5,942,665

improvements

Buses and vehicles 340,078 - 59,749 (638) - - - (128,951) (43,960) 226,278

Network assets 3,308,308 - 2,596 (2,234) - - - (210,143) - 3,098,527

Rolling stock 9,070,535 - 972,414 (79,014) 43,160 - - (1,316,488) 711,686 9,402,293

Movables and workshop 323,109 - 20,945 (103) - - - (85,442) - 258,509

equipment

Facilities and leasehold 5,168,441 311,936 (79,430) - - - - - - 5,400,947

improvements: Assets under

construction

Rolling stock: Assets under 4,288,495 1,812,219 (972,414) - - - (443,900) - - 4,684,400

construction

Movables and workshop 112,154 (49,498) (20,945) - - - - - - 41,711

equipment: Assets under

construction

Buses and vehicles: Assets 561 67,685 (59,749) - - - - - - 8,497

under construction

Network assets: Assets under 8,258,583 1,529,242 (2,596) - - - - - - 9,785,229

construction

38,266,669 3,671,584 - (86,132) 43,160 (101) (443,900) (2,113,252) 656,835 39,994,863
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Figures in Rand thousand

4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Economic entity - 2019

Opening
balance

Additions Capitalisation Disposals Transfer from
prepayments

Transfer to
investment

property

Transfer to
repairs and

maintenance

Depreciation Impairment
loss

Total

Land 1,145,908 - - - - (101) - - - 1,145,807

Facilities and leasehold 6,250,497 - 79,430 (4,143) - - - (372,228) (10,891) 5,942,665

improvements

Buses and vehicles 340,078 - 59,749 (638) - - - (128,951) (43,960) 226,278

Network assets 3,308,308 - 2,596 (2,234) - - - (210,143) - 3,098,527

Rolling stock 9,070,535 - 972,414 (79,014) 43,160 - - (1,316,488) 711,686 9,402,293

Movables and workshop 323,109 - 20,945 (103) - - - (85,442) - 258,509

equipment

Facilities and leasehold 5,168,441 311,936 (79,430) - - - - - - 5,400,947

improvements: Assets under

construction

Rolling stock: Assets under 4,288,495 1,812,219 (972,414) - - - (443,900) - - 4,684,400

construction

Movables and workshop 112,154 (49,498) (20,945) - - - - - - 41,711

equipment: Assets under

construction

Buses and vehicles: Assets 561 67,685 (59,749) - - - - - - 8,497

under construction

Network assets: Assets under 8,258,583 1,529,242 (2,596) - - - - - - 9,785,229

construction

38,266,669 3,671,584 - (86,132) 43,160 (101) (443,900) (2,113,252) 656,835 39,994,863
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
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Figures in Rand thousand

4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Controlling entity - 2020

Opening
balance

Additions Capitalisation Disposals Transfer from
prepayments
and intangible
assets

Transfer to
investment
property and
intangible
assets

Depreciation Impairment
loss

Total

Land 1,145,407 - - - - (3,424) - - 1,141,983

Facilities and leasehold improvements 5,941,581 - 205,963 (7,122) - - (476,898) - 5,663,524

Buses and vehicles 98,585 - 2 (499) - - (52,216) - 45,872

Network assets 3,098,527 - 92,509 (182) - - (223,446) - 2,967,408

Rolling stock 9,402,293 - 3,672,461 (237,253) 143,865 - (1,560,493) 3,732 11,424,605

Movables and workshop equipment 254,102 - 84,173 (25) 2,260 (1,300) (118,586) - 220,624

Facilities and leasehold improvements: Assets 5,400,947 137,229 (205,963) - - - - - 5,332,213

under construction

Rolling stock: Assets under construction 4,684,400 1,116,472 (3,672,461) - - - - - 2,128,411

Movables and workshop equipment: Assets 41,382 173,631 (84,173) - - - - - 130,840

under construction

Buses and vehicles: Assets under construction 8,497 (8,495) (2) - - - - - -

Network assets: Assets under construction 9,785,229 1,293,369 (92,509) - - - - - 10,986,089

39,860,950 2,712,206 - (245,081) 146,125 (4,724) (2,431,639) 3,732 40,041,569
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Figures in Rand thousand

4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Controlling entity - 2020

Opening
balance

Additions Capitalisation Disposals Transfer from
prepayments
and intangible
assets

Transfer to
investment
property and
intangible
assets

Depreciation Impairment
loss

Total

Land 1,145,407 - - - - (3,424) - - 1,141,983

Facilities and leasehold improvements 5,941,581 - 205,963 (7,122) - - (476,898) - 5,663,524

Buses and vehicles 98,585 - 2 (499) - - (52,216) - 45,872

Network assets 3,098,527 - 92,509 (182) - - (223,446) - 2,967,408

Rolling stock 9,402,293 - 3,672,461 (237,253) 143,865 - (1,560,493) 3,732 11,424,605

Movables and workshop equipment 254,102 - 84,173 (25) 2,260 (1,300) (118,586) - 220,624

Facilities and leasehold improvements: Assets 5,400,947 137,229 (205,963) - - - - - 5,332,213

under construction

Rolling stock: Assets under construction 4,684,400 1,116,472 (3,672,461) - - - - - 2,128,411

Movables and workshop equipment: Assets 41,382 173,631 (84,173) - - - - - 130,840

under construction

Buses and vehicles: Assets under construction 8,497 (8,495) (2) - - - - - -

Network assets: Assets under construction 9,785,229 1,293,369 (92,509) - - - - - 10,986,089

39,860,950 2,712,206 - (245,081) 146,125 (4,724) (2,431,639) 3,732 40,041,569
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Figures in Rand thousand

4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Controlling entity - 2019

Opening
balance

Additions Capitalisation Disposals Transfer from
prepayments

Transfer to
investment

property

Transfer to
repairs and

maintenance

Depreciation Impairment
loss

Total

Land 1,145,507 - - - - (100) - - - 1,145,407

Facilities and leasehold 6,249,291 - 79,430 (4,143) - - - (372,106) (10,891) 5,941,581

improvements

Buses and vehicles 97,458 - 59,749 (638) - - - (57,984) - 98,585

Network assets 3,308,308 - 2,596 (2,234) - - - (210,143) - 3,098,527

Rolling stock 9,070,535 - 972,414 (79,014) 43,160 - - (1,316,488) 711,686 9,402,293

Movables and workshop 317,277 - 20,557 (105) - - - (83,627) - 254,102

equipment

Facilities and leasehold 5,168,441 311,936 (79,430) - - - - - - 5,400,947

improvements: Assets under

construction

Rolling stock: Assets under 4,288,495 1,812,219 (972,414) - - - (443,900) - - 4,684,400

construction

Movables and workshop 112,154 (50,215) (20,557) - - - - - - 41,382

equipment: Assets under

construction

Buses and vehicles: Assets 561 67,685 (59,749) - - - - - - 8,497

under construction

Network assets: Assets under 
construction

8,258,583 1,529,242 (2,596) - - - - - - 9,785,229

38,016,610 3,670,867 - (86,134) 43,160 (100) (443,900) (2,040,348) 700,795 39,860,950

Assets are impaired when they are damaged. Assets are derecognised when components or assets are replaced. None of 
the assets are pledged as security for liabilities. Register of properties is available for inspection if so required. A register 
containing the information required by Regulation 25(3) of Companies Regulations, (2011) is available for inspection at the
registered office of the entity.
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4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Controlling entity - 2019

Opening
balance

Additions Capitalisation Disposals Transfer from
prepayments

Transfer to
investment

property

Transfer to
repairs and

maintenance

Depreciation Impairment
loss

Total

Land 1,145,507 - - - - (100) - - - 1,145,407

Facilities and leasehold 6,249,291 - 79,430 (4,143) - - - (372,106) (10,891) 5,941,581

improvements

Buses and vehicles 97,458 - 59,749 (638) - - - (57,984) - 98,585

Network assets 3,308,308 - 2,596 (2,234) - - - (210,143) - 3,098,527

Rolling stock 9,070,535 - 972,414 (79,014) 43,160 - - (1,316,488) 711,686 9,402,293

Movables and workshop 317,277 - 20,557 (105) - - - (83,627) - 254,102

equipment

Facilities and leasehold 5,168,441 311,936 (79,430) - - - - - - 5,400,947

improvements: Assets under

construction

Rolling stock: Assets under 4,288,495 1,812,219 (972,414) - - - (443,900) - - 4,684,400

construction

Movables and workshop 112,154 (50,215) (20,557) - - - - - - 41,382

equipment: Assets under

construction

Buses and vehicles: Assets 561 67,685 (59,749) - - - - - - 8,497

under construction

Network assets: Assets under 
construction

8,258,583 1,529,242 (2,596) - - - - - - 9,785,229

38,016,610 3,670,867 - (86,134) 43,160 (100) (443,900) (2,040,348) 700,795 39,860,950

Assets are impaired when they are damaged. Assets are derecognised when components or assets are replaced. None of 
the assets are pledged as security for liabilities. Register of properties is available for inspection if so required. A register 
containing the information required by Regulation 25(3) of Companies Regulations, (2011) is available for inspection at the
registered office of the entity.
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4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment

Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain
property, plant and equipment included in
Statement of Financial Performance

Contracted services 1,070,147 1,232,184 1,030,758 1,161,540

Carrying value of property, plant and equipment that is taking significantly longer to complete:

Awaiting completion certificate/occupation certificate - 755,754 - 755,754

Projects still at commissioning stage - 4,842,437 - 4,842,437

Contractor to be appointed 17,309 - 17,309 -

Project still at planning stage 9,893 4,120 9,893 4,120

Project still under construction 3,853,774 4,311,675 3,853,774 4,311,675

3,880,976 9,913,986 3,880,976 9,913,986

Carrying value of property, plant and equipment where construction or development has been halted, either during the 
current or previous reporting period(s):

Project halted due to legal dispute 2,049,286 855,411 2,049,286 855,411

Contract halted waiting approval and awaiting extension 3,318 - 3,318 -

Contract terminated due to increased costs which were not 1,172 - 1,172 -

approved

Contractor withdrew as cost increase was not approved by 11,454 - 11,454 -

PRASA

2,065,230 855,411 2,065,230 855,411
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5. Intangible assets

Economic entity 2020 2019

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying 
value

Copyright 14,171 (8,514) 5,657 14,171 (7,807) 6,364

Software 583,399 (415,291) 168,108 574,601 (357,342) 217,259

Intangible assets: Assets under 
construction

88,668 - 88,668 99,726 - 99,726

Total 686,238 (423,805) 262,433 688,498 (365,149) 323,349

Controlling entity                                                    2020 2019

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying 
value

Copyright 14,171 (8,514) 5,657 14,171 (7,807) 6,364

Software 577,188 (409,441) 167,747 568,859 (351,672) 217,187

Intangible assets: Assets under 
construction

88,668 - 88,668 99,726 - 99,726

Total 680,027 (417,955) 262,072 682,756 (359,479) 323,277
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5.      Intangible assets (continued)

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Economic entity - 2020

Opening
balance

Capitalisation Transfer 
from
property,
plant and
equipment

Transfer to
property,
plant and
equipment

Amortisation Total

Copyright 6,364 - - - (707) 5,657

Software 217,259 8,798 1,770 - (59,719) 168,108

Intangible assets: Assets under 99,726 (8,798) - (2,260) - 88Ê668

construction

323,349 - 1,770 (2,260) (60,426) 262,433

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Economic entity - 2019

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Amortisation Total

Copyright 7,071 - - (707) 6,364

Software 273,495 24,453 (9,705) (70,984) 217,259

Intangible assets: Assets under construction 99,726 - - - 99,726

380,292 24,453 (9,705) (71,691) 323,349

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Controlling entity - 2020

Opening
balance

Capitalisation Transfer 
from
property,
plant and
equipment

Transfer to
property,
plant and
equipment

Amortisation Total

Copyright 6,364 - - - (707) 5,657

Software 217,259 8,798 1,300 - (59,538) 167,747

Intangible assets: Assets under 
construction

99,726 (8,798) - (2,260) - 88,668

323,349 - 1,300 (2,260) (60,245) 262,072

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Controlling entity - 2019

Opening 
balance

Additions Disposals Amortisation Total

Copyright 7,071 - - (707) 6,364

Software 273,398 24,454 (9,705) (70,960) 217,187

Intangible assets: Assets under construction 99,726 - - - 99,726

380,195 24,454 (9,705) (71,667) 323,277

Copyright comprises the product and tool design of the 10M4 Series 2 rolling stock model. None of the items have restricted 
titles or are pledged as security for liabilities.

Software comprises customised Geographic Information Systems and Enterprise Resource Planning software.

Carrying value of intangible assets that are taking a significantly longer period of time to complete than expected:

Project still under construction 88,064 99,726 88,064 99,726
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6.      Investments in controlled entities

Name of company % 
holding

2020

% 
holding

2019

Carrying 
amount 2020

Carrying 
amount 2019

Intersite Asset Investments (SOC) Ltd 100,00 % 100,00 % - -

“Intersite”

Autopax Passenger Services (SOC) Ltd 100,00 % 100,00 % - -

“Autopax”

- -

The carrying amounts of controlled entities are shown net of impairment losses.

Intersite Asset Investments (SOC) Ltd

Intersite was a subsidiary throughout the year. The interest in the deficit of the subsidiary amounted to R14 million (2019: 
deficit R18 million). The investment and loan have been impaired to nil.

Country of incorporation: South Africa

Principal activity: Property and asset investment solutions to economic entity through a range of innovative and 
entrepreneurial solutions.

Authorised share capital

4 000 ordinary shares of R1 each 

Issued share capital

375 ordinary shares of R1 each (2019: 375)

Autopax Passenger Services (SOC) Ltd

Autopax was a subsidiary throughout the year. The interest in the deficit of the subsidiary amounted to R328 million (2019: 
deficit R443 million). The investment has been impaired to nil.

Country of incorporation: South Africa 

Principal activity: Passenger bus services Authorised share capital

800 000 000 ordinary shares of R1 each Issued share capital

601 863 850 ordinary shares of R1 each (2019: 601 863 850)

Related party transactions with subsidiaries

During the year, the entity entered into transactions with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Intersite and Autopax. All transactions 
with the above are concluded on an arm’s length basis.

Related party transactions are included under related party note.
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7. Loans to (from) economic entities

Controlled entities

Autopax Passenger Services (SOC) Ltd “Autopax”
Autopax was a subsidiary throughout the year. The
interest in the deficit of the subsidiary amounted to
R328 million. (2019: Deficit R443 million). The
investment and loan have been impaired to nil.

- - - -

Loan impairment

Loans granted and expenses paid - - 873,591 637,041

Impairment of loan in subsidiaries - - (873,591) (637,041)

- - - -

Autopax received funds from the controlling entity for operations of R237 million (2019: R276 million). The amount was
impaired to nil as Autopax is experiencing cash flow constraints due to poor operational performance and the amount might 
not be recoverable. There are no repayment terms and conditions for the loan.

8. Operating lease asset (accrual)

Development lease receivable 2,175,785 2,189,710 2,175,785 2,189,710

Lease rentals on operating lease 3,348 2,358 - -

Development lease liability (1,332,991) (1,389,726) (1,332,991) (1,389,726)

846,142 802,342 842,794 799,984

Non-current assets 2,179,133 2,192,068 2,175,785 2,189,710

Non-current liabilities (1,332,991) (1,389,726) (1,332,991) (1,389,726)

846,142 802,342 842,794 799,984

PRASA entered into development leases with private parties. These arrangements entail the construction of infrastructure on
PRASA’s land at their own cost for use by these parties over the lease period. The private party has the right of use of the
PRASA land through the development lease. At the end of the lease period, the right to the use of the land and the
infrastructure reverts to PRASA.

The risks and rewards associated with owning the land do not pass to the lessee at any stage of this arrangement. The land is
recognised as Investment property as the land is used for commercial purposes.

The residual interest relating to the infrastructure constructed by the private party is measured at the net present value of the
estimated gross residual value of the infrastructure at the end of the lease and is recognised as a receivable.

The fair market valuation of the land was professionally determined by an independent valuer, Knight Frank ( 2019: Knight
Frank Valuers). The capitalisation of net income method as well as comparable sales method was used.

The operating lease rentals relates to the lease of the office premises which commenced in April 2011 with a lease term of 9
years. The entity did not have an option to purchase the building at the expiry of the lease period.
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7. Loans to (from) economic entities

Controlled entities

Employees of the economic entity participate in the Transmed Medical Scheme administered by Metropolitan Health Group
(Pty) Ltd.

The terms of the post-retirement medical scheme are summarised below:

• The entity subsidises some employees for a fixed amount of R213 per month in retirement. The amount is fixed irrespective 
of the number of dependents on the medical scheme and will not increase in future. Employees of the entity retiring after 
31 March 2012 are not eligible for the post retirement medical aid subsidy. In addition, dependants of employees, who die in 
service after 31 March 2012, are no longer eligible for a post-employment medical aid subsidy.

• Dependants of eligible continuation members receive the subsidy after the death of the principal member..
• The actuarial projection method used to value the fund is the Projected Unit Credit method. The valuation was done by Old 

Mutual Corporate Consultants (2019: Old Mutual Corporate Consultants).

Movement in the present value of unfunded obligation:

Accrued liability at the beginning of the year 8,447 10,347 8,174 10,059

Benefits paid (975) (1,118) (944) (1,087)

Expenses recognised in statement of 
comprehensive
income

-Interest expense 705 790 682 768

-Actuarial (gain)/loss (1,207) (1,572) (1,172) (1,566)

6,970 8,447 6,740 8,174

Current liability 888 975 860 944

Non-current liability 6,082 7,472 5,880 7,230

6,970 8,447 6,740 8,174

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting 
date:

Discount rate per annum 10.10% 8.90% 10.10% 8.90%

Age of spouse

Post retirement mortality assumption

Retired
members:

husbands 4
years older
than wives

In accordance
with PA90,

rated down 2
years plus 1%
improvement

per annum
(from base

year of 2006)

Retired
members:

husbands 4
years older
than wives

In accordance
with PA90,

rated down 2
years plus 1%
improvement

per annum
(from base

year of 2006)

Retired
members:

husbands 4
years older
than wives

In accordance
with PA90,

rated down 2
years plus 1%
improvement

per annum
(from base

year of 2006)

Retired
members:

husbands 4
years older
than wives

In accordance
with PA90,

rated down 2
years plus 1%
improvement

per annum
(from base

year of 2006)



PRASA 2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT124

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Economic entity Controlling entity

Figures in Rand thousand 2020 2019 2020 2019

9. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

No explicit
assumption
was made
about
additional
mortality or
health care
costs due to
AIDS

No explicit
assumption
was made
about
additional
mortality or
health care
costs due to
AIDS

No explicit
assumption
was made
about
additional
mortality or
health care
costs due to
AIDS

No explicit
assumption
was made
about
additional
mortality or
health care
costs due to
AIDS

Sensitivity results

The economic entity operates a defined benefit fund administered by Metropolitan Retirement Fund Administrators. The assets
of the funds are held separate from those of the economic entity. The fund was actuarially valued by Old Mutual Corporate
Consultants, an independent company (2019: Old Mutual Corporate Consultants).

A member with at least 10 years pensionable service is entitled to the following benefits on attaining the minimum retirement
age:

• An annual pension equal to: (Average pensionable salary) x (pensionable service) x (accrual factor of 1)
• Plus a gratuity equal to: (1/3) x (1) x (gratuity factor)

A member with less than 10 years of pensionable service is entitled to gratuity equal to twice the member’s own contribution
without interest, on attaining the age limit.

The rules do not permit late retirement after the attainment of the age limit.

Fair value of plan assets 1,197,467 1,187,412 1,197,467 1,187,412

Total present value of obligations (650,592) (602,790) (650,592) (602,790)

Surplus 546,875 584,622 546,875 584,622

Less: amount not recognised (546,875) (584,622) (546,875) (584,622)

- - - -

The fair value of the fund assets exceed the present value of obligations by R547 million at the end of the financial year. The
surplus in the fund is recognised in the statement of financial position to the extent that the surplus amount is apportioned to
PRASA by Trustees. There has been no apportionment to PRASA and therefore no amount has been recognised in the
statement of financial position.

Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 1,187,412 1,256,970 1,187,412 1,256,970

Interest income on assets 101,912 99,803 101,912 99,803
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9.      Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Member contribution 516 515 516 515

Company contribution 545 758 545 758

Benefits paid (60,950) (51,926) (60,950) (51,926)

Net return on assets (31,969) (118,708) (31,969) (118,708)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1,197,466 1,187,412 1,197,466 1,187,412

The fair value of plan assets consist of: 
Cash

116,154 90,717 116,154 90,717

Equity 282,602 350,287 282,602 350,287

Bonds 413,126 422,719 413,126 422,719

Property 59,873 84,900 59,873 84,900

International 325,711 238,789 325,711 238,789

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1,197,466 1,187,412 1,197,466 1,187,412

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligations at the beginning of 
the year

(602,790) (629,886) (602,790) (629,886)

Interest cost (50,516) (49,047) (50,516) (49,047)

Past and current service cost (1,715) (1,715) (1,715) (1,715)

Member contributions (516) (515) (516) (515)

Benefits paid 60,950 51,926 60,950 51,926

Actuarial loss (56,005) 26,447 (56,005) 26,447

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the 
year

(650,592) (602,790) (650,592) (602,790)

Expenses recognised in statement of comprehensive income

Past and current services costs (1,715) (1,715) (1,715) (1,715)

Net interest on net defined benefit asset (50) (38) (50) (38)

Actuarial gain (1,219) (995) (1,219) (995)

Expenses recognised in statement of comprehensive income (2,984) (2,748) (2,984) (2,748)

These expenses are recognised in operating expenses.

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate 10,10% 8,80% 10,10% 8,80%

Inflation rate 6,60% 4,80% 6,60% 4,80%

Salary increase rate 7,60% 5,60% 7,60% 5,60%

Pension increase allowance 5,00% 3,60% 5,00% 3,60%

The defined benefit obligation exposes the economic entity to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, interest rate risk and
market (investment) risks.
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10.    Prepayments

2020 - Economic entity Rolling stock Total

Balance at the beginning of the year 8,457,645 8,457,645

Transfer to Property Plant and Equipment (143,865) (143,865)

Subtotal 8,313,780 8,313,780

Short term - portion (604,231) (604,231)

7,709,549 7,709,549

2019 - Economic entity Locomotives Rolling stock Connection fee Total

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,938,521 8,500,805 17,195 10,456,521

Payments made during the year 711,687 - - 711,687

Transfer to Property Plant and Equipment - (43Ê160) (17,195) (60,355)

Reclassified to receivables (2,650,208) - - (2,650,208)

Subtotal - 8,457,645 - 8,457,645

Short term - portion - (287,729) - (287,729)

- 8,169,916 - 8,169,916
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10.    Prepayments (continued)

Prepayments (continued)

2020 - Controlling entity Rolling stock Total

Balance at the beginning of the year 8,457,645 8,457,645

Transfer to Property Plant and Equipment (143,865) (143,865)

Subtotal 8,457,645 8,457,645

Short term - portion (604,231) (604,231)

7,709,549 7,709,549

2019- Controlling entity Locomotives              Rolling 
stock 

Connection fee Total 

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,938,521 8,500,805 17,195 10,456,521

Adjustment for the year 711,687                      - - - 711,687

Transfer to Property Plant and Equipment (43,160) (17,195) - (60,355)

Reclassification (2,650,208) - - - (2,650,208)

Subtotal - 8,457,645 - - 8,457,645

Short term - portion (287,729) - - (287,729)

- 8,169,916 - - 8,169,916

On the 14th of October 2013, PRASA entered into an agreement with the Gibela Rail Transport Consortium (Gibela) for the
design, supply and manufacture of 600 new trains. The financial agreement was approved and gazetted by the Minister of
Finance on the 16th of April 2014. The contractual terms of the Agreement stipulate that the risks and rewards of ownership 
will pass to PRASA upon delivery of the rolling stock, and after PRASA satisfies itself that all quality parameters are met. 
PRASA has received 31 trains in total with 10 trains (2019: 3 trains) received during the 2019/20 financial year. The short-
term portion of the prepayment is based on the number of trains anticipated in the following financial year. 42 trains will be 
delivered according to the delivery schedule, during the 2020/21 financial year.

11. Inventories

Inventories 565,082 536,577 548,018 515,373

None of the inventory is pledged as security for liabilities. During the year R200 million (2019: R297 million) worth of material
was recognised in the income statement.

12. Receivables from exchange transactions

Trade debtors 551,258 457,168 553,327 449,499

Prepayments 16,602 27,369 10,751 18,700

Deposits 7,231 7,917 5,887 6,559

Operating lease straight lining asset 210,077 196,391 210,077 196,391

Sundry debtors^ 288,442 127,843 285,763 126,329

Other receivables - Swifambo* 438,544 459,779 438,544 459,779

Accounts receivable inter company (1) - 214,936 (140)

1,512,153 1,376,891 1,719,285 1,257,117
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12. Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

^Included in sundry debtors are balances for managed portfolio tenant debtors, Transnet billing in respect of train control
officers and workplace improvement plan.

Receivables are shown net of impairment losses amounting to R2 422 million (2019: R2 331 million). Included in trade
receivables are train control services rendered, traction recovery and electricity charges to Transnet. The prepayment amount
consists of advance payments for insurance premiums, licence fees and municipal rates prepayments in Kwazulu-Natal.
*PRASA entered into a contractual agreement with Swifambo Rail Leasing (SRL), on 25 March 2013, to construct and supply
new locomotives from Vossloh Spain which were to be utilised for Mainline Passenger Services. The expenditure would be
incurred for a period of 5 years. Risk and rewards of ownership would pass to PRASA upon delivery of the locomotives, and
after PRASA satisfied itself that all quality parameters are met. 13 locomotives were delivered to PRASA during the 2014/15
and 2015/16 financial years. No locomotives were delivered subsequently as during a forensic investigation it became apparent 
that the contract between SRL and PRASA never came into existence as conditions precedent were not timely fulfilled. 
Furthermore the investigation revealed irregularities including unlawfulness. The court ruled in favour of PRASA to set aside 
the contract. The matter was taken on appeal, first to the Supreme Court of Appeal (SCA) and that court confirmed the order 
of the High Court. Swifambo applied for leave to appeal the decision of the SCA at the Constitutional Court. On 2 May 2019 the 
Constitutional Court dismissed the Swifambo’s application for leave to appeal on the basis that there were no prospects of 
success. This is now the end of this matter and the order of the High Court stands and Swifambo should pay back the money 
claimed by PRASA in connection with the contract between the parties.

The receivable relating to Swifambo was impaired to the current estimated potential recoverable value in the previous financial 
year. This value was based on initial evidence from the liquidator of Swifambo.The liquidation is in process but likely to take 
a significant period of time as it is being bogged down by legal challenges. Changes to the impairment value will vary as the 
liquidation process progresses and certainty is developed around the amounts recoverable by PRASA. The amount of the 
receivable will be revised annually as and when more relevant information is received from the liquidator.

Allowance for impairment
The economic entity’s trade receivables are stated after allowances for doubtful debts based on management’s assessment of
the creditworthiness of the respective debtors. An analysis of the allowance is as follows:

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of receivables from exchange transactions:

Opening balance (2,331,055) (121,605) (2,329,522) (120,183)

Provision for impairment (70,122) (19,021) (68,850) (18,910)

Provision for impairment - Other 
receivables

(21,235) (2,190,429) (21,235) (2,190,429)

(2,422,412) (2,331,055) (2,419,607) (2,329,522)

13. VAT receivable

VAT 737 - 2,119 -

PRASA levies VAT on non commuter services including leasing of commercial space. Input VAT is claimed on an
apportionment basis using the turnover-based method.

14. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Bank balances 130,022 247,176 112,861 236,739

Call deposits 24,003,479 18,024,729 24,003,479 18,020,986

Tenant deposits held in Trust 48,246 44,051 48,246 44,051

24,181,747 18,315,956 24,164,586 18,301,776
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14.    Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

 
Tenant deposits are held in a Trust account with ABSA bank. Interest earned on these deposits amounts to R2 million (2019: 
R 2 million) and is included in the tenant deposit held in Trust. Call deposits earn interest at an average rate of 5.9% (2019: 
5.10%) per annum.

15.   Share capital Authorised

Authorised
Ordinary shares of R1 each 4,248,258 4,248,258 4,248,258 4,248,258

Issued 
Ordinary 4,248,258 4,248,258 4,248,258 4,248,258

There were no movements in the share capital of the entity (2019: None). The shares are 100% (2019: 100%) owned by 
Government.

Issued 
Ordinary 4,248,258 4,248,258 4,248,258 4,248,258

16.    Unspent conditional grants

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 
Capital subsidy and grants 48,839,515 45,013,346 48,839,515 45,013,346

Movement during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year 45,013,345 40,125,334 45,013,345 40,125,334

Additions during the year 8,085,715 8,362,232 8,085,715 8,362,232

Income recognition during the year (4,259,545) (3,474,220) (4,259,545) (3,474,220)

48,839,515 45,013,346 48,839,515 45,013,346

Capital subsidies are recognised as unspent conditional grant and are amortised when conditions are met.

Capital subsidies receivable in future years:

2021: R10 852 million
2022: R14 707 million
2023: R14 117 million
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17.    Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - Economic entity - 2020

Opening 
Balance

Additions Reversed 
during the 
year

Total

Provision for claims* 2,111,417 329,216 (385,486) 2,055,147

Provision for penalty 306 - (306) -

Provision for Port Elizabeth sales office upgrade 105 5 - 110

Provision for Polokwane bus rank 135 53 - 188

Provision for water - 235 - 235

Provision for license fees - 1,704 - 1,704

Provision for security services - 94 - 94

Provision for drivers accommodation and shuttling - 70 - 70

2,111,963 331,377 (385,792) 2,057,548

Reconciliation of provisions - Economic entity - 2019

Opening 
Balance

Additions Reversed 
during the 
year

Total

Provision for claims* 1,268,041 1,211,976 (368,600) 2,111,417

Provision for penalty 140 166 - 306

Provision for Port Elizabeth sales office upgrade 101 4 - 105

Provision for Polokwane bus rank 82 53 - 135

Provision for Sampra 765 - (765) -

Provision for Samro 333 - (333) -

1,269,462 1,212,199 (369,698) 2,111,963

Reconciliation of provisions - Controlling entity - 2020

Opening 
Balance

Additions Reversed 
during the 
year

Total

Provision for claims* 2,111,417 329,216 (385,486) 2,055,147

Reconciliation of provisions - Controlling entity - 2019

Opening 
Balance

Additions Reversed 
during the 
year

Total

Provision for claims* 1,268,041 1,211,976 (368,600) 2,111,417

Non-current liabilities 1,679,877 1,497,628 1,679,877 1,497,628

Current liabilities 377,671 614,335 375,270 613,789

2,057,548 2,111,963 2,055,147 2,111,417

*The amount shown comprises the gross provision in respect of certain claims brought against the economic entity by 
commuters in respect of accidents which occurred in the current and previous financial years. It is not expected that the 
outcome will give rise to significant claims over and above the amounts provided for. 
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17.  Provisions (continued)

The Chain Ladder method was applied in calculating the development factors for PRASA liability losses as at 31 March 2020.
Ultimately these factors will be used to estimate the level of reserves required. The Chain Ladder method is a calculation
approach used to estimate outstanding claims (Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)) and future claim payments as required),
whereby the weighted average of past claim development is projected into the future with adjustments to development 
patterns where applicable. The projection is based on the ratios of cumulative past claims, paid and incurred, for successive 
years of development. The method can be applied to past claims data with either explicit or implicit allowance for claims 
inflation. Based on the stability in the average claim values, the implicit adjustment was retained. The actuarial valuation was 
performed by AON (2019: AON), an independent Company.

A discount rate of 7.90% (2019: 7.90%) was used to discount future estimated payments. Each year was discounted to
represent today’s value. In addition to adjustments to the incurred claim patterns as derived from prior years’ reporting 
patterns, the discounting model attempts to allow for further uncertainties in the timing of claim payments for up to 17 years 
into the future. The derived development and settlement factors were applied to these outstanding losses to project a future 
settlement pattern, and then based on the total settlement pattern, a discounting cash flow model was developed.

Provision for Port Elizabeth sales office upgrade
The Port Elizabeth leased sales offices was renovated and altered to provide ablution facilities. Autopax has a contractual
obligation on termination of the lease to repair sales office to the original condition before the renovation. The provision has
been increased with the average inflation rate for the past financial year.

Provision for Polokwane bus rank
Autopax leases space in the Itsotseng centre in Polokwane. A contract was signed by Autopax on 19 December 2017. The
contract period was from 1 October 2011 to 31 August 2016. Provision previously raised for this period was therefore reversed
and accruals were raised. The provisions were raised again from 01 September onwards as a lease contract has not been
signed between Autopax and the lessor and no invoices have been received. Autopax expects to be invoiced for these amounts
in the next financial year.

Provision for water
This provision relates to water charges for the Johannesburg (Harmony) depot. Autopax leases the Johannesburg depot from
Transnet. On a monthly basis Transnet would bill Autopax separately for water charges. Water charges would be obtained from
the invoice Transnet receives from the City of Johannesburg.The last invoice received from Transnet for water was July 2019,
and this invoice was not supported by an invoice from the City of Johannesburg. Due to the national COVID19 lockdown
implemented from 26 March 2020, the City of Johannesburg could not provide an updated invoice for August 2019 to March
2020 and Transnet could not bill Autopax for the water usage. It is expected that the City of Johannesburg will invoice Transnet
once the lockdown is lifted. The provision was based on the last invoice received from the City of Johannesburg in May 2019.

Provision for license fees
This relates to 8 buses utilised by the Cape Town depot. Previously a business decision was taken to renew all license fees
centrally in Gauteng and not across the country at different license authorities. Cape town bus registration numbers therefore
needed to be changed to Gauteng bus registration numbers. There were 28 buses in total, but only 20 registration numbers
were changed from Cape Town to Gauteng Province. Based on the City of Cape Town’s records Autopax was the owner of 20
buses, the remaining 8 buses were still under the ownership of Mercedes Benz. Subsequently the change of ownership
process was followed and updated with the City of Cape town. Before the 8 buses could go for a certificate of fitness (COF)
repairs needed to take place. To date these repairs have not been done. Once the COF is completed and the arrear fees are
settled the registration numbers can be changed from Cape Town to Gauteng Province. Due to the national COVID19 lockdown
implemented from 26 March 2020 an updated statement could not be obtained from the City of Cape town. The provision was
raised based on the last statement received in January 2019 with a penalty increase of 5% and an arrears increase of 4% per
month.
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17. Provisions (continued)

Provision for drivers accommodation and shuttling
This provision relates to drivers accommodation and shuttling for Mosuli Guest House. Due to the national COVID19 lockdown
implemented from 26 March 2020 invoices could not be provided by the service provider. The last invoices received were for
February 2020. Autopax expects to be invoiced for these amounts once the lockdown is lifted. The provision was based on the
last invoices received.

18.    Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 1,515,914 1,197,128 1,467,701 1,157,838

Income received in advance 25,293 31,573 25,293 31,573

Retention 184,060 161,154 184,060 161,154

Accrued leave pay 452,457 428,463 436,812 412,302

Operating lease payables 1,970 2,126 1,541 1,492

Deposits received 51,377 39,060 51,377 39,060

Other payables ^ 885,236 523,232 828,428 488,756

Accruals * 2,608,456 3,170,658 2,550,759 2,951,882

5,724,763 5,553,34 5,545,971 5,244,057

^Included in other payables are creditors for Transnet, Eskom and payroll vendors.

*Included in this balance are accruals for capital expenditure, utilities and municipal services, 13th cheque and Worksmen’s
Compensation and a claim of R396 million (2019: R796 million) against PRASA for unfair dismissal of employees. On 13
February 2013 PRASA terminated employment of 700 members of The National Transport Movement (“NTM”) on allegations
that they participated in the burning of train coaches during their strike. The decision was upheld by the Labour Court. The 
NTM appealed the matter with the Labour Appeal Court. On 21 November 2017 PRASA lost the case and was ordered to 
reinstate the employees retrospectively to the date of dismissal

19. VAT payable

Tax refunds payables - 1,855 - 683

PRASA levies VAT on non commuter services including leasing of commercial space. Input VAT is claimed on an
apportionment basis using the turnover-based method.

20. Revenue

Fare revenue 1,049,970 1,516,398 630,883 1,038,467

Operating lease rental income 725,971 773,318 748,239 800,883

Other income 273,921 308,504 265,997 299,166

Interest received 1,520,108 1,012,525 1,520,943 1,011,306

Fair value adjustments - 297,520 - 297,520

Actuarial gains 2,426 2,567 2,391 2,561

Operational subsidy 8376,499 6,577,911 8,376,499 6,577,911

Capital subsidy and grants amortised 4,259,545 3,474,220 4,259,545 3,474,220

16,208,440 13,962,963 15,804,497 13,502,034
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20.    Revenue (continued)

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of 
goods or services are as follows: Fare revenue

1,049,970 1,516,398 630,883 1,038,467

Operating lease rental income 725,971 773,318 748,239 800,883

Other income 273,921 308,504 265,997 299,166

Interest received 1,520,108 1,012,525 1,520,943 1,011,306

Fair value adjustments - 297,520 - 297,520

Actuarial gains 2,426 2,567 2,391 2,561

3,572,396 3,910,832 3,168,453 3,449,903

The amount included in revenue arising from non- 
exchange transactions is as follows:

Operational subsidy 8,376,499 6,577,911 8,376,499 6,577,911

Capital subsidy and grants amortised 4,259,545 3,474,220 4,259,545 3,474,220

12,636,044 10,052,131 12,636,044 10,052,131

The nature and type of revenue is as follows:

Fare revenue
Fare revenue comprises ticket sales to train and bus commuters for passenger and long distance journeys.

Operational subsidy
The operational subsidy is received annually to fund our operations. The following Medium Term Expenditure Framework
allocations have been made in respect of future years:

2021: R6 694 million
2022: R7 096 million
2023: R7 455 million

21. Other revenue

Other income 273,921 308,504 265,997 299,166

Other income consists of insurance recoveries, on board sales, hire of trains and buses,TETA recoveries, train control officers
income, guarantee payments and development facilitation fees.

22. Investment revenue

Interest revenue

Bank 1,514,343 1,006,965 1,513,553 1,005,746

Interest - debtors 5,765 5,560 7,390 5,560

1,520,108 1,012,525 1,520,943 1,011,306

Call deposits earn interest at an average rate of 5.9% (2019: 6.35%) per annum.
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23.    Government grants and subsidies

Operating grants

Subsidy received from Government 8,376,499 6,577,911 8,376,499 6,577,911

Unspent conditional grants

Balance unspent at beginning of year 45,013,346 40,605,661 45,013,346 40,605,661

Current-year receipts 8,085,715 8,362,232 8,085,715 8,362,232

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (4,259,545) (3,474,220) (4,259,545) (3,474,220)

48,839,515 45,013,346 48,839,515 45,013,346

24.    Employee related costs

Basic 5,226,871 5,050,132 4,880,465 4,716,735

Allowances 139,496 177,485 120,537 157,450

Overtime payments 423,379 461,352 413,585 439,161

5,789,746 5,688,969 5,414,587 5,313,346

25.    Finance costs

Trade and other payables 34,107 21,517 28,638 13,657

Bank 1 27 - 27

Interest on post retirement benefits 705 790 682 768

34,813 22,334 29,320 14,452
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26.    General expenses

Auditors remuneration 52,124 25,112 49,601 21,944

Bank charges 11,400 12,195 9,623 10,179

Commission paid 15,491 17,587 1,600 2,667

Computer expenses 134,281 151,965 133,397 151,112

Consulting and professional fees 21,438 62,949 21,072 62,875

Energy expenses 907,208 916,965 753,480 739,613

Insurance 600,357 1,428,936 593,178 1,420,427

Community development and training 109,061 108,796 109,061 108,796

Marketing 10,415 10,599 9,706 10,015

Printing 2,223 4,076 1,944 4,075

Security 701,738 661,735 682,966 651,549

Telephone and fax 60,103 66,441 57,221 63,912

Auxillary transport 21,527 67,115 24,970 76,094

Training 12,463 32,009 12,034 31,844

Travel expenses 15,331 30,176 14,775 29,470

Travel and accommodation - staff 37,076 44,113 22,576 28,241

Material expenses 200,823 296,967 168,920 252,663

Municipal charges 444,042 527,760 439,590 524,833

RSR rail safety license fees 31,333 29,545 31,333 29,545

Haulage fees 113,608 205,092 113,608 205,092

Legal fees 130,098 73,857 129,983 73,635

Health and risk 229,305 231,846 226,570 229,170

License and transport certificate fees 13,682 18,602 32 47

Operating lease expense 209,679 187,508 186,975 159,517

Managed portfolio expenses 29,897 27,135 29,897 27,135

Management fees on external services 5,636 5,447 5,636 5,447

On board services - cost of trading stock 6,428 6,355 6,428 6,355

Other expenses 111,913 2,285,751 86,522 2,259,444

4,238,680 7,536,634 3,922,698 7,185,696

27.    Auditors’ remuneration

External audit fees 29,216 24,843 26,693 21,675

Internal audit fees 22,908 269 22,908 269

52,124 25,112 49,601 21,944
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28.    Operating lease income

Operating lease rental income 725,971 773,318 748,239 800,883

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Not later than one year 231,039 297,915 231,039 267,915

Later than one year and not later than five years 342,014 584,849 342,014 584,849

Later than five years 758,988 541,172 758,988 584,849

1,332,041 1,423,936 1,332,041 1,437,613

Description of the economic entity as lessor’s significant leasing arrangements

Short-term commercial and residential operating leases

The economic entity has entered into a number of short-term commercial and residential operating leases in respect of 
certain land and buildings with third parties. The average term of these leases are between 3 and 5 years with no option to 
purchase. In a few older lease agreements, renewal options are available for a short-term period. These are only applicable 
if they have complied with all terms and conditions of the original lease, and on renewal, lease rentals are subjected to 
escalation. Newer lease agreements have no renewal options but have rights of first refusal should the economic entity 
decide to continue leasing the properties on expiry of the lease. Lease agreements generally contain a clause that they may 
be cancelled at the option of the lessor after giving sufficient notice to the lessee, should the lease arrangements conflict with 
commuter services.

Leasehold improvements operating leases

The economic entity has entered into a number of operating leases with third parties for the lease of land. In terms of the
agreements, the lessee is obliged to effect leasehold improvements on the premises which remains the property of the lessor,
without compensation to the lessee on termination of the lease. Lease rentals charged for the land are market-related,
determined with reference to independent valuations of the properties. No incentive is given to lessees in view of the leasehold
improvements which they are obliged to effect. The terms of the leases are generally between 20 and 50 years. The leases
have rental reviews renegotiated every 5 years with the majority of the leases incorporating turnover clauses. These leasehold
improvements are effected and financed by lessees, who have exclusive rights of use of the buildings for the period of the
lease. As a result, these buildings are not classified as assets of the economic entity as defined and therefore have not been
capitalised. However, these assets will be capitalised on expiry of the lease. These assets are bonded by lessees’ financiers
who have the first option of occupation in the event of breach of contract.

Operating lease expenses

The future minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Not later than one year 2,831 3,572 947 947

Later than one year and not later than five years 6,214 6,988 4,734 4,734

Later than five years 7,180 8,127 7,180 8,127

16,225 18,687 12,861 13,808

Autopax entered into lease arrangements for buildings and pool cars. Buildings are leased for administrative and operational
purposes and these include sales offices and technical facilities. Pool cars are also used for administrative and operational
purposes. Lease terms for buildings are between 1 and 5 years with escalation rates ranging from 6% to 10%. Leases for pool
cars commenced on 01 February 2018 with a lease term of 3 years with escalation rates ranging from 1.5% to 23.5%. There no
purchase option at the end of the lease term for both buildings and pool cars.
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28. Operating lease income (continued)

The economic entity entered into a development lease agreement with Ekurhuleni Municipality on 1 December 2014 for land on 
which the Gibela factory is constructed. The lease is for a period of 20 years. The first 2 years of the rental will be at zero value. 
The next 36 months thereafter will be for an amount of R78.9 thousand per month. After year 5, the lease will be reviewed 
and agreed upon for the next 5 years until year 10. Thereafter the rentals and annual escalation rates will be reviewed every 5 
years based on market values.

29.    Cash generated from operations

Surplus (deficit) 2,278,867 (2,141,722) 2,384,921 (1,957,173)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 2,518,075 2,184,943 2,491,884 2,112,014

Loss on sale of assets 245,085 96,457 245,081 96,457

Fair value adjustments 52,429 (297,520) 52,429 (297,520)

Impairment (reversals)/loss (19,402) (656,836) 232,818 (424,298)

Movements in operating lease assets and accruals (43,800) (96,406) (42,810) (95,218)

Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities 949 (1,900) 957 (1,885)

Movements in provisions (54,415) 842,501 (56,270) 843,376

Actuarial gain/(loss) (2,426) - (2,391) -

Impairment of receivables from non-exchange 21,236 2,190,429 21,236 2,190,429

transactions

Impairment of receivable from exchange transactions 70,122 19,021 68,850 18,910

Changes in working capital:

Inventories (28,503) (34,586) (32,644) (38,648)

Receivables from exchange transactions (327,044) (607,590) (378,072) (608,699)

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions - 838,825 - 838,825

Payables from exchange transactions 267,526 868,600 223,889 825,601

VAT (2,592) (6,672) (2,802) (2,250)

Unspent conditional grants 3,826,170 4,888,012 3,826,170 4,888,012

8,802,277 8,085,556 9,033,246 8,387,933
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30.    Commitments

Authorised capital expenditure

Contracted but expenditure not yet provided for

• New rolling stock 73,267,207 66,451,288 73,267,207 66,451,288

• Signals and telecommunications 1,573,307 3,163,494 1,573,307 3,163,494

• Other capital programmes 1,419,113 2,096,945 1,419,113 2,096,945

76,259,627 71,711,727 76,259,627 71,711,727

Authorised but not yet contracted - 39,311 - 39,311

• Other capital programmes

Total capital commitments 
Contracted but expenditure not yet provided for 76,259,627 71,711,727 76,259,627 71,711,727

Authorised but not yet contracted - 39,311 - 39,311

76,259,627 71,751,038 76,259,627 71,751,038

Authorised operational expenditure

Contracted but expenditure not yet provided for 16,641,570 20,396,886 16,641,570 20,411,287

• Services

Total operational commitments 
Contracted but expenditure not yet provided for

16,641,570 20,396,886 16,641,570 20,411,287

Total commitments

Total commitments 
Authorised capital expenditure 76,259,627 71,751,038 76,259,627 71,751,038

Authorised operational expenditure 16,641,570 20,396,886 16,641,570 20,411,287

92,901,197 92,147,924 92,901,197 92,162,325
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31.    Contingencies

Contingent liabilities 
Description 
1. Mukoma Technologies - 27,353 - 27,353
2. Prodigy Business Services 24,624 24,624 24,624 24,624
3. Bagale Consulting claiming for alleged failure to pay for 
services rendered during 2010.

- 35,908 - 35,908

4. Labour disputes 82,865 113,821 82,865 113,821
5. Rail & Road Assessing Services, for alleged failure to pay for 
services rendered. Application was launched for dismissal of 
action.

3,460 3,460 3,460 3,460

6. Various insurance claims for personal injuries as well as 
legal and other matters which may result in a possible loss in 
future.

44,400 45,000 44,400 45,000

7. Bombardier Africa Alliance - Delay claims allegedly 
occasioned by a change request and a NUMSA strike.

101,881 101,881 101,881 101,881

8. Tiro Projects - Claim for alleged failure to pay for professional 
services rendered.

4,105 4,105 4,105 4,105

9. T2 Tech Alleged unlawful termination of contract 17,377 17,377 17,377 17,377
10. National Force Security (Liquidated) 8,552 8,552 8,552 8,552
11. Madisha & Associates - Claim for alleged breach of contract. 6,774 6,774 6,774 6,774
12. Koor Dinadar Moti Quantity Services 478 478 478 478
13. Sbahle Safety consultants for alleged failure to pay for 
services rendered.

10,324 10,324 10,324 10,324

14. Rasakanya Builders CC - Claim for alleged failure to pay for 
cleaning services rendered.

929 929 929 929

15. Siyaya Rail Solutions - Claim for alleged failure to pay for 
professional services rendered.

21,626 21,626 21,626 21,626

16. Siyaya db Consulting Engineers  - Claim for alleged failure 
to pay for services rendered.*

48,194 48,194 48,194 48,194

17. EE Motshweni vs Autopax, claiming for loss of support. 6,997 6,997 - -
18. VISION AFRICA as part of MMQS-MACE (Pty) Ltd - alleged 
work done.*

14,528 14,528 14,528 14,528

19. Pro-Serve Consulting - alleged work done. - 286 - 286
20. Siyangena - claim for interest.^ 93,463 238,946 93,463 238,946
21. Siyangena - claim for services rendered.^ 1,080,901 2,066,081 1,080,901 2,066,081
22. Siyangena - claim for services rendered.^ 897,479 - 897,479 -
23. APM - Claim for alleged loss of business. 68,763 68,763 - -
24. David Underwood/Sharpline Graphics - Claim for breach of 
contract.

6,884 6,884 6,884 6,884

25. Mtiya Dynamics- Claim for services alleged rendered. 1,995 1,995 1,995 1,995
26. Genesis 1 Cas Car Rental - Claim against Autopax for 
services rendered - Autopax

215 67 - -

27. Sebenza Shipping and Forwarding vs PRASA for alleged 
services rendered.

6,218 6,218 6,218 6,218

28. Fabor Engineering Products (Pty) Ltd vs PRASA for alleged 
services rendered.

233 233 233 233

29. Nkambule and Associates vs PRASA for alleged 43,341 43,341 43,341 43,341
30. Superway Constructions vs PRASA for alleged services 
rendered.

2,903 2,903 2,903 2,903

31. Theeunissen J  vs PRASA & others claim for injuries/
unlawful arrest

- 3,043 - 3,043

32. Phaahlana Mahlako Investments - alleged services 
rendered.

1,164 1,164 1,164 1,164
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31.    Contingencies (continued)

33. Boyisa Trading Enterprise - alleged services rendered. 208 208 208 208
34. Mnjiya Consulting engineers - Claim for services allegedly 
rendered.

- 23,901 - 23,901

35. Nkuna Building Construction. 229 229 229 229
36. Siemens - Deyal damages claim- Claim 4 53,864 53,864 53,864 53,864
37. APM v PRASA - Claim for defamation 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
38. Bolombe82 - Claim for breach of contract. 3,248 3,248 3,248 3,248
39. Mbita Consulting services - Claim for services rendered 16,506 16,506 - -
40. Putprop Limited - Claim for unpaid rentals. 1,985 1,985 - -
41. Mpufumelelo Business Enterprise - Construction contract 
dispute.

2,461 2,461 2,461 2,461

42. Diko Van Der Merwe t/a DPV Quantity Surveyors. 3,999 3,999 3,999 3,999
43. Diko Van Der Merwe t/a DPV Quantity Surveyors. 932 932 932 932
44. Otcon Construction (Oteo 4Phase JV) - Claim for alleged 
services rendered.

6,986 6,986 6,986 6,986

45. Glenlex/Shaun Williams & Others (Liquidators) - supply and 
delivery of goods.

- 6,364 - 6,364

46. Tshireletso Business Enterprises - Construction contract. 4,054 4,054 4,054 4,054
47. Maraj - Claim for alleged services rendered. - 1,285 - 1285
48. Max Arcus & Sons - Claim for services rendered. 400 400 400 400
49. MMQS -MACE - PROFESSIONALS 12,684 12,684 12,684 12,685
50. Astrid Dressler /Thandaani Innocent Ngubane & Ors - Motor 
vehicle collision.

101 101 - -

51. Phumelela fleet Ops- Alleged failure to pay for services 
rendered-Apx

843 843 - -

52. BLK Monitoring - Claim for unpaid invoices. 1,641 1,641 - -
53. Ditibane Brothers - Claim for abortive costs as a result of 
termination of agreement.

100 100 - -

54. Raamba Engineering - Civil claim. 66 67 - -
55. Five deceased employees’ benefit claims repudiated by 
insurer.

- 3,141 - -

56. Focus (InCab Signalling) - alleged failure to pay for services 
rendered.

13,878 - 13,878 -

57. Mangi and Ngwazi Investments- claim for services allegedly 
rendered.

10,403 - 10,403 -

58. Espafrika Proprietary Limited- 15,219 - 15,219 -
59. Vidual Investments Proprietary Limited. 2,169 - 2,169 -
60. Strauss Daly Inc - Claim foe services allegedly rendered 4,762 - 4,762 -
61. Siyaya DB - in liquidation - Claim for services allegedly 
rendered

15,319 - 15,319 -

62. On Demand Investments- Claim based on Lease agreement 2,507 - 2,507 -
63. Bila Contractors- Claim for alleged breach of contract. 45,157 - 45,157 -
64. Nkambule & Associates- Claim for professional services 
rendered

3,279 - 3,279 -

65. Wille Mkhonza- Defamation claim. 500 - 500 -
66. Tyre Services - Kal Tire 652 - - -
67. GVK - Siya Zama Building Constructions (Pty) Ltd.* - 72,908 - 72,908

Total contingent liabilities 2,829,825 3,154,762 2,731,956 3,054,552

*Prior period correction.
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31.    Contingencies (continued)

The matters listed in the note are matters in respect of which the counterparty mentioned has commenced legal proceedings 
either in court or through alternative dispute resolution, for example, arbitration proceedings. There is uncertainty relating to 
outcome, amount and the timing of the outflow, a final determination in this regard will be made by the presiding officer of the 
court or the arbitral forum as the case may be. In the event that PRASA is successful in its defence on any of the matters listed 
in this note, PRASA may be reimbursed for part of the legal costs it incurred in defending the matter in question.

^On 8 October 2020 a full bench of the Gauteng High Court ordered that the agreements concluded between PRASA and 
Siyangena Technologies (Pty) Limited (“Siyangena”) be reviewed and set aside. The court also found that the arbitration 
agreements contained in these agreements are similarly and specifically reviewed and set aside. This decision therefore 
suspends any claims that Siyangena have lodged by way of arbitration against PRASA. In accordance with the court order, an 
engineer is to be appointed within 30 days by the parties or by the court, where the parties do not reach agreement, to assess 
the work that has been done by Siyangena and indicate whether there is a deficit or excess in the payments already made by 
PRASA. In the event that the engineer finds that there is an excess, Siyangena will be obliged to pay this excess and if s/he 
finds a deficit, PRASA will be obliged to make good on the deficit. Siyangena has appealed the Gauteng High Court decision and 
PRASA must await the conclusion of the appeal process before effecting any adjustments to amounts contained in its WIP and 
contingent liabilities.
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31.    Contingencies (continued)

Contingent assets

2020 Economic
entity

Controlling
entity

295,675 295,675
(128,877) (128,877)
166,798 166,798

1. Non-payment of professional services rendered to Government departments, and other third 
parties.

90,342 90,342

2. Monies paid to Mazwe Financial Services micro-lender in respect of loans to employees. 28,941 28,941
3. Claims against employees for being absent from work, employed on basis of misrepresentation 
and for services not rendered.

32,775 32,775

4. Compass Insurance-Claim against an insurer of a contractor in respect of the non 
performance of a contractor that has since been liquidated.

14,740 14,740

166,798 166,798

The matters above are under litigation and have been recognised as contingent assets. Their existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of PRASA.

^On 12 March 2019, PRASA demanded from Lombard Insurance Company Limited (“Lombard”) that it (PRASA) be paid the
performance guarantee in the amount of R128.9 million. In response to this demand, Bombardier Africa Alliance Consortium
(“BAA”) launched an application to restrain Lombard from making the payment. This application was dismissed with costs. 
BAA took this decision on appeal before the full bench. On 7 October 2020, BAA’s appeal was also dismissed with costs. This
means that Lombard has no legal basis for refusing paying PRASA the above amount of R128.9 million. The amount has been
reclassified from contingent asset to receivables from exchange transactions in the current financial period.

2019 Economic 
entity

Controlling 
entity

Opening balance 888,572 888,572

Opening balance adjustment* (711,687) (711,687)
Opening balance adjustment^ 128,877 128,877
Non - payment of professional services rendered to government department and other 44 44
third parties - prior period correction Contingent assets settled during the year (10,131) (10,131)

295,675 295,675

Economic 
entity

Controlling 
entity

1. Non-payment of professional services rendered to Government departments, and other third 
parties.

90,342 90,342

 
2. Monies paid to Mazwe Financial Services micro-lender in respect of loans to employees.

28,941 28,941

3. Claims against employees for being absent from work, employed on basis of misrepresentation 
and for services not rendered.

32,775 32,775

4. Compass Insurance-Claim against an insurer of a contractor in respect of the nonperformance 
of a contractor that has since been liquidated.

14,740 14,740

5. Claim against performance bond.^ 128,877 128,877
295,675 295,675
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31.    Contingencies (continued)

The matters above are under litigation and have been recognised as contingent assets. Their existence will only be confirmed 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of PRASA.

*The ruling by the South Gauteng High Court handed down on 3 July 2017, in favour of PRASA to set aside an agreement in the 
amount of R3.5 billion with Swifambo Rail Leasing (Pty) Limited (In liquidation) for the sale and purchase locomotives dated 25 
March 2013 has been upheld by the Supreme Court of Appeal and the Constitutional Court. Pursuant to this contract, PRASA 
had paid Swifambo an amount of R2.6 billion. As a result of this ruling the parties should be placed in a position they would 
have been in had the contract not been concluded. Therefore a contingent asset of R712 million has been reversed in the 
2018/19 financial year.

^On 12 March 2019, PRASA demanded from Lombard Insurance Company Limited (“Lombard”) that it (PRASA) be paid the 
performance guarantee in the amount of R128.9 million. In response to this demand, Bombardier Africa Alliance Consortium 
(“BAA”) launched an application to restrain Lombard from making the payment. This application was dismissed with costs. 
BAA took this decision on appeal before the full bench. On 7 October 2020, BAA’s appeal was also dismissed with costs. This 
means that Lombard has no legal basis for refusing paying PRASA the above amount of R128.9 million.
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32.    Related parties

The economic entity is a Schedule 3B Public Entity in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No 1 of 1999). 
It therefore has a significant number of related parties, including other State-owned entities, Government departments and 
all other entities within the national sphere of Government. The economic entity used the database maintained by National 
Treasury to identify related parties. A list of all related parties is available on the National Treasury website at www.treasury.
gov.za. Transactions with related parties are concluded on an arm’s length basis.

The entity has a related party relationship with its subsidiaries Autopax and Intersite, as well as with its directors and senior 
executives (key management).

Transactions with related entities

Services rendered to related parties comprise principally transportation (rail and road) services. Services purchased from 
related parties comprised principally energy, telecommunications, information technology, transportation and property related 
services.

During the year, the entity entered into transactions with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Intersite and Autopax. All transactions 
with the above are concluded on an arm’s length basis.

The following is a summary of transactions with related parties during the year and balances due at year-end:

Related party balances

Payables/Receivables from exchange transactions - Owing (to) by related parties

Intersite (7,008) (16,591)

Autopax 188,946 143,271

Loans - Owing by related parties

Autopax 873,591 637,041

Impairment (873,591) (637,041)

- -

Autopax received R237 million (2019: R276 million) funding from the controlling entity for operations. Funding of R637 million 
received in previous financial years has been  impaired to nil as Autopax is experiencing cash flow constraints due to poor 
operational performance and the amount might not be recoverable.

Services rendered to (received from) related parties
Intersite

- -

Autopax 21,168 18,585
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32. Related parties (continued)

Remuneration of management

Board members

2020

Name Fees for
services as
director

Other 
benefits
received

Total

PRASA - - -

Mr X George 234 - 234

Ms K Kweyama (Chairperson) 846 - 846

Ms J Schreiner 353 - 353

Mr S Ntsaluba 340 - 340

Mr DL Wessie 372 - 372

Ms DL Tshepe 301 - 301

Intersite - - -

Mr M Mdebuka (Chairperson) 408 44 452

Mr BZ Mabusela 346 - 346

Ms N Mashinini 414 - 414

Ms NS Mxenge 364 - 364

Ms M Mokoka 338 15 353

4,316 59 4,375

Mr X George

Ms K Kweyama (Chairperson) 

Ms J Schreiner

Mr S Ntsaluba

Mr K Wessie

(Till December 2019)

(Till December 2019)

(Till December 2019)

(Till December 2019)

(Till December 2019)
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32. Related parties (continued)

Ms DL Tshepe 

Mr M Mdebuka (Chairperson) 

Mr BZ Tsoka   

Ms N Mashinini

Ms NS Mxenge

Ms M Moloka

(Till December 2019)

(Till December 2019)

(Till December 2019)

(Till December 2019)

(Till December 2019)

(Till December 2019)
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32. Related parties (continued)

2019

Name Fees for services 
as director

Total

PRASA - -

Mr X George 322 322

Ms M Matlala 459 459

Ms K Kweyama (Chairperson) 1,277 1,277

Mr A Alli 451 451

Ms J Schreiner 543 543

Mr S Ntsaluba 509 509

Mr K Wessie 559 559

Ms DL Tshepe 451 451

Autopax - - 

Ms L Letlape 262 262

Ms MG Mokoka 317 317

Mr P Moiloa 247 247

Mr BL Boshielo 255 255

Intersite - - 

Mr M Mdebuka (Chairperson) 419 419

Mr BZ Mabusela 364 364

Ms N Mashinini 364 364

Ms NS Mxenge 414 414

Ms M Mokoka 405 405

7,618 7,618

Mr A Alli                             (Till March 2019)

Ms M Matlala                    (Till March 2019)

Ms L Letlape                     (Till November 2018)

Ms MG Mokoka                 (Till November 2018)

Mr P Moiloa                       (Till November 2018)

Mr BL Boshielo                 (Till November 2018)
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32. Related parties (continued)

Executive management

2020

Name Salary Retirement
contributions

Other 
benefits
received

Total

Mr B Mpondo (The Administrator) 1,736 - 590 2,326

Mr S Sithole (GCEO) 918 - 9 927

Dr S Sishi (AGCEO) 670 100 379 1,149

Ms T Mahlati (AGCFO) 2,006 53 21 2,080

Ms L Fosu (GCFO) 1,923 176 20 2,119

Mr N Khena 2,832 260 30 3,122

Ms P Ngubane 365 20 3 388

Mr L Zide (Group Company Secretary) 1,070 111 11 1,192

Mr AR Zaman 3,022 - 32 3,054

Mr T Holele 1,977 - 21 1,998

Mr E Makhura 1,484 137 15 1,636

Mr Z Mayaba 2,873 254 29 3,156

Mr C Mbatha 1,206 157 13 1,376

Ms T Mabija (GE: HCM) 1,281 118 13 1,412

Ms P Munthali 3,266 - 34 3,300

Ms M Ngoye 2,991 470 31 3,492

Mr P Sebola 3,089 284 31 3,404

Dr S Sithole 2,848 - 30 2,878

Mr TM Mohube 326 32 3 361

Dr M Mokwena 2,500 - 27 2,527

Ms M Thebethe (Acting Company Secretary) 761 61 9 831

Ms K Mpane (CPO) 1,159 90 12 1,261

Ms A Lindeque (ACEO: CRES) 934 101 12 1,047

Mr V Lutchman (ACEO: Intersite) 397 49 - 446

Mr M Mntungwa (ACEO: Intersite) 1,888 206 - 2,094

Mr I Van Rensburg (ACEO: Autopax) 1,543 - 15 1,558

Mr T Holele (ACEO: Autopax) 1,077 - 11 1,088

Mr K Moonsamy (ACEO: PRASA TECH) 1,528 166 16 1,710
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32. Related parties (continued)

Mr D Kekana (ACEO: PRASA TECH) 482 - 5 487

Mr H Emeran (ACEO: PRASA TECH) 503 55 5 563

Mr N Mareko (ACEO: PRASA RAIL) 734 59 8 801

Mr Z Mayaba (ACEO: PRASA RAIL) 757 59 7 823

Ms V Menye (ACIO) 885 - 10 895

Ms N Mollo (ACIO) 289 26 4 319

Mr E Khan (ACIO) 522 43 5 570

51,842 3,087 1,461 56,390

Mr L Zide (Company Secretary) (Till April 2019)

Mr Sithole (GCEO) (Till February 2019)

Dr S Sishi (AGCEO) (Till December 2019)

Mr C Mbatha (Till August 2019)

Dr S Sithole (Till December 2019)

Ms P Ngubane (Till May 2019)

Mr TM Mohube (Till April 2019)

Ms T Mahlati (AGCFO) (Till November 2019)

Ms L Fosu (GCFO) (From September 2019)

Mr B Mpondo (The Administrator) (From January 2020)

Ms Thandeka Mabija (From October 2019)

Ms M Thebethe (Acting Company Secretary) (From May 2019)

Ms A Lindeque (ACEO: PRASA CRES) (From November 2019)

Mr V Lutchman (ACEO: Intersite) (Till May 2019)

Mr M Mntungwa (ACEO: Intersite) (From June 2019)

Mr I Van Rensburg (ACEO: Autopax) (Till October 2019)

Mr T Holele (ACEO: Autopax) (From December 2019)

Mr K Moonsamy (ACEO: PRASA TECH) (Till October 2019)

Mr D Kekana (ACEO: PRASA TECH) (From November to 
December 2019)

Mr H Emeran (ACEO: PRASA TECH) (From January 2020)

Ms N Mareko (ACEO: PRASA RAIL) (From October to 
December 2019)

Mr Z Mayaba (ACEO: PRASA RAIL) (From January 2019)

Ms V Menye (ACIO) (Till October 2019)

Ms N Mollo (ACIO) (From November to 
December 2019)

Mr E Khan (ACIO) (From January 2020)
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32. Related parties (continued)

2019

Name Salary
Retirement
contributions

Other benefits
received

Total

Mr L Zide (AGCEO) 517 80 6 603

Mr S Sithole (GCEO) 3,391 - 40 3,431

Dr S Sishi (AGCEO) 84 11 26 121

Ms T Mahlati (AGCFO) 2,267 349 31 2,647

Mr N Khena (ACEO Autopax)) 2,832 260 49 3,141

Ms P Ngubane 3,096 240 38 3,374

Mr L Zide (Group Company Secretary) 2,299 400 30 2,729

Mr AR Zaman 3,021 - 39 3,060

Mr T Holele 2,967 - 37 3,004

Mr E Makhura 1,658 134 25 1,817

Mr Z Mayaba 2,767 254 35 3,056

Mr C Mbatha 2,375 414 32 2,821

Ms P Munthali 3,666 - 44 3,710

Ms M Ngoye 3,329 507 55 3,891

Mr P Sebola 3,089 283 52 3,424

Dr S Sithole 3,525 - 44 3,569

Mr TM Mohube 2,638 460 35 3,133

Dr M Mokwena (Technical Advisor: 
GCEO)

1,344 18 - 1,362

44,865 3,410 618 48,893

Mr L Zide (AGCEO)                                              (Till May 2018)    

Mr S Sithole (GCEO) Dr S Sishi                         (AGCEO)  (From June 2018 to February 2019)

Mr L Zide (Group Company Secretary)            (From March 2019)

Dr M Mokwena (Technical Advisor: GCEO)     (From June 2018)t (From September 2018)
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2. Related parties (continued)

33.    Other related parties

The following is a summary of transactions with related parties during the year and balances due at year-end:

Services rendered to related parties 
Major public entities 13,875 85,841 13,875 85,215

Other public entities 459 - 459 -

14,334 85,841 14,334 85,215

Services received from related parties 
Major public entities

1,397,985 1,838,807 1,397,752 1,830,838

Other public entities 990,784 934,828 990,783 871,230

2,388,769 2,773,635 2,388,535 2,702,068

Net amounts due to related parties 
Major public entities

(1,318,168) (918,998) (1,318,168) (918,953)

Other public entities (140,257) (63,381) (139,939) (58,647)

(1,458,425) (982,379) (1,458,107) (977,600)

The majority of transactions with Major Public entities are with Transnet and Eskom.

The majority of Other Public entities transactions are with South African Revenue Services.

Transacation with related entities

Services rendered to related parties comprise principally transportation (rail and road) services. Services purchased from 
related parties comprised principally energy, telecommunications, information technology, transportation and property related 
services.
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34.    Prior period errors

During the year, the following errors were identified and the impact of the adjustments were implemented in terms of GRAP 3 
for PRASA.The comparative amounts were restated and where applicable the opening balances of the earlier period preceding 
2018/19 were restated to effect the impact. The following errors were noted for PRASA controlling entity:

1. During the current year, management identified costs that had been incorrectly classified as assets under construction. 
These costs should have been classified as repairs and maintenance and recorded in the statement of financial performance. 
There were also costs that were previously capitalised and depreciated through a cost adjustment journal. These costs have 
been reversed back to assets under construction and a portion of it reclassified as stated in paragraph above.

2. Unspent conditional grants balance was amended due to the reclassification of balances that had been capitalised in assets 
during the previous financial period. The reclassification resulted in the portion of the amortisation being reversed back into 
unspent conditional grants. The impact of the change is an increase of R244 million in unspent conditional grants.

3. Subsidy received in advance of R247 million was incorrectly deferred and recognised as a liability in the statement of 
financial position despite there being no conditions attached to the subsidy. The error was corrected by reclassifying the 
subsidy from subsidy received in advance to government subsidy in the statement of financial performance.

4. A claim against PRASA of R1 404 million was incorrectly accounted for as an accrual instead of a contingent liability. This 
claim is being disputed by PRASA through the courts and final judgement has not been handed down. The error has been 
corrected by reversing the accrual and reducing assets under contraction.

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:

Statement of financial position
1&4) Decrease in property, plant and equipment - (2,624,168) - (2,624,168)
2) Increase in unspent conditional grants - (243,576) - (243,576)
3) Decrease in subsidy received in advance - 247,336 - 247,336
4) Decrease in payables from exchange transactions - 1,403,909 - 1,403,909
Increase in accumulated surplus for the year - 1,216,499 - 1,216,499

Statement of financial performance
1) Decrease in depreciation and amortisation - (782,769) - (782,769)
1) Increase in impairment (loss)/reversal of impairments - 432 - 432
2) Increase in capital subsidy and grants amortised - 243,576 - 243,576
3) Increase in government subsidy - (247,336) - (247,336)
1) Increase in repairs and maintenance - 2,002,596 - 2,002,596
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35.    Prior-year adjustments

Presented below are those items contained in the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance and cash 
flow statement that have been affected by prior-year adjustments:

Statement of financial position 

Economic entry - 2019
Note As previously 

reported
Correction of 

error
Restated

Property, plant and equipment 4 42,619,030 (2,624,168) 39,994,862
Payables from exchange transactions 18 (6,957,303) 1,403,909 (5,553,394)
Subsidy received in advance (247,336) 247,336 -
Unspent conditional grants 16 (44,769,770) (243,576) (45,013,346)

9,355,379 (1,216,499) (10,571,878)
Economic entity - 2018

Note As previously 
reported

Correction of 
error

Restated

Property, plant and equipment 4 40,430,455 (2,163,786) 38,266,669
Payables from exchange transactions 18 (6,088,705) 1,403,909 (4,684,796)

34,341,750 (759,887) 33,581,873

Controlling entity - 2019
Note As previously 

reported
Correction of 

error
Restated

Property, plant and equipment 23 42,485,117 (2,624,168) 39,860,949
Payables from exchange transactions 18 (6,647,966) 1,403,909 (5,245,057)
Subsidy received in advance (247,336) 247,336 -
Unspent conditional grants 16 (44,769,770) (243,576) (45,013,346)

(9,179,955) (1,216,499) (10,397,454)

Economic entity - 2018

Note As previously 
reported

Correction of 
error

Restated

Property, plant and equipment 4 40,179,719 (2,163,786) 38,015,993
Payables from exchange transactions 18 (5,822,365) 1,403,909 (4,418,456)

34,357,354 (759,877) 33,597,477
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35.    Prior-year adjustments (continued)

Statement of financal performance

Economic entity - 2019
Note As previously 

reported
Correction of 

error
Restated

Government subsidy 23 6,330,575 247,336 6,577,911
Capital subsidy and grants amortised 23 3,717,796 (243,576) 3,474,220
Depreciation and amortisation (2,168,893) (16,050) (2,184,943)
Impariment loss/reversal of impairments 657,268 (432) 656,836
Repairs and maintenance 4 (788,284) (443,900) (1,232,184)
Surplus (deficit) for the year 7,748,462 (456,622) 7,291,840

Economic entity - 2018

Note As previously 
reported

Correction of 
error

Restated

Depreciation and amortisation (2,357,682) 798,819 (1,558,863)
Repairs and maintenance 4 (645,010) (1,558,696) (2,203,706)
Deficit for the year (3,002,692) (759,877) (3,762,569)

Controlling entity - 2019

Note As previously 
reported

Correction of 
error

Restated

Government subsidy 23 6,330,575 247,336 6,577,911
Capital subsidy and grants amortised 23 3,717,796 (243,576) 3,474,220
Depreciation and amortisation (2,095,964) (16,050) (2,112,014)
Impariment loss/reversal of impairments 424,730 (432) 424,298
Repairs and maintenance 4 (717,640) (443,900) (1,161,540)
Surplus (deficit) for the year 7,659,497 (456,622) 7,202,875

Controlling entity - 2018

Note As previously 
reported

Correction of 
error

Restated

Depreciation and amortisation (2,284,521) 798,819 (1,485,702)
Repairs and maintenance 4 (584,863) (1,558,696) (2,143,559)
Deficit for the year (2,869,384) (759,877) (3,629,261)
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36.    Risk management

Financial risk management 

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations, resulting in financial loss to the 
Economic entity. The economic entity has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy parties. The economic entity 
performs ITC checks on tenants before contracts are entered into. Tenants are required to pay deposits, provide guarantees or 
sureties based on their risk profile.

Financial assets, which potentially subject the economic entity to credit risk, consist principally of prepayments, Receivables 
from exchange transactions and cash and cash equivalents. The economic entity’s cash and cash equivalents are placed with 
high credit quality financial institutions.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to receivables from exchange transactions are due to leases with Government 
entities or tenants under operating lease agreements. Where relevant, the economic entity has policies in place to ensure that 
transactions only take place with customers with an appropriate credit history.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

There has been no significant change during the financial year, or since the end of the financial year, to the economic entity’s 
exposure to credit risk, the approach to measurement or the objectives, policies and processes for managing this risk.

The economic entity’s exposure to credit risk consists of prepayments, receivables from exchange transactions and cash and 
cash equivalents. The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment 
losses, represents the economic entity’s maximum exposure to credit risk:

Prepayments 8,313,781 8,457,645 8,313,781 8,457,645

Receivables from exchange transactions 1,512,153 1,276,467 1,719,285 1,257,117

Cash and cash equivalents 24,181,747 18,315,956 24,164,586 18,301,776

34,007,681 28,050,068 34,197,652 28,016,538

2020

Economic Entity Neither past 
due nor 

impaired

Past due but 
not impaired

Impaired Carrying value

Prepayments 8,313,781 - - 8,313,781

Receivables from exchange transactions 358,338 1,153,815 2,422,412         3,934,565

Receivables from exchange transactions - impaired - - (2,422,412)       (2,422,412)

Cash and cash equivalents 24,181,747 - - 24,181,747

32,853,866 1,153,815 - 34,007,681

2019 - - - -

Economic Entity                                                                             Neither past 
due nor 

impaired

Past due but
not impaired

Impaired    Carrying value

Prepayments 8,457,645 - - 8,457,645

Receivables from exchange transactions 598,950 677,517 2,331,055 3,607,522

Receivables from exchange transactions - impaired - - (2,331,055) (2,331,055)

Cash and cash equivalents 18,315,956 - - 18,315,956

27,372,551 677,517 - 28,050,068
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36. Risk management (continued)

The bank deposits and bank balances, receivables and payables approximate their fair value due to the short-term
nature of these instruments. Receivables from exchange transactions are impaired based on the age of the debtor and inability 
of the entity to recover the assets.

2020

Controlling Entity Neither past
due nor 

impaired

Past due but 
not impaired

Impaired    Carrying 
value

Prepayments 8,313,781 - - 8,313,781

Receivables from exchange transactions 363,935 1,355,350 2,419,607         4,138,892

Receivables from exchange transactions - impaired - - (2,419,607)       (2,419,607)

Cash and cash equivalents 24,153,827 - - 24,153,827

32,831,543 1,355,350 - 34,186,893

The bank deposits and bank balances, receivables and payables approximate their fair value due to the short-term 
nature of these instruments. Receivables from exchange transactions are impaired based on the age of the debtor and inability 
of the entity to recover the assets. 
                     

2019 - - - -

Controlling Entity Neither past
due nor 

impaired

Past due but 
not impaired

Impaired    Carrying 
value

Prepayments 8,457,645 - - 8,457,645

Receivables from exchange transactions 608,341 648,776 2,329,522 3,586,639

Receivables from exchange transactions - impaired - - (2,329,522) (2,329,522)

Cash and cash equivalents 18,301,776 - - 18,301,776

27,367,762 648,776 - 28,016,538

The bank deposits and bank balances, receivables and payables approximate their fair value due to the short-term 
nature of these instruments. Receivables from exchange transactions are impaired based on the age of the debtor and inability 
of the entity to recover the assets.
 
Tenant receivables comprise of hawkers, residential and commercial tenants in the following percentages:

Hawkers 1,00 % 1,50 % 1,00 % 1,50 %

Residential 3,00 % 8,90 % 3,00 % 8,90 %

Commercial 96,00 % 89,69 % 96,00 % 89,60 %

100,00 % 100,09 % 100,00 % 100,00 %

Commercial tenants are deemed to be low risk compared to residential tenants. However, during the last few years we have 
been negatively impacted due to poor economic conditions in the property market.

Collateral

For all tenant receivables collateral is held in the form of tenant deposits, guarantees or sureties based on the risk profile of 
the respective tenant.
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36.    Risk management (continued)

Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

The tenant trade receivables are tenants who have entered into rental contracts. All tenants prepay amounts. Therefore, if a 
tenant has not paid, the amount is past due. The following represents information on the credit quality of trade receivables that 
are past due but not impaired:

Aged analysis of financial assets that are past due but not impaired:

Receivables from exchange transactions 
30 days past due (2,910) 15,124 4,067 12,832

31 to 60 days past due 512 6,565 1,882 6,355

61 to 90 days and over past due 871,326 361,155 1,064,424 334,916

868,838 382,844 1,070,373 354,103

Tenant receivables from exchange transactions 
30 days past due 25,172 54,227 25,172 54,227

31 to 60 days past due 15,603 20,913 15,603 20,913

61 to 90 days and over past due 244,202 219,533 244,202 219,533

284,977 294,673 284,977 294,673
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36.    Risk management (continued) 

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the economic entity will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The economic 
entity is on continuing engagements with our Shareholder and National Treasury. The economic entity maintains sufficient 
cash resources to fund its capital program via cash allocations from Government on a monthly basis, in order to act as an 
agent for Government in the provision of rail commuter services. The economic entity also manages liquidity risk through an 
on-going review of future commitments.

The economic entity’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or 
reputational damage.

The economic entity receives a guaranteed subsidy from National Treasury through the Medium Term Expenditure Framework 
allocation process to fund all current and future obligations.

The economic entity’s exposure to liquidity risk consists of payables from exchange transactions. The carrying amount of 
financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements:

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Payables from exchange transactions 5,724,763 5,553,394 5,545,971 5,244,057

The below maturity analysis details the economic entity’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The below 
analysis has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which 
the economic entity can be required to pay. The analysis includes both estimated interest and principal cash flows.

Maturity analysis
 
Payables from exchange transactions

1 to 6 months 5,724,763 5,392,239 5,545,971 5,082,902

7 to 12 months - 161,155 - 161,155

5,724,763 5,553,394 5,545,971 5,244,057

Market risk
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36.    Risk management (continued) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates. The economic entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes 
in market interest rates. However, the value of post employment assets and obligations will be affected when there are 
fluctuations in market interest rates.

Employee benefit obligations sensitivity analysis

The results of the valuation are sensitive to the assumptions used. The valuation are based on a number of assumptions. The 
value of the liability could turn out to be overstated or understated, depending on the extent to which actual experience differs 
from the assumptions adopted. Refer to note 9.

Foreign exchange currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in foreign exchange rates. This would arise mainly as a result of import capital and operational expenditure 
programmes where goods are imported from, and services provided in foreign countries and thus are exposed to currency 
fluctuations.

On the 14th of October 2013, PRASA entered into an agreement with Gibela for the design, supply and manufacture of 600 
new trains. In this programme PRASA is not exposed to foreign currency risk as Gibela is responsible for addressing the risk 
through financial methods such as hedging, at no cost to PRASA.

Capital management

The economic entity’s capital consists of share capital. Capital and operational subsidies are received through the Medium 
Term Expenditure Framework. Capital subsidy is accounted for in terms of GRAP 23 Revenue from Non-exchange 
Transactions.

Categories of financial instruments

Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Receivables from exchange transactions 1,512,153 1,276,467 1,719,285 1,257,117

Cash and cash equivalents 24,181,747 18,315,956 24,164,586 18,301,776

25,693,900 19,592,423 25,883,871 19,558,893

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
Payables from exchange transactions 5,724,763 5,553,394 5,545,971 5,244,057

Due to nature of financial instruments the carrying amount approximates the fair value amount.

37.    Going concern

There is no uncertainty on the economic entity to continue as a going concern. The Entity reported a surplus of R2.3 billion 
(2019:deficit R2.1 billion).

As a schedule 3B Public Entity which is substantially funded by government, PRASA’s secondary mandate is to generate 
revenue from business activities which, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and 
financial position are set out in the Corporate Plan 2021/2023. This incorporates the financial position of the company, its cash 
flows, solvency and liquidity position, including the entity’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital and 
financial risk management objectives.

The key strategic initiatives to turnaround PRASA towards sustainability, amongst others, include:
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37.    Going concern (continued)

1. Establishment of the following sub-committees to achieve corporate governance:
• Service Recovery;
• Capital and Modernisation Acceleration;
• Safety and Security management;
• Governance; and
• Revenue Enhancement and Cost Containment.

2. Service Recovery aims to ensure predictable and reliable train and bus services through operational planning and recovery 
of the fleet (Metrorail, MLPS and Autopax) and infrastructure, facilities and stations for rail. Interventions to address Service 
Recovery cover:
• Rolling stock and infrastructure;
• Stations and workplaces;
• Metrorail;
• Recovery of the Central Line and Mabopane corridor;
• Mainline Passenger Services; and
• Autopax.

3. Safety and security management in line with Rail Safety Regulator (RSR) requirements and to implement integrated security 
technology and physical security. The adequate implementation of a Safety Management System (SMS) by PRASA is a key 
element in improving operational safety and forms the basis on which the Railway Safety Regulator issues safety permits. 
The Security Risk, Threat and Vulnerability Assessments (SRTVA) were used as a guideline to determine current security 
challenges and developing trends of vandalism and theft of PRASA assets. This SRTVA assessment will dictate the kind of 
security capability required to stabilise the identified security threats. The security plan is designed to put in place resources, 
methods and technology support structures that will mitigate the current risk while providing adequate future scalability so 
as to merge with the modernization programmes as they roll out in the medium to longer term. This security strategy and 
interventions will ensure protection of commuters and PRASA’s network and infrastructure, as well as increase in revenue 
generation.

4. The Capital and Modernisation implementation process is targeted to accelerate service recovery and delivery through the 
modernization of the rail system.

5. Governance is focused on establishing or improving policies, systems and processes, ensuring effective enterprise-wide risk 
management, improving and streamline the procurement process, ensuring governance structures are in-line with legal and 
business imperatives, and incorporate PRASA subsidiaries as divisions of the Group.

6. Revenue Enhancement and Cost containment is aimed at initiatives to improve revenue collection, cost containment, through 
a review of the business operating model and consolidation of functions within the divisions and operations. Additionally, and 
subsequent to the submission of the Corporate Plan 2021/2023, a significant budget revision exercise has been undertaken 
towards achieving a funded budget, whereby business divisions critically rebased their budgets, embedding cost containment 
initiatives and minimising losses, reversing past practices to budget for a deficit.

The current economic environment is difficult and exacerbated by the impact of COVID 19 (detailed in the Subsequent events 
note). Management consider that the outlook presents significant challenges in terms of revenue generation, as well as 
managing variable and fixed costs of operations and have undertaken the development of an optimal funding model towards a 
comprehensive understanding and benchmarking of the cost drivers of the business towards sustainability. PRASA continues 
to receive the support of its shareholder over the MTEF period through the significant subsidies for safe and reliable public rail 
transport. Additionally, PRASA (inclusive of subsidiaries) has commenced discussions with its shareholder regarding funding 
options to settle long outstanding debt, whilst managing the working capital of business operations on a funded basis annually. 
Based on the above strategic initiatives to turnaround PRASA and achieve sustainability, management have a reasonable 
expectation that PRASA has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For these 
reasons, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.
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37.    Going concern (continued)

1. Establishment of the following sub-committees to achieve corporate governance:
• Service Recovery;
• Capital and Modernisation Acceleration;
• Safety and Security management;
• Governance; and
• Revenue Enhancement and Cost Containment.

2. Service Recovery aims to ensure predictable and reliable train and bus services through operational planning and recovery 
of the fleet (Metrorail, MLPS and Autopax) and infrastructure, facilities and stations for rail. Interventions to address Service 
Recovery cover:

• Rolling stock and infrastructure;
• Stations and workplaces;
• Metrorail;
• Recovery of the Central Line and Mabopane corridor;
• Mainline Passenger Services; and
• Autopax.

3. Safety and security management in line with Rail Safety Regulator (RSR) requirements and to implement integrated security 
technology and physical security. The adequate implementation of a Safety Management System (SMS) by PRASA is a key 
element in improving operational safety and forms the basis on which the Railway Safety Regulator issues safety permits. 
The Security Risk, Threat and Vulnerability Assessments (SRTVA) were used as a guideline to determine current security 
challenges and developing trends of vandalism and theft of PRASA assets. This SRTVA assessment will dictate the kind of 
security capability required to stabilise the identified security threats. The security plan is designed to put in place resources, 
methods and technology support structures that will mitigate the current risk while providing adequate future scalability so 
as to merge with the modernization programmes as they roll out in the medium to longer term. This security strategy and 
interventions will ensure protection of commuters and PRASA’s network and infrastructure, as well as increase in revenue 
generation.

4. The Capital and Modernisation implementation process is targeted to accelerate service recovery and delivery through the 
modernization of the rail system.

5. Governance is focused on establishing or improving policies, systems and processes, ensuring effective enterprise-wide risk 
management, improving and streamline the procurement process, ensuring governance structures are in-line with legal and 
business imperatives, and incorporate PRASA subsidiaries as divisions of the Group.

6. Revenue Enhancement and Cost containment is aimed at initiatives to improve revenue collection, cost containment, through 
a review of the business operating model and consolidation of functions within the divisions and operations. Additionally, and 
subsequent to the submission of the Corporate Plan 2021/2023, a significant budget revision exercise has been undertaken 
towards achieving a funded budget, whereby business divisions critically rebased their budgets, embedding cost containment 
initiatives and minimising losses, reversing past practices to budget for a deficit.

The current economic environment is difficult and exacerbated by the impact of COVID 19 (detailed in the Subsequent events 
note). Management consider that the outlook presents significant challenges in terms of revenue generation, as well as 
managing variable and fixed costs of operations and have undertaken the development of an optimal funding model towards a 
comprehensive understanding and benchmarking of the cost drivers of the business towards sustainability. PRASA continues 
to receive the support of its shareholder over the MTEF period through the significant subsidies for safe and reliable public rail 
transport. Additionally, PRASA (inclusive of subsidiaries) has commenced discussions with its shareholder regarding funding 
options to settle long outstanding debt, whilst managing the working capital of business operations on a funded basis annually. 
Based on the above strategic initiatives to turnaround PRASA and achieve sustainability, management have a reasonable 
expectation that PRASA has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For these 
reasons, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.
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38.    Events after the reporting date

1. PRASA Rail division suspended its commuter services in line with government lockdown regulations as a result of COVID
19. In addition to the loss of fare revenue due to suspension of services, since the lockdown period, the division has 
experienced an exponential increase in the vandalism of Infrastructure from May 2020. Overhead Traction Equipment cables 
are being stolen on daily basis especially in Gauteng, Some stations have also been destroyed in the past two months wherein 
ticket offices are no longer in a state that can be used after the resumption of services. This will result in assets being impaired 
and revenue loss as certain stations that will not be able to be used as revenue generating assets.

The uncertainty around COVID 19 will also result in a material loss of revenue due to limited number of trains that are being 
operated after the resumption of service in July 2020, as well as limitation on carrying capacity due to social distancing 
requirements. There is a low probability that PRASA Rail will achieve its revenue targets for 2020/21 financial year as it will 
take PRASA sometime to restore the service in certain corridors. However, these losses should be offset by some saving in 
direct cost of operations to minimise the overall losses. Furthermore, PRASA has received a R1.2bn conversion of capital to 
operational expenditure to assist with loss of revenue and additional costs to ensure COVID 19 compliance. The completeness 
of the loss as a result of a shutdown cannot be fully determined at this stage.

2. At PRASA CRES the effect of the lockdown will be felt in the short term as arrear rentals are increasing, lower market 
related rentals as well as the effect of train services on trading at stations. The impact on the economy would directly affect 
the various businesses. The average recoverability rate for the period April to June 2020 was used to determine the possible 
impairment. The average recoverability rate was 44% and thus 56% of the net book could possibly be impaired by a further 
R178 million.

3. Due to the national lockdown Autopax could not operate any services between 27 March 2020 and 30 April 2020. Autopax 
operated limited services between 01 and 07 May 2020 as once off travelling between provinces was allowed. Autopax could not 
operate any routes from 07 May onwards. Autopax was not able to generate any revenue during the lockdown period, placing 
further pressure on the company’s financial situation. PRASA is not able to estimate the complete financial effect at this point 
in time as the lockdown is still on-going.

4. The lockdown has had a negative impact on timelines for planned projects and capital intervention programmes. Major
capital programmes at procurement stage are also delayed. Planned critical maintenance work is severely affected due to
shortages of required commodities. However, PRASA is mobilising resources and processes to accelerate the implementation
of projects and capital. The financial impact cannot be fully determined at this stage.

5. During the financial year, PRASA initiated a review of PRASA’s Organisational Design and Business Model. The Operating 
Model team is concluding its work that highlighted the gaps within the current operating model and made recommendations 
for implementation. Amongst others, the team has proposed following changes for implementation:

• Group Shared Services
• Group functions
• Separation of Capital Projects and Engineering Services (PRASA Technical)
• Merging of operations (Autopax, MLPS and Metrorail)

Additionally, new emerging functions include Digital Enterprise Management and Integrated Operations Planning Function.

Subsequent to approval, a complete impact assessment will be undertaken informing the implementation plan for the new 
Operating Model, which is envisaged over a 24-month period

6. On 20 May 2020, the Administrator submitted a S 54(2) application to seek the approval of the Minister of Transport to
dissolve the activities undertaken at Intersite and consolidate them with the activities of PRASA CRES to create a single
property portfolio division. The financial impact cannot be fully determined at this stage.

7. On 20 May 2020, the Administrator submitted a S 54(2) application to seek the approval of the Minister of Transport to
dissolve the activities undertaken at Autopax and consolidate them under PRASA. The financial impact cannot be fully
determined at this stage.
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38.    Events after the reporting date (continued)

8. On 08 July 2020, the Administrator approved a letter of support to assist Intersite navigate a difficult financial situation as a
result of severe cash constraints. The letter stipulates that PRASA will maintain monthly payments to Intersite against the
retainer receivable to the extent of monthly operational requirements and, if required, it will continue to provide financial 
support beyond the settlement of the retainer receivable pending the finalisation of the consolidation of the property functions 
within the PRASA Group. The financial impact cannot be fully determined at this stage.

9. On the 25 August 2020, the Western Cape High Court, amongst others, declared that the appointment of Mr. Bongisizwe
Mpondo (“Mr. Mpondo”) as an acting Group Chief Executive Officer of the Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa (“PRASA”)
and as an accounting authority of PRASA was unlawful and set it aside. On 2 September 2020, the Minister of Transport
announced that he would not appeal against this court decision and that, as per the above court order, National Treasury had
decided to appoint Mr. Badisa Matshego as an accounting authority of PRASA in terms of section 49(3) of the Public Finance
Management Act, 1999, Act 1 of 1999. The effect of these decisions was that the appointment of Mr. Mpondo was held to have
no legal effect.

10. On 28 September 2020, the Accounting Authority approved a letter of subordination for Autopax. This agreement will
ensure that Autopax is put in a position to be able to continue as a going concern pending the outcome of the Section 66
application and divisionalisation into PRASA. The total amount owed to PRASA of R1.1 billion has been subordinated in favour
of the subsidiary’s other creditors. PRASA will continue to provide Autopax with such further assistance, to the extent that
Autopax requires to meet its operating obligations and existing contractual commitments. The financial impact cannot be fully
determined at this stage.

11. On 12 March 2019, PRASA demanded from Lombard Insurance Company Limited (“Lombard”) that it (PRASA) be paid the
performance guarantee in the amount of R128.9 million. In response to this demand, Bombardier Africa Alliance Consortium
(“BAA”) launched an application to restrain Lombard from making the payment. This application was dismissed with costs. BAA
took this decision on appeal before the full bench. On 7 October 2020, BAA’s appeal was also dismissed with costs. This
means that Lombard has no legal basis for refusing paying PRASA the above amount of R128.9 million.

12. On 8 October 2020 a full bench of the Gauteng High Court ordered that the agreements concluded between PRASA and
Siyangena Technologies (Pty) Limited (“Siyangena”) be reviewed and set aside. The court also found that the arbitration
agreements contained in these agreements are similarly and specifically reviewed and set aside. This decision therefore
suspends any claims that Siyangena have lodged by way of arbitration against PRASA. In accordance with the court order, an
engineer is to be appointed within 30 days by the parties or by the court, where the parties do not reach agreement, to assess
the work that has been done by Siyangena and indicate whether there is a deficit or excess in the payments already made by
PRASA. In the event that the engineer finds that there is an excess, Siyangena will be obliged to pay this excess and if s/he
finds a deficit, PRASA will be obliged to make good on the deficit. Siyangena has appealed the Gauteng High Court decision
and PRASA must await the conclusion of the appeal process before effecting any adjustments to amounts contained in its
work-in-progress and contingent liabilities.

13. On 21 October 2020, Cabinet approved the appointment of a permanent Board of Control of PRASA. The Board is
appointed for a period of 3 years and will assume their duties from the 27 October 2020 after an Induction with the Minister of
Transport.

14.On 28 October 2020, the liquidator halted the sale of the remaining Swifambo locomotives due to a potential commercial
settlement being reached between PRASA, Vossloh/Stadler and the liquidators of Swifambo. The impact of any potential
settlement has not been determined as yet and will only be concluded once a binding agreement has been reached. This
potential settlement will impact on the receivable recognised and recoverable amounts currently reflected in the accounts of
PRASA.

15. Management are considering Voluntary Severance Packages (“VSPs”) as a potential cost base reduction. Further
consideration and/or implementation of the potential VSPs is dependent on PRASA receiving approval of funding thereof (circa.
R1.1bn), which has been presented to and discussed with the Department of Transport. The decision from the Department of
Transport and National Treasury for the conversion of Capital Grant as the funding source for these VSPs has not been  
concluded
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38.    Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported 383,490 1,048,044 333,228 1,029,272

Correction of prior period error* (100) (715,419) - (715,419)

Opening balance as restated 383,390 332,625 333,228 313,853

Add: Fruitless Expenditure - prior period - 9,163 - 1,001

Add: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - current period 48,272 41,702 28,914 18,374

Closing balance 431,662 383,490 362,142 333,228



PRASA 2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 165

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Economic entity Controlling entity

Figures in Rand thousand 2020 2019 2020 2019

39.    Fruitless and wasteful expenditure (continued)

Expenditure identified in the current year include those listed below:

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - current year
 
Interest and penalties

34,365 20,967 28,895 12,942

Employees on long suspension for longer periods 798 1,505 - 497
Penalty fees paid on renewal of licenses 696 62 - -
Vehicle fines 56 2,038 - -
Incorrect rate of Sunday time paid to employees 12,338 20,196 - -
Agency fee paid for procurement of Senior Manager HCM 
Non VAT vendors paid amounts inclusive of VAT

- 
-

161 
47

- 
-

- 
47

Supplier paid in excess of the amount of the lowest bidder 
Assets acquired but not in use

- 
-

2,421 
3,467

- 
-

2,421 
3,467

Cellphone costs paid for employees have already left the entity 
Cancellation of non refundable bookings

14 
3

- 
-

14 
3

- 
-

Payment for training not attended 2 - 2 -
48,272 50,864 28,914 19,374
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39.    Fruitless and wasteful expenditure (continued)

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - prior year 
Incorrect rate of Sunday time paid to employees - 8,162 - -

Interest and penalties - 976 - 976

Employees on long suspension for longer periods - 25 - 25

- 9,163 - 1,001

Where Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure has been identified, without a specific individual being found to be 
responsible based on investigations, the necessary condonation is being sought. In a numbers of instances, where no steps 
were taken towards consequence management, PRASA Management has started the process towards investigation, which will 
lead to consequence management.

*The employee who damaged the pool vehicle paid for these repairs in their own capacity. Autopax did not incur any  expense.

*PRASA entered into an agreement in the amount of R3.5 billion with Swifambo for the sale and purchase of locomotives on 
25 March 2013. Pursuant to this contract, PRASA had paid Swifambo an amount of R2.6 billion. PRASA subsequently received 
13 locomotives in the amount of R715 million from Swifambo. The locomotives were not being used and were impaired  in full 
as PRASA had brought an application to set aside the contract and the expenditure was deemed fruitless and wasteful. The 
South Gauteng High Court ruled in favour of PRASA to set aside the contract which was later confirmed by the Constitutional 
court. As a result of this ruling the parties should be placed in a position they would have been in had the contract not  been 
concluded. Therefore fruitless and wasteful in the amount of R715 million was reversed during 2018/19 financial year.
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Economic entity Controlling entity

Figures in Rand thousand 2020 2019 2020 2019

40.    Irregular expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported 27,285,984 24,248,596 26,181,460 23,378,166

Correction of prior period error* (25,163) - (25,163) -

Opening balance as restated 27,260,821 24,248,596 26,156,297 23,378,166

Add: Irregular Expenditure - current period 1,325,406 3,037,388 1,121,096 2,803,294

Closing balance 28,586,227 27,285,984 27,277,393 26,181,460

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification

Current year 1,325,406 3,037,388 1,121,096 2,806,294

Prior years 27,260,821 24,248,596 26,156,297 23,378,166

28,586,227 27,285,984 27,277,393 26,184,460
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Economic entity Controlling entity

Figures in Rand thousand 2020 2019 2020 2019

40.    Irregular expenditure (continued)

Details of irregular expenditure – current year

Competitive bidding method not followed for the appointment of 
the supplier, contravening the SCM Policy

625,099 1,740,323 624,463 1,733,007

Criteria used in the evaluation are different from those stated in 
the RFP

- 7,710 - 6,562

Emergency not ratified as per the requirements of the SCM Policy 186 61,570 186 61,570

Non-compliance with CIDB Regulations - 7,448 - 7,448

Unfair advantage granted to the winning bidder - 8,311 - 8,311

Contract extensions more than allowed by PRASA SCM Policy and 
in some cases extended more than once without

- 8,454 - 8,454

Overspending on a contract prior to obtaining approval from 
delegated official

194,407 166,723 30,469 19,190

Payment made to supplier without a contract 39,822 118,364 86 46,254

Procurement not in line with PRASA SCM Policy and PPPFA 400,737 772,553 400,737 770,798

Purchase of goods and services through splitting of quotes instead 
of a tendering process

65,155 92,214 65,155 91,622

Three quotations not obtained for the procurement as prescribed 
by the SCM Policy

- 316 - 314

Non-compliance with the PRASA Remuneration Policy - 53,402 - 49,764

1,325,406 3,037,388 1,121,096 2,803,294

*The amount was incorrectly disclosed as irregular expenditure through splitting of quotations, whereas there is evidence that 
the tendering process and long term contracts were concluded with suppliers.

The Special Investigating Unit (SIU) is currently investigating 27 matters under a Presidential  Proclamation. An additional 28 
matters have been referred to the SIU, under a secondment agreement to PRASA, effective 01 July 2020. The SIU has deployed 
4 full time resources to PRASA for this purpose. The HAWKS are working on 23 matters, some of which have been referred to 
the NPA’s Specialised Commercial Crimes Unit (SCCU). PRASA and the HAWKS maintain single points in each organisation to 
expedite these matters. Internal Investigations and Disciplinary Hearings are under way, with 4 senior officials dismissed for 
procurement irregularities. The SIU is currently assisting PRASA to collect and collate evidence to effect internal disciplinary 
matters due to lack of capacity internally. A further 6 officials are under investigation and 9 officials charges have been 
finalised. Three law firms have been appointed to manage the ensuing disciplinary hearings.

216 cases have been under investigation by National Treasury. A draft report was issued. This may lead to a possible additional 
amount of irregular expenditure. Management is in the process of going through the report and to determine if all documents 
were provided for investigation. Thereafter it will be possible to determine if these costs are irregular or not.
Management will then also determine what steps need to be taken on regularising the expenditure and to take action with 
regards to consequence management. Some employees as implicated in some cases are not in the employ of PRASA any more. 
Non-compliance to regulations and processes forms a significant part of the irregular expenditure.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020



PRASA 2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 169

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Economic entity Controlling entity

Figures in Rand thousand 2020 2019 2020 2019

41.    Budget differences

Material differences between budget and actual amounts 

Economic Entity

Fare revenue

Fare revenue recorded a negative variance due to rolling stock and infrastructure vandalism and rolling stock failures. There 
were also revenue leakages due to lack of fencing and security.

Operating lease rental income

The negative variance is due to occupation certificates not being issued in a timely manner and poor performance of Metrorail 
which has dampened the demand for rentals resulting in increased vacancies.

Other income

The negative variance is mostly due to a decline in charter and luggage revenue at Autopax. The entity continues to experience 
operational challenges that have resulted in financial and cash flow challenges.

Interest received

The positive variance is due to an increase in cash reserves as result of cash transfers from the fiscus. More cash was invested 
than initially anticipated.

Actuarial gains

A positive variance in actuarial gains was not anticipated.

Capital subsidy and grants amortised

The positive variance is due an increase in amortisation amount due to the capitalised balance being more than the previous 
financial year.

Employee related costs

The positive variance is due to a number of vacant positions that were not filled.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation recorded a positive variance due to a prior period adjustment that resulted in the property, plant 
and equipment balance being reduced.
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41.    Budget differences (continued)

Impairment (loss)/reversal of impairments

A positive variance in impairment (loss)/reversal of impairments was not anticipated.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased due to interest incurred on late payment of suppliers as a result of cash constraints.

Loss on disposal of assets

A negative variance on loss on disposal of assets was not anticipated.

Fair value adjustments

A negative variance in fair value adjustments was not anticipated.

Repairs and maintenance

Repairs and maintenance expenditure is higher mainly due to reclassified of costs from ad hoc projects. Ad hoc costs were 
previously classified as property, plant and equipment and budgeted under CAPEX.

General expenses

General expenses recorded a positive variance mainly due to decrease in insurance provision and claims costs.

Controlling Entity

Fare revenue

Fare revenue recorded a negative variance due to rolling stock and infrastructure vandalism and rolling stock failures. There 
were also revenue leakages due to lack of fencing and security.

Operating lease rental income

The positive variance is due to an increase in rental income earned from group companies.

Other income
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41.    Budget differences (continued)

The positive variance is mainly due to an increase in payments from suppliers for breach of contract and non performance.

Interest received

The positive variance is due to an increase in cash reserves as result of cash transfers from the fiscus. More cash was invested 
than initially anticipated.

Capital subsidy and grants amortised

The positive variance is due an increase in amortisation amount due to the capitalised balance being more than the previous 
financial year.

Employee related costs

The positive variance is due to a number of vacant positions that were not filled.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation recorded a positive variance due to a prior period adjustment that resulted in the property, plant 
and equipment balance being reduced.

Impairment (loss)/reversal of impairments

A negative variance in impairment (loss)/reversal of impairments was not anticipated.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased due to interest incurred on late payment of suppliers as a result of cash constraints.

Loss on disposal of assets

A negative variance on loss on disposal of assets was not anticipated.

Fair value adjustments

A negative variance in fair value adjustments was not anticipated.

Repairs and maintenance
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41.    Budget differences (continued)

The positive variance is mainly due to an increase in payments from suppliers for breach of contract and non performance.

Interest received

The positive variance is due to an increase in cash reserves as result of cash transfers from the fiscus. More cash was invested 
than initially anticipated.

Capital subsidy and grants amortised

The positive variance is due an increase in amortisation amount due to the capitalised balance being more than the previous 
financial year.

Employee related costs

The positive variance is due to a number of vacant positions that were not filled.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation recorded a positive variance due to a prior period adjustment that resulted in the property, plant 
and equipment balance being reduced.

Impairment (loss)/reversal of impairments

A negative variance in impairment (loss)/reversal of impairments was not anticipated.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased due to interest incurred on late payment of suppliers as a result of cash constraints.

Loss on disposal of assets

A negative variance on loss on disposal of assets was not anticipated.

Fair value adjustments

A negative variance in fair value adjustments was not anticipated.

Repairs and maintenance
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41.    Budget differences (continued)

Repairs and maintenance expenditure is higher mainly due to reclassified of costs from ad hoc projects. Ad hoc costs were 
previously classified as property, plant and equipment and budgeted under CAPEX.

General expenses

General expenses recorded a positive variance mainly due to decrease in insurance provision and claims costs.
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ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS

AGCEO Acting Group Chief Executive Officer

AGSA Auditor-General of South Africa

AIDS Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome

ARC Audit and Risk Committee

BAC Bid Adjudication Committee

B-BBEE Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment

BSC Bid Specification Committee

Capex Capital expenditure

CDC Coega Development Corporation

CIP Capital Investment and Procurement

CoF Certificate of Fitness

CPSC Capital Programme Steering Committee

CSI Customer Satisfaction Index

DoL Department of Labour

DoT Department of Transport

EE Employment equity

EME Exempted Micro Enterprise

EPMO Enterprise Programme Management Office

EWP Employee Wellness Programme

FCIP Finance, Capital Investment and 
Procurement Committee

FM Facilities Management

FY Financial year

GCPO Group Chief Procurement Officer

GO General Overhaul

GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

HCM Human Capital Management

HIV Human Immunodeficiency Virus

HRRC Human Resources and Remuneration 
Committee

ICT Information and communications technology

KZN KwaZulu-Natal

LSM Living Standard Measure

MLPS Main Line Passenger Service

MoT Minister of Transport

MoU Memorandum of Understanding

MP Member of Parliament

MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework

NDP National Development Plan

NPAT Net profit after tax

NSIP National Station Improvement Project

NTM National Transport Movement

OHTE Overhead Traction Equipment

OM Operating Model

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

PMA Performance Management Agreement

PPSA Public Protector South Africa

PRASA Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa

PRASA 
CRES

QSE Qualifying Small Enterprise

RECC Revenue Enhancement and Cost 
Containment

SA South Africa

SAD Strategic Asset Development

SAPS South African Police Service

SATAWU

SCM Supply Chain Management

SHEQ Safety, Health and Environment Quality

SIU Special Investigating Unit

SLA Service level agreement

SOE State-owned enterprise

SOP Standard Operating Procedure

SPAD Signal passed at danger

StatsSA Statistics South Africa

TETA Transport Education Training Authority

TFR Transnet Freight Rail

TGP Total guaranteed package

ToR Terms of Reference

UNTU United National Transport Union

VOR Vehicle off the road

WPIP Workplace Improvement Project

WSP Workplace Skills Plan
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